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ORDINANCE ltar S

WHEREAS, on August 20, 2019, the Department of Planning and Development (“DPD")
of the City of Chicago (“City”) issued site plan review approval for the construction of a mixed-
use building with 639 dwelling units and retail space (the “Project”) in Planned Development 70,
Subarea D, Parcel BTE at 210 North Stetson Avenue (the “Property”); and

WHEREAS, the Property is subject to an obligation to dedicate to the City a 4-foot public right-
of-way for subway purposes along its east lot line and extending vertically to an unobstructed
height of 26.00 feet above Chicago City Datum for its entire length and width (collectively with
any other property rights the City may have in the Property related to the subway, the “Subway
Rights™) as described on Exhibit A, and depicted in Exhibit B, attached hereto; and

WHEREAS, the Subway Rights were created under section 12B(3) of the 1969
Amendatory Lake Front Ordinance dated September 17, 1969, and recorded April 10, 1970, as
Document 21132412, for the purposes of constructlng a new transit line known as the “Monroe
Street Distributor Subway”; and

WHEREAS, the Monroe Street Distributor Subway was part of a “Distributer System”
envisioned in the 1968 Chicago Central Area Transit Plan, which has since been abandoned;
and

WHEREAS, the Project will require that 215-North Michigan Owner LLC, a Delaware
limited liability company (together with its successors and/or assigns, the “Developer”) build
within the area of the Subway Rights; and

WHEREAS, on September 19, 2019, the Developer submitted an application to the
Chicago Department of Transportation (“CDOT") to release the Subway Rights; and

WHEREAS, CDOT does not object to the Developer’'s request to release the Subway
Rights, provided that the Developer pays to the City an amount equal to the appraised fair
market value of such rights; now, therefore,

Be It Ordained by the City Council of the City of Chicago:
SECTION 1. The recitals above are incorporated herein.

SECTION 2. The release of the Subway Rights is hereby approved upon the express
condition that within one hundred eighty (180) days after the passage of this ordinance, the
Developer shall pay or cause to be paid to the City, as compensation for the benefits which will
accrue to the Developer, an amount equal to the appraised fair market value of the Subway
Rights, as determined by an MAI Appraiser selected by the City and paid for by the Developer.

SECTION 3. The release of the Subway (Rights herein provided for is made upon the
express condition that within one hundred eighty (180) days after the passage of this ordinance,
the Developer shall file or cause to be filed in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds of Cook
County, lllinois, a certified copy of this ordinance and the release.

SECTION 4. The Commissioner of the Department of Transportation (“Commissioner”)
or a designee of the Commissioner, is each hereby authorized to negotiate, execute, and
deliver, subject to the approval of the City’s Corporation Counsel, a Release of Subway Rights,



and such other supporting documents as may be necessary or appropriate to carry out and
comply with the provisions of this ordinance, with such changes, deletions and insertions as
shall be approved by the persons executing the Release of Subway Rights.

SECTION 5. If any provision of this ordinance shall be held to be invalid or
unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or unenforceablllty of such provision shall not affect
any of the other provisions of this ordinance. :

SECTION 6. All ordinances', resolutions, motions or orders in conflict with this ordinance
are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.

SECTION 7. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its
passage and approval.

Release Approved:

Thomas Carney
Acting Commissioner gf Transportation

Approved as to Form and Legallty

L

Joseph ©ashman
ASS|sta t Corporation Counsel

Introduced By:

Honorable Brendan ReL/

Alderman, 42nd Ward




EXHIBIT A
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF SUBWAY AREA

[SUBJECT TO FINAL SURVEY AND TITLE COMMITMENT]

THE PROPERTY AND SPACE LYING BELOW AND EXTENDING DOWNWARD FROM A
HORIZONTAL PLANE HAVING AN ELEVATION OF 26 FEET ABOVE CHICAGO CITY DATUM
AND LYING WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES, PROJECTED UPWARD AND DOWNWARD FROM
THE SURFACE OF THE EARTH, OF ALL THAT PART OF THE PROPERTY WHICH LIES EAST
OF A LINE 4 FEET WEST OF AND PARALLEL WITH THE WEST LINE OF NORTH STETSON
AVENUE AS SAID STREET IS DEFINED IN THE AMENDATORY LAKE FRONT ORDINANCE
PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHICAGO ON SEPTEMBER 17, 1969, A
COPY OF WHICH WAS RECORDED APRIL 10, 1970, AS DOCUMENT NUMBERED 21132412,
ACCEPTANCE OF WHICH WAS FILED WITH THE CITY CLERK, A COPY OF WHICH WAS
RECORDED APRIL 10, 1970, AS DOCUMENT NUMBERED 21132414, AND ALSO
DESCRIBED AS A STRIP OF LAND 4 FEET OF EVEN WIDTH, COMMENCING WITH THE
NORTH LINE OF LOWER LEVEL EAST RANDOLPH STREET, AS PROVIDED IN SECTION 6E
OF THE AMENDATORY LAKE FRONT ORDINANCE PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF CHICAGO ON SEPTEMBER 17, 1969, EXTENDING IN A NORTHERLY DIRECTION
FOR A DISTANCE OF APPROXIMATELY 761 FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF LOWER LEVEL
EAST SOUTH WATER STREET, AS PROVIDED FOR IN SECTION 6E OF SAID AMENDATORY
ORDINANCE, THE EAST LINE OF WHICH SHALL BE COLLINEAR AND PARALLEL WITH THE
WEST LINE OF EXISTING NORTH STETSON AVENUE, THE WEST LINE OF WHICH SHALL
BE APPROXIMATELY 4 FEET WEST OF AND PARALLEL WITH THE WEST LINE OF
EXISTING NORTH STETSON AVENUE, AND EXTENDING VERTICALLY TO AN
UNOBSTRUCTED HEIGHT OF 26 FEET ABOVE CHICAGO CITY DATUM, FOR ITS ENTIRE
LENGTH AND WIDTH, LOCATED WITHIN THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY:

PARCEL 1:

THAT PART OF THE LANDS, LYING EAST OF AND ADJOINING FORT DEARBORN ADDITION
TO CHICAGO, BEING THE WHOLE OF THE SOUTHWEST FRACTIONAL 1/4 OF SECTION 10,
TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 14 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, BOUNDED
AND DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF A LINE 241.00 FEET, MEASURED
PERPENDICULARLY, EAST FROM AND PARALLEL WITH THE EAST LINE OF NORTH
BEAUBIEN COURT, 50.00 FEET WIDE, VACATED BY ORDINANCE PASSED BY THE CITY
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHICAGO ON JULY 5, 1972 AND RECORDED IN THE
RECORDER'S OFFICE OF COOK COUNTY ON DECEMBER 8, 1972 AS DOCUMENT
22152086, WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF E. SOUTH WATER STREET, 92.00 FEET WIDE, AS
SAID E. SOUTH WATER STREET WAS DEDICATED BY INSTRUMENT RECORDED ON MAY
3, 1972 AS DOCUMENT 21889519, AND RUNNING THENCE EAST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE
OF E. SOUTH WATER STREET, A DISTANCE OF 136.50 FEET TO AN INTERSECTION WITH
THE WEST LINE OF NORTH STETSON AVENUE, 74.00 FEET WIDE, AS SAID STREET WAS
DEDICATED BY INSTRUMENT RECORDED ON MARCH 26, 1984 AS DOCUMENT 27018355;
THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF NORTH STETSON AVENUE (SAID WEST LINE
BEING A LINE 377.50 FEET, MEASURED PERPENDICULARLY, EAST FROM AND PARALLEL
WITH SAID EAST LINE OF VACATED NORTH BEAUBIEN COURT) , A DISTANCE OF 297. 673
FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF PARCEL "K" IN 'PLAT OF MID-AMERICA', A
RESUBDIVISION OF THE PRUDENTIAL AND ILLINOIS CENTRAL SUBDIVISION (WHICH



RESUBDIVISION WAS RECORDED IN THE RECORDER'S OFFICE OF COOK COUNTY ON
NOVEMBER 20, 1957 IN BOOK 504 OF PLATS AT PAGES 1 TO 11, BOTH INCLUSIVE, AS
DOCUMENT 17069914); THENCE WEST ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID PARCEL "K", A
DISTANCE OF 136.50 FEET TO AN INTERSECTION WITH SAID LINE 241.00 FEET,
MEASURED PERPENDICULARLY, EAST FROM AND PARALLEL WITH SAID EAST LINE OF
VACATED NORTH BEAUBIEN COURT; AND THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID PARALLEL LINE,
A DISTANCE OF 297.673 TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PARCEL 2:

THE PROPERTY AND SPACE LYING ABOVE AND EXTENDING UPWARD FROM THE
INCLINED PLANES ESTABLISHING THE UPPER LIMITS OF THE LAND, PROPERTY
AND SPACE DEDICATED FOR E. SOUTH WATER STREET, 92.00 FEET WIDE, BY
INSTRUMENT RECORDED MAY 3, 1972 AS DOCUMENT 21889519 AND LYING WITHIN
THE BOUNDARIES, PROJECTED VERTICALLY UPWARD FROM SURFACE OF THE
EARTH OF THAT PART OF THE LANDS LYING EAST OF AND ADJOINING FORT
DEARBORN ADDITION TO CHICAGO BEING THE WHOLE OF THE SOUTHWEST
FRACTIONAL 1/4 OF SECTION 10, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 14 EAST OF THE
THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, BOUNDED AND DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID E. SOUTH
WATER STREET, 92.00 FEET WIDE, WITH A LINE 241.00 FEET, MEASURED
PERPENDICULARLY, EAST FROM AND PARALLEL WITH THE EAST LINE OF THAT PART
OF NORTH BEAUBIEN COURT, 50.00 FEET WIDE, VACATED BY ORDINANCE PASSED
BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHICAGO ON JULY 5, 1972 AND RECORDED
DECEMBER 8, 1972 AS DOCUMENT 22152086; AND RUNNING THENCE NORTH ALONG
SAID PARALLEL LINE, AND ALONG A NORTHWARD EXTENSION THEREOF, A
DISTANCE OF 25.34 FEET TO AN INTERSECTION WITH A LINE 20.66 FEET, MEASURED
PERPENDICULARLY, SOUTH FROM AND PARALLEL WITH THE CENTERLINE OF SAID
E. SOUTH WATER STREET, 92.00 FEET WIDE; THENCE EAST ALONG SAID PARALLEL
LINE, A DISTANCE OF 136.50 FEET TO AN INTERSECTION WITH A SOUTHWARD
EXTENSION OF THE WEST LINE OF NORTH STETSON AVENUE, 74.00 FEET WIDE, AS
SAID NORTH STETSON AVENUE WAS DEDICATED BY SAID INSTRUMENT RECORDED
ON MAY 3, 1972 AS DOCUMENT 21889519; THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID SOUTHWARD
EXTENSION OF SAID WEST LINE OF NORTH STETSON AVENUE, A DISTANCE OF 25.34
FEET TO AN INTERSECTION WITH SAID SOUTH LINE OF E. SOUTH WATER STREET;
AND THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF E. SOUTH WATER STREET, A
DISTANCE OF 136.50 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN COOK COUNTY,
ILLINOIS. :

PARCEL 3:

PERPETUAL RIGHT AND EASEMENT FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCELS 1 AND 2 TO
PLACE, MAINTAIN AND REPAIR (AND TO REPLACE IF DESTROYED) THE STRUCTURE,
FOUNDATIONS AND SUPPORTS AT THE APPROXIMATE LOCATIONS WITHIN
DEDICATED E. SOUTH WATER STREET, AS SHOWN AND DESCRIBED ON SHEET 2 OF
PLAT OF DEDICATION DATED APRIL 14, 1972, MADE BY ILLINOIS CENTRAL RAILROAD
COMPANY, RECORDED MAY 3, 1972 AS DOCUMENT 21889519, AS:

(1) RESERVED IN PLAT OF DEDICATION RECORDED AS DOCUMENT 21889519; AND,

(2) CONVEYED BY DEED DATED OCTOBER 7, 1976 AND RECORDED OCTOBER 7,
1976 AS DOCUMENT 23665777 MADE BY ILLINOIS CENTRAL GULF RAILROAD



COMPANY, A CORPORATION OF DELAWARE TO AMERICAN NATIONAL BANK AND
TRUST COMPANY OF CHICAGO, A NATIONAL BANKING ASSOCIATION, AS TRUSTEE
UNDER TRUST NO. 75802; AND,

(3) CONVEYED BY DEED DATED OCTOBER 6, 1977 AND RECORDED OCTOBER 11,
1977 AS DOCUMENT 24141633 MADE BY ILLINOIS CENTRAL GULF RAILROAD
COMPANY TO AMERICAN NATIONAL BANK AND TRUST COMPANY OF CHICAGO,
AS TRUSTEE UNDER TRUST NO. 75802, IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS. -

PARCEL 4:

EASEMENTS AS CREATED BY BOULEVARD TOWERS EASEMENTS, RESERVATIONS,
COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS BY AND AMONG AMERICAN NATIONAL BANK AND
TRUST COMPANY OF CHICAGO, AS TRUSTEE UNDER TRUST AGREEMENT DATED
SEPTEMBER 1, 1979 AND KNOWN AS TRUST NUMBER 46448, AMERICAN NATIONAL
BANK AND TRUST COMPANY OF CHICAGO, AS TRUSTEE UNDER TRUST AGREEMENT
DATED JUNE 16, 1982 AND KNOWN AS TRUST NUMBER 55461, AND AMERICAN
NATIONAL BANK AND TRUST COMPANY OF CHICAGO, AS TRUSTEE UNDER TRUST
AGREEMENT DATED JUNE 11, 1971 AND KNOWN AS TRUST NUMBER 75802, DATED
JUNE 13, 1983 AND RECORDED JUNE 29, 1983 AS DOCUMENT 26665607 FOR
PARKING, PEDESTRIAN AREAS, DOMESTIC WATER SUPPLY, SPRINKLER AND FIRE
PROTECTION, SUPPORT, MINOR ENCROACHMENTS, GROUND WATER DRAINAGE
SYSTEM, AND ENERGY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM AND AS AMENDED BY AMENDMENT
OF BOULEVARD TOWERS EASEMENTS;—RESERVATIONS, COVENANTS AND
RESTRICTIONS DATED OCTOBER 16, 1986 AND RECORDED OCTOBER 24, 1986 AS
DOCUMENT 86496543.

PARCEL &:

SLAB SUPPORT EASEMENT FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCELS 1 AND 2 CREATED BY
SLAB SUPPORT EASEMENT DATED NOVEMBER 15, 1979 AND RECORDED
DECEMBER 5, 1979 AS DOCUMENT 25268635 MADE BY METROPOLITAN TWO
ILLINOIS CENTER IN FAVOR OF AMERICAN NATIONAL BANK AND TRUST COMPANY
OF CHICAGO, AS TRUSTEE UNDER TRUST NO. 75802 TO UTILIZE CERTAIN
STRUCTURES OR PROPERTY DESCRIBED THEREIN TO SUPPORT STRUCTURES
ON PARCELS 1 AND 2, IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PARCEL 6:

RECIPROCAL EASEMENT FOR THE USE OF CONCOURSE LEVEL OF "TWO ILLINOIS
CENTER", AS CREATED BY RECIPROCAL EASEMENT AGREEMENT BY AND AMONG
METROPOLITAN TWO ILLINOIS CENTER, AN ILLINOIS GENERAL PARTNERSHIP;
AMERICAN NATIONAL BANK AND TRUST COMPANY OF CHICAGO, AS TRUSTEE
UNDER TRUST AGREEMENT DATED JUNE 11, 1971 AND KNOWN AS TRUST NO.
75802, AND AMERICAN NATIONAL BANK AND TRUST COMPANY OF CHICAGO, AS
TRUSTEE UNDER TRUST AGREEMENT DATED SEPTEMBER 1, 1979 AND KNOWN AS
TRUST NO. 46448, DATED FEBRUARY 2, 1982 AND RECORDED FEBRUARY 3, 1982 AS
DOCUMENT 26133433, IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

Permanent Real Estate Index Number(s): 17-10-304-020-0000
Address of Real Estate: 210 N. Stetson Avenue, Chicago, lllinois-60601



EXHIBIT B

SURVEY DEPICTION OF SUBWAY AREA
[SUBJECT TO FINAL SURVEY AND TITLE COMMITMENT]
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iStar - 210 N. Stetson - Vacation

1130.0006
001 (of 001)
CITY OF CHICAGO
ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT
AND AFFIDAVIT

SECTION I -- GENERAL INFORMATION

A. Legal name of the Disclosing Party submitting this EDS. Include d/b/a/ if applicable:

Check ONE of the following three boxes:

Indicate whether the Disclosing Party submitting this EDS is:
1. [x] the Applicant and property owner
OR
2. [ ] alegal entity currently holding, or anticipated to hold within six months after City action on
the contract, transaction or other undertaking to which this EDS pertains (referred to below as the
"Matter"), a direct or indirect interest in excess of 7.5% in the Applicant. State the Applicant’s legal
name:

OR
3. [ ] alegal entity with a direct or indirect right of control of the Applicant (see Section II(B)(1))
State the legal name of the entity in which the Disclosing Party holds a right of control:

B. Business address of the Disclosing Party: c¢/o iStar Inc.
1114 Avenue fo the Americas, 39th Floor

New York, NY 10036

C. Telephone: 212 405-4559 Fax: n/a Email: gGrandall@igtar.com
310 591-4524

D. Name of contact person: _gabriel S. Randall

E. Federal Employer Identification No. (if you have one):

F. Brief description of the Matter to which this EDS pertains. (Include project number and location of
property, if applicable):

Application for vacation of:
A right of the City of Chicago to the dedication of a north-south strip of land 4 feet
wide, generally bounded by East Water Street on the north, North Stetson Avenue on the

Eﬁg&,.Eﬁ?f.Lake Streef on, the south, and goréf> ichigan Avenue on the west.
. hlc lty agency or epartment 1S I‘equestmg t 1S K Eepartment of Trangportation

If the Matter is a contract being handled by the City’s Department of Procurement Services, please
complete the following:

Specification # n/a and Contract # y/a

Ver.2018-1 Page 1 of 15



SECTION II -- DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP INTERESTS
A. NATURE OF THE DISCLOSING PARTY

1. Indicate the nature of the Disclosing Party:

[ ]Person {x] Limited liability company

[ ]Publicly registered business corporation [ ] Limited liability partnership

[ ] Privately held business corporation [ 1 Joint venture

[ ] Sole proprietorship [ 1 Not-for-profit corporation

[ ] General partnership (Is the not-for-profit corporation also a 501(c)(3))?
[ ] Limited partnership [ ]1Yes [ 1No

[ ]Trust [ 1 Other (please specify)

2. For legal entities, the state (or foreign country) of incorporation or organization, if applicable:

Delaware.

3. For legal entities not organized in the State of Illinois: Has the organization registered to do
business in the State of Illinois as a foreign entity?

[x] Yes [ ]No [ ] Organized in Illinois
B. IF THE DISCLOSING PARTY IS A LEGAL ENTITY:

1.  List below the full names and titles, if applicable, of: (i) all executive officers and all directors of
the entity; (ii) for not-for-profit corporations, all members, if any, which are legal entities (if there
are no such members, write "no members which are legal entities"); (iii) for trusts, estates or other
similar entitics, the trustee, executor, administrator, or similarly situated party; (iv) for general or
limited partnerships, limited liability companies, limited liability partnerships or joint ventures,
each general partner, managing member, manager or any other person or legal entity that directly or
indirectly controls the day-to-day management of the Applicant.

NOTE: Each legal entity listed below must submit an EDS on its own behalf.

Name . Title
iStar, Inc. Member / Manager

(iStar, Inc. is publicly traded on the New York Stock Exchange - Ticker STAR).

2. Please provide the following information concerning each person or legal entity having a direct or
indirect, current or prospective (i.e. within 6 months after City action) beneficial interest (including
ownership) in excess of 7.5% of the Applicant. Examples of such an interest include shares in a
corporation, partnership interest in a partnership or joint venture, interest of a member or manager in a

Ver.2018-1 Page 2 of 15



limited liability company, or interest of a beneficiary of a trust, estate or other similar entity. If none,
state “None.”

NOTE: Each legal entity listed below may be required to submit an EDS on its own behalf.

Name Business Address Percentage Interest in the Applicant
iStar Inc. 1114 Ave of the Americas, 39 Flr., New York, NY 10036 100%

(istar, Inc. is publicly traded on.the New York Stock Exchange - Ticker STAR).

SECTION III -- INCOME OR COMPENSATION TO, OR OWNERSHIP BY, CITY ELECTED
OFFICIALS

Has the Disclosing Party provided any income or compensation to any City elected official during the
12-month period preceding the date of this EDS? [ ]Yes [x] No

Does the Disclosing Party reasonably expect to provide any income or compensation to any City
elected official during the 12-month period following the date of this EDS? [ ] Yes [x] No

If “yes” to either of the above, please identify below the name(s) of such City elected official(s) and
describe such income or compensation:

Does any City elected official or, to the best of the Disclosing Party’s knowledge after reasonable
inquiry, any City elected official’s spouse or domestic partner, have a financial interest (as defined in
Chapter 2-156 of the Municipal Code of Chicago (“MCC”)) in the Disclosing Party?

[ ]Yes [x] No

If "yes," please identify below the name(s) of such City elected official(s) and/or spouse(s)/domestic
partner(s) and describe the financial interest(s).

SECTION IV -- DISCLOSURE OF SUBCONTRACTORS AND OTHER RETAINED PARTIES

The Disclosing Party must disclose the name and business address of each subcontractor, attorney,
lobbyist (as defined in MCC Chapter 2-156), accountant, consultant and any other person or entity
whom the Disclosing Party has retained or expects to retain in connection with the Matter, as well as
the nature of the relationship, and the total amount of the fees paid or estimated to be paid. The
Disclosing Party is not required to disclose employees who are paid solely through the Disclosing
Party's regular payroll. If the Disclosing Party is uncertain whether a disclosure is required under this
Section, the Disclosing Party must either ask the City whether disclosure is required or make the
disclosure.

Ver.2018-1 Page 3 of 15



Name (indicate whether Business Relationship to Disclosing Party  Fees (indicate whether

retained or anticipated =~ Address  (subcontractor, attorney, paid or estimated.) NOTE:
to be retained) lobbyist, etc.) “hourly rate” or “t.b.d.” is

‘ not an acceptable response.
Daley and Georges, Ltd. (retained) 20 S. Clark St, Chicago Attorney $7,500 est.
Katten Muchin Rosenman LLP (retained) 525 W.Monroe St. Chicago Attorney $20,000 est.

(Add sheets if necessary)

[ 1 Check here if the Disclosing Party has not retained, nor expects to retain, any such persons or entities.

SECTION V -- CERTIFICATIONS
A. COURT-ORDERED CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE

Under MCC Section 2-92-415, substantial owners of business entities that contract with the City must
remain in compliance with their child support obligations throughout the contract’s term.

Has any person who 'directly or indirectly owns 10% or more of the Disclosing Party been declared in
arrearage on any child support obligations by any Illinois court of competent jurisdiction?

[ ]1Yes [ I1No [x] No person directly or indirectly owns 10% or more of the Disclosing Party.

If “Yes," has the person entered into a court-approved agreement for payment of all support owed and
is the person in compliance with that agreement?

[]Yes [ 1No
B. FURTHER CERTIFICATIONS

1. [This paragraph | applies only if the Matter is a contract being handled by the City's Department of
Procurement Services.] In the 5-year period preceding the date of this EDS, neither the Disclosing
Party nor any Affiliated Entity [see definition in (5) below] has engaged, in connection with the
performance of any public contract, the services of an integrity monitor, independent private sector
inspector general, or integrity compliance consultant (i.e., an individual or entity with legal, auditing,
investigative, or other similar skills, designated by a public agency to help the agency monitor the
activity of specified agency vendors as well as help the vendors reform their business practices so they
can be considered for agency contracts in the future, or continue with a contract in progress).

2. The Disclosing Party and its Affiliated Entities are not delinquent in the payment of any fine, fee,
tax or other source of indebtedness owed to the City of Chicago, including, but not limited to, water
and sewer charges, license fees, parking tickets, property taxes and sales taxes, nor is the Disclosing
Party delinquent in the payment of any tax administered by the Illinois Department of Revenue.

Ver.2018-1 Page 4 of 15



3. The Disclosing Party and, if the Disclosing Party is a legal entity, all of those persons or entities
identified in Section II(B)(1) of this EDS:

a. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily
excluded from any transactions by any federal, state or local unit of government;

b. have not, during the 5 years before the date of this EDS, been convicted of a criminal offense,
adjudged guilty, or had a civil judgment rendered against them in connection with: obtaining,
attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state or local) transaction or contract under a
public transaction; a violation of federal or state antitrust statutes; fraud; embezzlement; theft; forgery;
bribery; falsification or destruction of records; making false statements; or receiving stolen property;

c. are not presently indicted for, or criminally or civilly charged by. a governmental entity (federal,
state or local) with committing any of the offenses set forth in subparagraph (b) above;

d. have not, during the 5 years before the date of this EDS, had one or more public transactions
(federal, state or local) terminated for cause or default; and

e. have not, during the 5 years before the date of this EDS, been convicted, adjudged guilty, or found
liable in a civil proceeding, or in any criminal or civil action, including actions concerning
environmental violations, instituted by the City or by the federal government, any state, or any other
unit of local government.

4. The Disclosing Party understands and shall comply with the applicable requirements of MCC
Chapters 2-56 (Inspector General) and 2-156 (Governmental Ethics).

5. Certifications (5), (6) and (7) concern:
e the Disclosing Party;
e any “Contractor” (meaning any contractor or subcontractor used by the Disclosing Party in
connection with the Matter, including but not limited to all persons or legal entities disclosed
under Section IV, “Disclosure of Subcontractors and Other Retained Parties”);
e any "Affiliated Entity" (meaning a person or entity that, directly or indirectly: controls the
Disclosing Party, is controlled by the Disclosing Party, or is, with the Disclosing Party, under
common control of another person or entity). Indicia of control include, without limitation:
interlocking management or ownership; identity of interests among family members, shared
facilities and equipment; common use of employees; or organization of a business entity following
the ineligibility of a business entity to do business with federal or state or local government,
including the City, using substantially the same management, ownership, or principals as the
ineligible entity. With respect to Contractors, the term Affiliated Entity means a person or entity
that directly or indirectly controls the Contractor, is controlled by it, or, with the Contractor, is
under common control of another person or entity; .
e any responsible official of the Disclosing Party, any Contractor or any Affiliated Entity or any
other official, agent or employee of the Disclosing Party, any Contractor or any Affiliated Entity,
acting pursuant to the direction or authorization of a responsible official of the Disclosing Party,
any Contractor or any Affiliated Entity (collectively "Agents").
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Neither the Disclosing Party, nor any Contractor, nor any Affiliated Entity of either the Disclosing
Party or any Contractor, nor any Agents have, during the 5 years before the date of this EDS, or, with
respect to a Contractor, an Affiliated Entity, or an Affiliated Entity of a Contractor during the 5 years
before the date of such Contractor's or Affiliated Entity's contract or engagement in connection with the
Matter:

a. bribed or attempted to bribe, or been convicted or adjudged guilty of bribery or attempting to bribe,
a public officer or employee of the City, the State of Illinois, or any agency of the federal government
or of any state or local government in the United States of America, in that officer's or employee's
official capacity;

b. agreed or colluded with other bidders or prospective bidders, or been a party to any such agreement,
or been convicted or adjudged guilty of agreement or collusion among bidders or prospective bidders,
in restraint of freedom of competition by agreement to bid a fixed price or otherwise; or

c. made an admission of such conduct described in subparagraph (a) or (b) above that is a matter of
record, but have not been prosecuted for such conduct; or

d. violated the provisions referenced in MCC Subsection 2-92-320(a)(4)(Contracts Requiring a Base
Wage); (a)(5)(Debarment Regulations); or (a)(6)(Minimum Wage Ordinance).

6. Neither the Disclosing Party, nor any Affiliated Entity or Contractor, or any of their employees,
officials, agents or partners, is barred from contracting with any unit of state or local government as a
result of engaging in or being convicted of (1) bid-rigging in violation of 720 ILCS 5/33E-3; (2)
bid-rotating in violation of 720 ILCS 5/33E-4; or (3) any similar offense of any state or of the United
States of America that contains the same elements as the offense of bid-rigging or bid-rotating.

7. Neither the Disclosing Party nor any Affiliated Entity is listed on a Sanctions List maintained by the
United States Department of Commerce, State, or Treasury, or any successor federal agency.

8. [FOR APPLICANT ONLY] (i) Neither the Applicant nor any “controlling person” {see MCC
Chapter 1-23, Article I for applicability and defined terms] of the Applicant is currently indicted or
charged with, or has admitted guilt of, or has ever been convicted of, or placed under supervision for,
any criminal offense involving actual, attempted, or conspiracy to commit bribery, theft, fraud, forgery,
perjury, dishonesty or deceit against an officer or employee of the City or any “sister agency”; and (ii)
the Applicant understands and acknowledges that compliance with Article I is a continuing requirement
for doing business with the City. NOTE: If MCC Chapter 1-23, Article I applies to the Applicant, that
Article’s permanent compliance timeframe supersedes 5-year compliance timeframes in this Section V.

9. [FOR APPLICANT ONLY] The Applicant and its Affiliated Entities will not use, nor permit their
subcontractors to use, any facility listed as having an active exclusion by the U.S. EPA on the federal
System for Award Management (“SAM").

10. [FOR APPLICANT ONLY] The Applicant will obtain from any contractors/subcontractors hired
or to be hired in connection with the Matter certifications equal in form and substance to those in
Certifications (2) and (9) above and will not, without the prior written consent of the City, use any such
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contractor/subcontractor that does not provide such certifications or that the Applicant has reason to
believe has not provided or cannot provide truthful certifications.

11. If the Disclosing Party is unable to certify to any of the above statements in this Part B (Further
Certifications), the Disclosing Party must explain below:
N/A

If the letters "NA," the word "None," or no response appears on the lines above, it will be conclusively
presumed that the Disclosing Party certified to the above statements.

12. To the best of the Disclosing Party’s knowledge after reasonable inquiry, the following is a
complete list of all current employees of the Disclosing Party who were, at any time during the 12-
month period preceding the date of this EDS, an employee, or elected or appointed official, of the City
of Chicago (if none, indicate with “N/A” or “none”).

N/A

13. To the best of the Disclosing Party’s knowledge after reasonable inquiry, the following is a
complete list of all gifts that the Disclosing Party has given or caused to be given, at any time during
the 12-month period preceding the execution date of this EDS, to an employee, or elected or appointed
official, of the City of Chicago. For purposes of this statement, a “gift” does not include: (i) anything
made generally available to City employees or to the general public, or (ii) food or drink provided in
the course of official City business and having a retail value of less than $25 per recipient, or (iii) a
political contribution otherwise duly reported as required by law (if none, indicate with “N/A” or
“none”). As to any gift listed below, please also list the name of the City recipient.

N/A

C. CERTIFICATION OF STATUS AS FINANCIAL INSTITUTION

1. The Disclosing Party certifies that the Diéclosing Party (check one)
[ 1is [x] is not

a "financial institution" as defined in MCC Section 2-32-455(b).
2. If the Disclosing Party IS a financial institution, then the Disclosing Party pledges:
"We are not and will not become a predatory lender as defined in MCC Chapter 2-32. We further
pledge that none of our affiliates is, and none of them will become, a predatory lender as defined in
MCC Chapter 2-32. We understand that becoming a predatory lender or becoming an affiliate of a

predatory lender may result in the loss of the privilege of doing business with the City."
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[f the Disclosing Party is unable to make this pledge because it or any of its affiliates (as defined in
MCC Section 2-32-455(b)) is a predatory lender within the meaning of MCC Chapter 2-32, explain
here (attach additional pages if necessary):

N/A

If the letters "NA," the word "None," or no response appears on the lines above, it will be
conclusively presumed that the Disclosing Party certified to the above statements.

D. CERTIFICATION REGARDING FINANCIAL INTEREST IN CITY BUSINESS
Any words or terms defined in MCC Chapter 2-156 have the same meanings if used in this Part D.

1. In accordance with MCC Section 2-156-110: To the best of the Disclosing Party’s knowledge
after reasonable inquiry, does any official or employee of the City have a financial interest in his or
her own name or in the name of any other person or entity in the Matter?

t

[ ]1Yes [x] No

NOTE: If you checked "Yes" to Item D(1), proceed to Items D(2) and D(3). If you checked "No"
to Item D(1), skip Items D(2) and D(3) and proceed to Part E.

2. Unless sold pursuant to a process of competitive bidding, or otherwise permitted, no City elected
official or employee shall have a financial interest in his or her own name or in the name of any
other person or entity in the purchase of any property that (i) belongs to the City, or (ii) is sold for
taxes or assessments, or (iii) is sold by virtue of legal process at the suit of the City (collectively,
"City Property Sale"). Compensation for property taken pursuant to the City's eminent domain
power does not constitute a financial interest within the meaning of this Part D.

Does the Matter involve a City Property Sale?
[ ]Yes [ 1No

3. If you checked "Yes" to Item D(1), provide the names and business addresses of the City officials
or employees having such financial interest and identify the nature of the financial interest:

Name ' Business Address Nature of Financial Interest

4, The Disclosing Party further certifies that no prohibited financial interest in the Matter will be
acquired by any City official or employee.
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E. CERTIFICATION REGARDING SLAVERY ERA BUSINESS

Please check either (1) or (2) below. If the Disclosing Party checks (2), the Disclosing Party
must disclose below or in an attachment to this EDS all information required by (2). Failure to
comply with these disclosure requirements may make any contract entered into with the City in
connection with the Matter voidable by the City.

_x 1. The Disclosing Party verifies that the Disclosing Party has searched any and all records of
the Disclosing Party and any and all predecessor entities regarding records of investments or profits
from slavery or slaveholder insurance policies during the slavery era (including insurance policies
issued to slaveholders that provided coverage for damage to or injury or death of their slaves), and

the Disclosing Party has found no such records.

2. The Disclosing Party verifies that, as a result of conducting the search in step (1) above, the
Disclosing Party has found records of investments or profits from slavery or slaveholder insurance
policies. The Disclosing Party verifies that the following constitutes full disclosure of all such
records, including the names of any and all slaves or slaveholders described in those records:

SECTION VI -- CERTIFICATIONS FOR FEDERALLY FUNDED MATTERS

NOTE: If the Matter is federally funded, complete this Section VI. If the Matter is not
federally funded, proceed to Section VII. For purposes of this Section VI, tax credits allocated by
the City and proceeds of debt obligations of the City are not federal funding.

The Matter is not federally funded.

A. CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

1. List below the names of all persons or entities registered under the federal Lobbying
Disclosure Act of 1995, as amended, who have made lobbying contacts on behalf of the Disclosing
Party with respect to the Matter: (Add sheets if necessary):

(If no explanation appears or begins on the lines above, or if the letters "NA" or if the word "None"
appear, it will be conclusively presumed that the Disclosing Party means that NO persons or entities
registered under the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995, as amended, have made lobbying contacts on
behalf of the Disclosing Party with respect to the Matter.)

2. The Disclosing Party has not spent and will not expend any federally appropriated funds to pay
any person or entity listed in paragraph A(1) above for his or her lobbying activities or to pay any
person or entity to influence or attempt to influence an officer or employee of any agency, as defined
by applicable federal law, a member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee
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of a member of Congress, in connection with the award of any federally funded contract, making any
federally funded grant or loan, entering into any cooperative agreement, or to extend, continue, renew,
amend, or modify any federally funded contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

3. The Disclosing Party will submit an updated certification at the end of each calendar quarter in
which there occurs any event that materially affects the accuracy of the statements and information set
forth in paragraphs A(1) and A(2) above.

4. The Disclosing Party certifies that either: (i) it is not an organization described in section
501(c)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986; or (ii) it is an organization described in section
501(c)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 but has not engaged and will not engage in "Lobbying
Activities," as that term is defined in the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995, as amended.

5. If the Disclosing Party is the Applicant, the Disclosing Party must obtain certifications equal in
form and substance to paragraphs A(1) through A(4) above from all subcontractors before it awards
any subcontract and the Disclosing Party must maintain all such subcontractors' certifications for the
duration of the Matter and must make such certifications promptly available to the City upon request.

B. CERTIFICATION REGARDING EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

If the Matter is federally funded, federal regulations require the Applicant and all proposed
subcontractors to submit the following information with their bids or in writing at the outset of
negotiations. The Matter is not federally funded.

Is the Disclosing Party the Applicant?
[ ] Yes [ ] No The Matter is not federally funded.

If “Yes,” answer the three questions below:

1. Have you developed and do you have on file affirmative action programs pursuant to applicable
federal regulations? (See 41 CFR Part 60-2.)
[ ] Yes [ ] No The Matter is not federally funded.

2. Have you filed with the Joint Reporting Committee, the Director of the Office of Federal Contract
Compliance Programs, or the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission all reports due under the
applicable filing requirements?

[ ]Yes [ ]No [ ] Reports not required

The Matter is not federally funded.

3. Have you participated in any previous contracts or subcontracts subject to the
equal opportunity clause?

[ ] Yes [ | No The Matter is not federally funded.

If you checked “No” to question (1) or (2) above, please provide an explanation:

-—-
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SECTION VII -- FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGMENTS AND CERTIFICATION
The Disclosing Party understands and agrees that:

A. The certifications, disclosures, and acknowledgments contained in this EDS will become part of any
contract or other agreement between the Applicant and the City in connection with the Matter, whether
procurement, City assistance, or other City action, a\.nd are material inducements to the City's execution
of any contract or taking other action with respect to the Matter. The Disclosing Party understands that
it must comply with all statutes, ordinances, and regulations on which this EDS is based.

B. The City's Governmental Ethics Ordinance, MCC Chapter 2-156, imposes certain duties and
obligations on persons or entities seeking City contracts, work, business, or transactions. The full text
of this ordinance and a training program is available on line at www.cityofchicago.org/Ethics, and may
also be obtained from the City's Board of Ethics, 740 N. Sedgwick St., Suite 500, Chicago, IL 60610,
(312) 744-9660. The Disclosing Party must comply fully with this ordinance.

C. If the City determines that any information provided in this EDS is false, incomplete or inaccurate,
any contract or other agreement in connection with which it is submitted may be rescinded or be void
or voidable, and the City may pursue any remedies under the contract or agreement (if not rescinded or
void), at law, or in equity, including terminating the Disclosing Party's participation in the Matter
and/or declining to allow the Disclosing Party to participate in other City transactions. Remedies at
law for a false statement of material fact may include incarceration and an award to the City of treble
damages.

D. It is the City's policy to make this document available to the public on its Internet site and/or upon
request. Some or all of the information provided in, and appended to, this EDS may be made publicly
available on the Internet, in response to a Freedom of Information Act request, or otherwise. By
completing and signing this EDS, the Disclosing Party waives and releases any possible rights or
claims which it may have against the City in connection with the public release of information
contained in this EDS and also authorizes the City to verify the accuracy of any information submitted
in this EDS.

E. The information provided in this EDS must be kept current. In the event of changes, the Disclosing
Party must supplement this EDS up to the time the City takes action on the Matter. If the Matter is a
contract being handled by the City’s Department of Procurement Services, the Disclosing Party must
update this EDS as the contract requires. NOTE: With respect to Matters subject to MCC Chapter
1-23, Article [ (imposing PERMANENT INELIGIBILITY for certain specified offenses), the
information provided herein regarding eligibility must be kept current for a longer period, as required
by MCC Chapter 1-23 and Section 2-154-020.

Ver.2018-1 Page 11 of 15



CERTIFICATION

Under penalty of perjury, the person signing below: (1) warrants that he/she is authorized to execute
this EDS, and all applicable Appendices, on behalf of the Disclosing Party, and (2) warrants that all
certifications and statements contained in this EDS, and all applicable Appendices, are true, accurate
and complete as of the date furnished to the City.

215 North Michigan Owmer LLC
(Print or type exact legal name of Disclosing Party)

By: &'4—,9——

(Sign here)
(AABRIEL 5. R ANDALL

(Print or type name of person signing)

By: iStar Inc., its Manager
By:
(Print or type title of person signing)

Signed and sworn to before me on (date) /J\IO\IEM»'}E-I’L 1, 2019

at ,‘\JE,w ﬁforut_ County, /J@o %(UL (state).

Commission expires:

Jesus Rosado
Notary Public, State of New York
No. 01R06242246
Qualified in Bronx County 2
Commission Expires May 31, 2022
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CITY OF CHICAGO
ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT AND AFFIDAVIT
APPENDIX A

FAMILIAL RELATIONSHIPS WITH ELECTED CITY OFFICIALS
AND DEPARTMENT HEADS

This Appendix is to be completed only by (a) the Applicant, and (b) any legal entity which has a
direct ownership interest in the Applicant exceeding 7.5%. It is not to be completed by any legal
entity which has only an indirect ownership interest in the Applicant.

Under MCC Section 2-154-015, the Disclosing Party must disclose whether such Disclosing Party
or any "Applicable Party” or any Spouse or Domestic Partner thereof currently has a “familial
relationship” with any elected city official or department head. A “familial relationship” exists if, as of
the date this EDS is signed, the Disclosing Party or any “Applicable Party” or any Spouse or Domestic
Partner thereof is related to the mayor, any alderman, the city clerk, the city treasurer or any city
department head as spouse or domestic partner or as any of the following, whether by blood or
adoption: parent, child, brother or sister, aunt or uncle, niece or nephew, grandparent, grandchild,
father-in-law, mother-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, stepfather or stepmother, stepson or
stepdaughter, stepbrother or stepsister or half-brother or half-sister.

“Applicable Party” means (1) all executive officers of the Disclosing Party listed in Section
I1.B.1.a,, if the Disclosing Party is a corporation; all partners of the Disclosing Party, if the Disclosing
Party is a general partnership; all general partners and limited partners of the Disclosing Party, if the
Disclosing Party is a limited partnership; all managers, managing members and members of the
Disclosing Party, if the Disclosing Party is a limited liability company; (2) all principal officers of the
Disclosing Party; and (3) any person having more than a 7.5% ownership interest in the Disclosing
Party. “Principal officers” means the president, chief operating officer, executive director, chief
financial officer, treasurer or secretary of a legal entity or any person exercising similar authority.

Does the Disclosing Party or any “Applicable Party” or any Spouse or Domestic Partner thereof
currently have a “familial relationship” with an elected city official or department head?

[ ]Yes [x] No

If yes, please identify below (1) the name and title of such person, (2) the name of the legal entity to
which such person is connected; (3) the name and title of the elected city official or department head to
whom such person has a familial relationship, and (4) the precise nature of such familial relationship.
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CITY OF CHICAGO
ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT AND AFFIDAVIT
APPENDIX B

BUILDING CODE SCOFFLAW/PROBLEM LANDLORD CERTIFICATION
This Appendix is to be completed only by (a) the Applicant, and (b) any legal entity which has a direct
ownership interest in the Applicant exceeding 7.5% (an "Owner"). It is not to be completed by any

legal entity which has only an indirect ownership interest in the Applicant.

1. Pursuant to MCC Section 2-154-010, is the Applicant or any Owner identified as a building code
scofflaw or problem landlord pursuant to MCC Section 2-92-416?

[ ] Yes [x] No
2. Ifthe Applicant is a legal entity publicly traded on any exchange, is any officer or director of
the Applicant identified as a building code scofflaw or problem landlord pursuant to MCC Section
2-92-416?

[ 1Yes [ 1No [x] The Applicant is not publicly traded on any exchange.-
3. Ifyesto (1) or (2) above, please identify below the name of each person or legal entity identified

as a building code scofflaw or problem landlord and the address of each building or buildings to which
the pertinent code violations apply.
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CITY OF CHICAGO
ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT AND AFFIDAVIT
APPENDIX C

PROHIBITION ON WAGE & SALARY HISTORY SCREENING - CERTIFICATION

This Appendix is to be completed only by an Applicant that is completing this EDS as a “contractor” as
defined in MCC Section 2-92-385. That section, which should be consulted (www.amlegal.com),
generally covers a party to any agreement pursuant to which they: (i) receive City of Chicago funds in
consideration for services, work or goods provided (including for legal or other professional services),
or (ii) pay the City money for a license, grant or concession allowing them to conduct a business on
City premises.

On behalf of an Applicant that is a contractor pursuant to MCC Section 2-92-385, I hereby certify that
the Applicant is in compliance with MCC Section 2-92-385(b)(1) and (2), which prohibit: (i) screening
job applicants based on their wage or salary history, or (ii) seeking job applicants’ wage or salary
history from current or former employers. I also certify that the Applicant has adopted a policy that
includes those prohibitions.

[ ]Yes

[ INo

[v] N/A — I am not an Applicant that is a “contractor” as defined in MCC Section 2-92-385.
This certification shall serve as the affidavit required by MCC Section 2-92-385(c)(1).

If you checked “no” to the above, please explain.
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PART I

Ttem 1. Business
Exptanatory Note for Purpoeses of the "Safe Harbor Provisions" of Section 21E of the Sccurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended

Certain statements in this report, other than purely historical information, including estimites, projections, statements relating to our business plans.
objectives and cxpected operating results, and the assumptions upon which those statements are bascd, are "forward-looking statements™ within the meaning
of the Pnvate Sccunties Lingation Reform Act of 1995, Section 27A of the Secunties Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securiues Act”), and Section 21E of'the
Secutities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"). Forward-looking stalemenis arc included with respect 1o, among other things, 1Star Inc's
current business plan, busincss strategy, portfolio management, prospects and liquidity. These forward-looking statements generally we wdentiticd by the
words "believe,” "project,” "expect,” "anucipate,” "estimate," “intend," “strategy,” "plan,” "may,” “should,” "will," "would," "will be,” "will continue,” "will
likely result,” and similar expressions Forward-looking statements are based on current expectations and assumptions that are subjcet to risks and
uncertainties which may cause actual results or outcomes to differ matenally from thosc contained 1 the forward-lookiny statements. Imponant factors that
iStar Inc. believes might cause such ditferences are discussed in the section cntitled, "Risk Factors” mn Part 1, liem la of this Form 15-K or otherwise
accompany the forward-looking statcments contained in this Form 10-K. We undertake no obligation to update or ievise publicly any torwaid-tooking
statements, whether as a result of new information, future cvents or otherwisce. In assessing all forward-looking statements, readers are urged Lo read carctully
all cautionary statements contained in this Form 10-K.

Overview

iStar Inc. (references to the "Company,” "we," "us” or "our” refer to iStar Inc.) finances, invests in and develops real estate and redl estate related projects
as part of its fully-integrated investment platform. The Company also manages entities focused on ground lease ("Ground Lease") and net lease mvestments.
The Company has invested approximately $40 billion over the past two decades and is structured as a real estate investment trust ("REIT™) with a diversitied
portfolio tocuscd on larger asscts located in 1najor metropolitan markets. The Company's primary reportable business segments are real estate finance, net
leasc, operating properties and land and development
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As of December 31, 2018, based on our gross book value, including the camrying value of our equity method investments exclusive of accumulated
depreciation, our total investment portfolio has the following characterisucs: ~

Net Lease
47 4% SAFE
3.6%
Operating
- Properties
8.8%
) Llond &
" - Development
16.1%
Strategic
investments
Real Estale - 0.2%
Finance
23.9%

Repl Estate Fingnee: The real cstate finance portfolio is vomprised of senior and muezzanine real cstate loans that may be cither fixed-rate or variable-
rate and arc structured to mect the specific financing needs ot borrowers. The Company's portfolio also includes lcaschold loans, prefemred equity investments
and senior and subordinated loans to business entities and inay be cither secured or unsecured. The Company's loan portfolio includes whole loans and loan
parnticipations.

Net Lease: The net leasc portfolio includes the Company's net Icase and Giound Leasc investment strategics, both of which offcr stable long-tcrm cash
flows. We own net lease properties directly and through ventures that we manage. We operate our Ground Lease investment strategy primarily through Safety,
Income & Growth Inc. ("SAFE"), a publicly traded REIT focused exclusively on Ground Leases that we launched in 2017 and manage pursuant to a
management agreement. As of December 31, 2018, we owned approximately 41.8% of SAFE's outstanding common stock. On January 2, 2019, we made an
additional significant, direct equity investment in SAFE (refer to "ltem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis - Our Portfolio®). After giving effect to the
additional investment, we hold approximately 65.5% of SAFE's fully diluted equity. We also ditectly participate in Ground Leases by offering easchold
loans to SAFE's tenants.

Operating Properties: The vperating properties portfolio is comprised of commercial and residential properties, which represent a pool of assets across a
broad range of geographies and property types. The Company generally sceks o reposition or redevelop its transitional properties with the objective ot
maxunizing their value through the infusion of capital and/or concentrated asset management efforts. The commercial propertics within this portfolio include
office, retatl, hotel and other property types. The 1estdential properties within this portfolio are generally luxury condominium projects located in major U.S.
citics where the Company's strategy is to seil individual condominium units through retait distribution channels.

Land & Development: The land and development portfolio 1s primanly comprised of land cotitled for master planned communities and waterfront and
urb:n tfill land parccts located throughout the United States. Master planncd communitics represcent large-scalc residential projects that the Company will
entitle, plan and/or develop and may scll through retail channels to homebuilders or tn butk (*"MPCs"). Tbe communities also typically have a smaller portion
of their land reserved for fature commercial development. Waterfront parcels are generally entitled for residential projects and urban infill parcels are
generally entitled for mixed-use projects. The Company may develop these propertics itself, or in partnership with commercial real cstate developers, or may
scll the properties.

'l.)
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The Company's primary sources of revenues are operating lease income, which is comprised of the rent and reimbursements that (enants pay to iease the
Company's properties, interest income, which 1s the interest that borrowers pay on loans, and land development revenue tom lot and parced sales The
Company prmanly gencrates income through a “spread” or “margin,” which is the ditference between the revenucs net of property related expenses
gencrated trom leases and loans and inteiest expense. o addition, the Company generates ncome trom sales ot its real estate and income trom cquity in
camings of 1ts unconsolidated ventures.

Investment Strategy

Throughout our more than 20-ycar history, we have focused on providing capital to the commercial real estate sector 10 2 diffeientiated way that
emphasizes custom-taitored solutions over commoditized products We have adjusted the allocation of our capital and resources ttom tine to tne based on
market conditions. Qur Ground Lease strategy 1s the most recent exampice of our historical approach We believe that investment and financing opportunities
in the Ground Lease sector currently otfer more attractive nsk adjusted returns than other investinent opportuntties, and should enable us to benetit from the
unique insights and competitive advantages we have gained thiough the launch of SAFE.

In originating ncw investments, the Company's strategy 1s to focus on the following:

+  Targeting custom-tatlored opportunities where customers require flexible financial solutions and "one-call” respansiveness, such as a joint offenng
of a SAFE Ground Lease and an iStar leaschold loan;

*  Acquiring a fce simplc intcrest in a commercial property that we intend to bifurcate into 2 SAFE Ground Leasc to be acquued by SAFE and a
leasehold interest which we may sell or hold for investment;

«  Avoiding commodity businesses where there is significant direct competition from other providers of capital;

¢« Developing direct relationships with borrowers and corporate customers in addition to sourcing transactions through mtermediancs,

»  Adding value beyond sunply providing caprtal by offering borrowers and corporate customers specific lending experuise, fiexibility, centainty of
closing and continuing relationships beyond the closing of a particular financing transaction. '

«  Taking advantage of market anomalies in the real estate financing markets when, in the Company's view, credit 1s nuspriced by other providens of
capital; and

= Evaluating relative risk adjusted retums across multiple investment markets.

We have been actively sceking to reduce the level of our "legacy assets,” which refer primanly to propertics that we took back fiom defaulting
borrowers in the financial crisis. In 2018, we reduced that portfolio from 35% of our gross book valuc 10 20%. Under the guidance of a new President of Tand
and Development hired in 2018, we intend to accelerate the monetization of certain legacy assets, including several larger assets, in order to allow us to focus
niore capital and resources on ncw investments, particularly in the Ground Lease business.

Financing Strategy

The Company uses leverage to enhance its retum on assets. Although capital remains cheap and plentiful 1n the commercial real estate markets, recently
interest rates and the cquity markcts arc cxpcericncing greater volatility. We have taken a cautious approach in these conditions In the fourth quarter 2018, we
opportunistically nefinanced a net lease asset using non-recourse morigage debt that generated $115.5 milhion uf proceeds w us, net of closing costs, which
were used to redeem at par a portion of our senior notes due July 2019, The July 2019 scnior notes maturity was reduced from $770 0 mullion at the
beginning of 2018 to $375.0 million as of Dccember 31, 2018. Subsequent to December 31, 2018, we called for redemption the remaining $375 0 nullion
principal amount of July 2019 senior notes on the redemption date of March 7,2019.

Going forward, the Company will seck to raise capital through a variely of means, . which may include unsecured and secured debt financing, debt
refinancings, asset sales, sales of interests in business lines, issuances of equity, joint ventures and other third pany capital amangements A more detaited
discussion of the Company's current hquidity and capital resources is provided in [tem 7—"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operauvions.”
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Und«rwriting Process

The Company teviews investment opportuntties with 11s investment professionals, as well as representatives from its legal, credit, risk management and
capital markets departments. The Company has developed a process for screening potential investments calied the Six Point Methodology™. Through this
ptoprictary process, the Company internally cvaluates an investinent opportunity by: (1) evaluating the source of the opportuntty; (2) evaluating the quality
of the collateral, corporate credit ot lessee, as well as the market and industry dynamucs; (3) evaluating the borrower equity, corporate spansorship and/or
guarantors; (4) detemnning the opual legal and financial structuse for the transaction given its risk profile; (5) perfonming an alternative investment test;
. and {6) evaluating the liquidnty of the invesunent. The Company intends to use a similar screening methodology for leasehold loans to tenants of SAFE and
telated party wransactions with SAFE. The Company maintains an internal investment committee, and certain investments, including related paity
wansacuons and lcaschold loans to tenants of SAFL, are subject to the approval of the Board of Directors or a committee thercof.

Hedzing Strategy

The Company finances its business with a combination of fixed-rate and vanablc-rate debt and its asset base consists of fixed-ratc and variable-rate
mvestments. Its variable-ratc asscts and liabilitics arc intended to be matched apainst changes in variablc intcrest rates. This mcans that as intercst ratcs
increase, the Company eams more on 1ts varable-rate lending asscts and pdys more on its variable-rawe debt obligations and, conversely, as interest rates
decrease, the Company camns less on its variable-rate lending assets and pays less on its variable-rate dcbt obligations. When the Company's variable-rate
debt obligations differ from its vanable-rate lending assets, the Company may utilize derivative instruments to limit the impact of changing interest rates on
s net income. The Company also uses derivative instruments to himit 1ts exposure to changes in currency rates in respect of certain investments denominated

m forcign cuncncics. The derivative instraments the Company uscs arc typically in the form of intcrest ratc swaps, interest rate caps and forcign cxchange
contracts.

Polivies with Respect to Other Activities

The Company's invesunent, financing and corporate govemnance policies (including conflicts of interests policies) are managed under the ultimate
supervision of the Company's Board of Directors. The Company can amend, revise or eliminate these policies at any time without a vote of its shareholders.
The Company intends 1o originate and manage investiients 11 a manner consistent with the requirements of the Intemal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended
(the "Code") for the Company to qualify as a REIT.

Investinent Restrictions or Limitations

I

The Company does not have any presciibed allocation among investments or product lines. Instead, the Company focuses on corporate and real estate
credit underwriting to develop an analysis of the risk/reward trade-ofTs in determining the pricing and advisability of cach particular transaction.

The Company believes that it is not, and intends to conduct its operations so as not to become, regulated as an investment company under the
Investment Cowmpany Act. The Invesiment Company Act penerally exempts entities that are “primarily engaged in purchasing or otherwise acquiring
moitgages and other liens on and interests in real estate” (collectively, “Quahitying Interests"). The Company intends to rely on current interpretations of the
Secunties and Exchanpge Commission 1 an etfort to qualify for this exemption. Based on these interpretations, the Company, amoay other things, must
marntain al least 53% of its assets in Qualifying Interests and at least 80% of its assets in Qualifying Interests and other "real estate-related assets” (such as
mezzanine loans and unsecured investments in real estate entities) combined The Company's senior mortgages, real estate assets and cenain of its
subordinated mortgages generally constitute Qualifying Interests. Subject to the limitations on ownership of centain types of assets and the gross income tests
impused by the Code, the Company also may invest in the securities of other REITs, other entitics engaged in real estate activities or other issuers, including
for the purpose of exercising control over such entities.

Competition

The Company operates in a competitive market. Sce Item |a—Risk factors—"We compete with a variety of financivg and leasing sources for our
customers,” for a discussion of how we may be affected by competition

Regulation

The operations of the Company are subject, 1n certain instances, 10 supervision und regulation by state and federal governmental authorities and may
be subjcct to various laws and judicial and administrative dccisions imposing various rcquircments and restrictions, which, among other things: (1) regulatc
credit granting activities; (2) establish maximum interest raws, finance charges and other charges; (3) require disclosures to customers; (4) govem secured
transactions; (§) set collection, foreclosure, repossession and claims-bandling procedures and other trade practices; (6) govern privacy of customer
information; ’
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and (7) tegulate anti-terror and anti-money laundering activitics Although most states do not regulate commercial finance, cortamm states mmpose funiations
on 1nterest rates and other charges and on certain collection practices and creditor temedtes, and 1equire hiceasing of lendeis and financiers and adeguate
disclosure ol certain contract terms The Company s also requited o comply with certain provisions of the Equal Credit Opportunity Act that are applicabte
to commetrcial loans :

In the judgment of management, existing statutes and regulations have not had a matenal adverse effect on the business conducted by the Company Tt
1s not possible at this time 1o forccast the exact nature of any future legislation, regulations, judicial decisions, orders or interpretations, nor their tmpact upon
the future busincss, financial condition oricsults of operations or prospects of the Company.

The Company has elected and expects to continue to qualify to be taxed as a REIT under Section 856 thiough 860 of the Code As a REIT the
Company must generally distribute at least 90% of its net taxable income, excluding capital gains, to its shaieholders each year [n addinon, the Company
must disinbute 100% of 1s nel taxable income (including net capital gains) each year 1o eliminate U S. corpoiate federal income taxes payable by i1 REITs
are also subject to a number of organizational and operational requirements in order 1o efect and mamain RELT quahfication. These requitemens include
specific share ownership tests and asset and gross income tests. If the Company fails to quality as a REIT i any taxablc ycar, the Company will be subject 10
USS. federal tncome tax (including, for taxable years prior to 2018, any applicable altemative minununi tax) on i1§ net taxable income at regular corporate tax
rates. Even if the Company qualifies for taxation as a REIT, the Company may be subject to state and local taxes and to U.S fedemal income tax and exerse
tax on its undistributed income.

Code of Conduct

The Company has adopted a code of conduct that sets forth the principles of conduct and ethics to be followed by our directors, officers and employecs
(the "Code of Conduct"). The purpose of the Code of Conduct is to promote honest and ethical conduct, comphance with appticable governmental rules and
regulations, full, fair, accurate, timely and understandable disclosure in periodic reports, prompt intemal reporting of violatens of the Code of Conduct and a
culturé of honesty and accountability. A copy of the Code of Conduct has been provided ta each of our directors, officers and employees, who are required to
acknowledge that they have received and will comply with the Code of Conduct. A copy of the Company'’s Code of Conduct has been previously tiled with
the SEC and is incorporated by refeience in this Annual Report on Form 10-K as Exhibit 14.0. The Code of Conduct ts also available on the Company's
website at www.israr.com. The Company will disclose to shareholders material changes to its Code of Conduct, or any waivers for duectors ot executive
officers, 1f any, within four business days of any such cvent. As of December 31, 2018, there have been no amendments to the Code of Conduct and the
Company has not granted any waivers from any provision of thec Code of Conduct to any directors o1 executive officers

Employces

As of February 22, 2019, the Company had 166 employees and believes it has good relationships with its employces. The Company's employees are
oot represented by any collective bargaining agrecments.

Additional Information

We maintain a website at wwiw.istar.com The information on our website is not incorporated by reference in this teport, and our web address ts included
oaly as an inactive textual reference. In addition 10 this Annual Repost on Form 10-K, the Company files quarterly and speciat reports. proxy statements and
other information with the SEC. Through the Company's corporate website, www istar.com, the Company makes available tree of charge 1ts anaual proxy
statement, annual reports to stockholders. annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Fonn 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to
those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable atter the Company clectrontcally
files such material with, or furnishes it to, the SEC. These documents also miay be accessed through the SEC's electronic data gathertng, analysis and retneval
systemn via clectronic means, including on the SEC's homepage, which can be found at wwniisec.gov.

Ttem 1a, Risk Factors

In addition to the other information in this report, you should consider carefully the following risk factors 1o evaluating an investment 1n the
Company's securities. Any of these risks or the occunrence ol any one or more of the uncertamties described below could have a matenal adverse efiect on the
Company's business, financial condition, results ol operations, cash flows and market price of the Company's common stock The risks set {orth below speak
only 2s of the date of this repont and the Company disclaiiis any duty to update them except as tequited by iaw. For purposes ot tiese nisk tactois, the terms
“our Compapy,“ “we." "our” and "us" refer 10 1Star Inc. and 1ts consolidated subsidianes, unless the context indicates otherwise.
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Risks Related to Our Business
Changes in general economic conditions and vther factors vutside our control may adversely affect our.business.

Our success 1s generally dependent upon economic conditions in the United States, and in particular, the geographic arcas in which our investments are
located. Substantially all businesses, including ours, were negatively affected by the previous economic recession and resulting Hliquidity and volatility in
the credit and commercial teal estate markets. The commercial real estate and credit markets remain volatile and sensitive to factors outside our control,
including changes n interest rates, domestic political conditions, geopolitical conditions and other factors. It is not possible for us to predict whether these
trends will continue in the future or quantify the impact of these or other trends on our financial results, Deterioration in any of such factors could have a
matenal adverse effect on our financial performance. liquidity and our ability to meet our debt obligations.

Our credit ratings will impuct our borrowing costs.

Our borrowing costs and our access to the debt capital markets depend significantly on our credit ratings. Our unsecured corporate credit ratings from
major national credit rating agencies are currently below investment grade. Having below investment grade credit ratings increases our borrowing costs and
caused restictive covenants in our public debt instruments to become vperative. These restrictive covenants are described below in "Covenants n our
indcbtedness could limit our flcxibility and adversely affect our financial condition.” Thesc factors have adversely impucted our financial performance and
will continue to do so unless our credit ratings improve,

Cavenaunts in our indebtedness could limit our flexibility and adversely affect our financial condition.

Our outstanding unsecured debt securities contain corporate level covenants that include 2 covenant to maintain a ratio of unencumbered assets to
unsceured indebtedness of at least 1.2x and a resliction on debt incurrence based upon the eftect of the debt incurrence on our fixed charge coverage ratio. If
any of our covenants are breached and not cured within applicable cure periods, the breach could result in acceleration of our debt securities unless a waiver
or modification is agreed upon with the requisite percentage of the bondholders. Limitations on our ability to incur new indebtedness under the fixed charge
covirage ratio may limit the amount of new investments we make.

Our revolving credit facility with a maximum capacity of $325 0 million (our "2015 Revolving Credit Facility™) and our senior tenm loan with a
maximum capacity of $650.0 mitlion (our "2016 Senior Term Loan") contain certain covenants, including covenants relating to collateral coverage, dividend
payments, restrictions on fundamcntal changes, tiansactions with afTiliates, matters telating to the liens granted to the lenders and the delivery of information
to the lenders. In particular. our 2016 Senior Term Loan requires the Company to maintain collateral coverage of at least 1.25x outstanding borrowings on
the racility and our 2015 Revolving Credit Facility requires us to maintain both collateral coverage of at least 1.5x outstanding borrowings on the facility
and i consolidated ratio ol cash flow to fixed charges of at least 1.5x. We may not pay common dividends if the Company is in defauh under the 2016 Senior
Term Loan ot the 2015 Revolving Credit Facility or would fail to compty with the covenants in such agreements after giving effect to the dividend.

Our 2016 Senior Term Loan and 2015 Revolving Credit Facility contain cross default provisions that would allow the lenders to declare an event of
default and accelerate ourindebtedness to them if we fail to pay amounts due in respect of our other recourse indebtedness in excess of specified thresholds or
it the lenders under such other indebtedness are otherwise pennitted to accelerate such indebtedness tor any reason. The indentures governing our unsecured
public debt secunties penmit the bondholders to declare an event of defaulr and accelerate our indebtedness to them if cur other recourse indebtedness in
excess of specified thresholds is not paid at tinal matwity or it such indebtedness is accclerated. A default by us on our indebtedness would have a material
adverse etfect on our business, liquidity and the market price of our common stock.

We have significant indebtedness and funding conunitments and limitations on our liquidity and ability te raise capital may adversely affect us.

Sufficient liquidity is critical to our ability to grow and to meet our scheduled debt payments and our funding commitments to borrowers. We have
relied on proceeds from the issuance of unsecured debt, sccured borrowings, repayments fiom our loan assets and proceeds front assct sales to fund our
opeiations and meet our debt maturities, and we expect to continue to rely primarily on these sources of liquidity for the foresecable future. While we had
access to various sources of capital in 2018, our ability to access capital in 2019 and beyond will be subject to a number of factors, many of which are outside
of aur control, such as general economic conditivns, changes in mterest rates and conditions prevailing 1n the credit and real estate markets, There can be no
assurance that we will have access to liquidity when needed or on tenms that are acceptable to us. We may also encounter difficulty in selling assets or
executing capital raising strategies on acceptable terms in a timely manner, which could impact our ability to make scheduled repayments on our outstanding
debu. Failure to repay or refinance our borrowings as they come due would be an event of default under the relevant debt instruments, which could result in a
c10s~ default and acceleration of our other outstanding
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debt obligations Fadure to meet funding commitments could cause us to be in default of our financing commitments to bonowers Any ol the loteguig
could have a matenal adverse effect on our business, liquidity and the market pnce of our common stock.

We muay utilize derivative instruments to hedge risk, which may adversely affect vur borrowing cost and expose us to other risks.

The denivative instruments we imay usc ate typicatly in the form of interest rate swaps, interest rate caps and fotergn exchange contracts. Inteicst rate
swaps effectively change vanable-rate debt obligations to fixed-rate debt obligavions or fixed-rate debt obligations to vanable-tate debt obligauons, Interest
rate caps himit our exposure to rising interest rates. Foreign exchange contracts limit or offset our exposure to changes in cunency rates in respect of cenain
investments denominated in foreign currencies.

Our use of derivative instruments also 1nvolves the nsk that a counterparty to a hedging arrangement could detault on tts obligation and the nsk that
we may have to pay centain costs, such as transaction fees or breakage costs, i a hedging arrangement s tennuinated by us. As a matter of pohey, we entet into
hedging arangements with counterpartics that are large, creditworthy financial institations typically rated at least "A/A2" by S&P and Moody's, respectively

Developing an cffective strategy for dealing with movements in interest rates and foreign currencies is complex and no strategy can completely msulate
us from risks associated with such flucwuations. There can be no assurance that any hedging activities will have the desired beneficial impact on outesults of

opcrations or financial condition
Significant increases in interest rates could have an adverse effect on our operating results.

Our operating results depend in part on the ditference between the interest and related income eamed on our assets and the interest expensce tncuited in
connection with our interest bearing liabilities. Changes in the general level of interest rates prevailing in the financral markets will aftect the spread between
our interest eaming assets and interest bearing liabilities subject to the impact of interest rate floors and caps, as well as the amounts ot Noating rale asscts and
liabilities. Any significant compression of the spreads between interest caming asscts and interest bearing liabisties could have a matenial adverse effect on
us. While interest rates remain low by historical standards, rates have recently risen and are yenerally expected o rise in the coming years, although there as
no certainty as to the amount by whuch they may rise. In the event of a significant rising interest 1ate envitonment, rates could exceed the interest rate tloors
that exist on certain of our floating rate debt and create a mismatch between our floating rate loans and our floating rate debt that could have a sigmificant
adverse effect on our operdting results. An increase in interest rates could also, among other things, reduce the value of vur fixed-rate intetest bedring dasets
and our ability to realize gains trom the sale of such asscts. In addition, rising interest rates tend to negatively impact the residential mongage market, which
1n tum may adversely affect the value of and demand for our land assets, including our residential development projects Interest rdtes dare highly senstive to
many factors, including governmental monctary and tax policics, domestic and international cconomic and political condiuons, and other fuctots beyond vur
control.

Changes in the method for determining LIBOR or a replacement of LIBOR may affect the value of the financial obligations to be held or issued by us that
are linked to LIBOR and could affect our results of operations or financial condition.

In July 2017, the UK Financial Conduct Authonty announced that it intends to stop persuading or compelling bunks to submit LIBOR rates after
2021. We are unable to predict the effect of any changes, any cstablishment of alternative reference rates or any other refonns 1o LIBOR o1 any replacement off
LIBOR that may be enacted in the United Kingdom or clsewhere. Such changes, reforms or replacements relating to LIBOR could have an advesse impact on
the market for or value of any LIBOR-linked securities, loans, derivatives and other financial obligations or extensions ot credit held by or due 10 us or on our
overal! financial condition or results of operations.

We are requived to make a number of judgments in applying accounting policies, und different estimates and assumptions could result in changes 0 our
financial condition and results of vperations.

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change. underlie owr determination of the reserve for loan losses, which is based
pnmanly on the estimated fair vatue of loan collateral, as well as the valuation of real estate assets and deferred tax assets While we have identitied those
accounting policies that are considered critical and have procedures in place to facilitate the associated judgments, different assumptions 1n the application
of these policies could have a material adverse effect on our financial performance and results of operations and actual 1esults may diiler matenally fiom our
estimates.

The carrying values of our assets held for investment are not detevmined based upon the piices at which they could be sold currently. We have recognized
impairments as a result of selling or marketing legacy assets for sale, or re-evaluating iexpected cash flows from legacy assets, and there can be no
assurance that we will not recognize more impairments in the future on legacy und non-legacy assets.

As discussed further in the notes to our consolidated financial statements, we record our 1eal cestate and land and development assets at cost less
accumulated depreciation and amortization. If we hold a property for use or investment, we will only review it
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for impairment in value if events o changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the propenty may not be recoverable, based on
mantgement's detennination that the aggicpate future cash flows to be gencrated by the asset (taking into accouat the anticipated holding period of the assct)
15 less than the camrying value. Management's estimates ot cash tlows considers lactars such as expected future operating tncome trends, as well as the eftects
of demand, competition and other economic factors  The canymg values of our real estate and land and development assets are not indicative of the pnces at
which we would be able to sell the properties, 1t we had to do so betore the end of their intended holding penod. If we changed our investment intent and
decided to scll a property that was being held for investment, including in distressed circumstances as a means of raising liquidity, there can be no assurance
that we would not realize losses on such sales, which losses could have a matenal adverse effect on our business, financial results, liquidity and the market
price of our comunon stock We intend to accclerate the monctization of assets in our legacy portfolio, including cenain larger assets, and our decisions to do
so resulted in our recognizing significant impaiments in 201 8. We also recogmized additional impaimments on legacy assets in 2018 from a re-cvaluation of
expected cash tlows tfrom certain legacy assets (refer ta "ltemt 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis - Our Portfolio™). We continue to hold other legacy
asscts for investment, and there can be no assurance that we will not recognize impaimment on such asscts, or non-legacy asscts in the future.

Chunges in accounting rules will affect onr financial reporting.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (*FASB") has 1ssued new accounting standards that will affect our financial reporting.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments—-Credit Losses- Mcasurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments ("ASU
2016-13%) which was issued o provide financial siatemeni users with more decision-useiui information about the expected credit losses on financial
mnstiuments held by a reporting entity. This amendment replaces the incurred loss impairment methodology in cutrent GAAP with a methodology that reflects
cxpeeted credit losses and requires consideration of a broader range of reasonable and supportable information to inform credit loss estimates. ASU 2016-13
15 effective for interim and anoual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Early adoption is permitted for interim and annual reporting periods
beginning after December |5, 2018. Management doces not believe the guidance will have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial
statements

In February 2016, the FASB 1ssued ASU 2016-02, Leases ("ASU 2016-02"), and in July 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-11, Leases ("ASU 2018-11"),
to address two requircments of ASU 2016-02. ASU 2016-02 and ASU 2018-11 arc effective for interm and annual reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2018. ASU'2016-02 requires the recognition of lease assets and lease liabilities by lessees for those leases classified as operating or finance
leases For operating and finance leases, a lessee will be required to recognize a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, initially measured at the present value
of the lease payments, in its statement of financial position. Lessees under operating leases will be required to recognize a single lease cost, calculated so that
the cost ot the lease is altocated over the lease tenm gencrally on a straight-line basis, and classify all cash payments within operating activities in its
statemient of cash flows Lessees under finance leases will be required to recognize interest expense on the lease liability (under the effective interest method)
and amortization expense of the right-of~use assei (generally on a straight line basis), each reflected separately in its statement of operations. For operating
lease arrangements for which we are the fessee, primarily under leases of office space and certain ground leases, we expect the adoption of ASU 2016-02 to
result 1n the tecognition of a right-of-usc asset and lease liability on our consolidated balance sheets. We do not expect the right-of-use asscts or lease
liabilities 1o be matenal to our balance sheet. The accounting applied by us as a lessor will be mostly unchanged from that applied under previous GAAP.

Management has decided to elect the practical expedient package that allows us: (a) to not reassess whether any expirved ot existing contracts
entered into prior to January 1, 2019 are or contain leascs; (b) to not reassess the lease classification for any expired or existing leases entered into prior to
January 1, 2019; and () to not teassess nitial direct costs for any expired or existing leases entered into prior 1o January 1,2019. In addition, we will elect to
not record on our consolidated balance sheets leases whose term is less than 12 months at lease inception.

ASU2018-11 amends ASU 2016-02 so that: (a) entilies may elect to not recast the comparative periods presented when transitioning to ASC 842 by
atlowiny entitics to change thetr initial application to the béginning of the period of adoption; and (b) provides Iessors with a practical expedient to not
sepacate non-lease components from the associated lease component of the contractual payments if centain conditions are met. Management has decided to
elect both of these provisions.

Changes in accounting standards could affect the comparability of our reported results with prior periods and our ability to comply with financial
covenants under our debt instruments. We may also need to change our accounting systems and processes 1o enable us to comply with the new standards,
which may be costly.
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For additional information regarding new accounting standaids, refer to Note 3 to our consohdated (inancial statements under the heading "New
accounnng pronouncenients.”

Our reserves for loan losses may prove inadequate, which could have a muterial adverse effect on our financial results.

We maintain loan loss rescrves to offset potential future lasses. Our general loan lass reserve teflects management's then-cunent estination ot the
probability and seventy oflosses within ow portfohio In addition, our detenmination of asset-specific loan toss 1eserves telies on matenal estimates tegarding
the fair value of loan colfateral. Estumation of ultimate loan losses, provision expenses and loss reserves is a complex and subjective process As such, theie
can be no assurance that management's judgment wall prove to be correct and that reserves will be adequate over time Lo protect against potential futuie
losses. Such losses could be caused by factors including, but not limited to, unanticipated adverse changes in the economy or events adversely atlecung
specific asscts, borrowers, industries in which our bortowers operate ot markets in which out bouowers or their pioperties are located. In particular, duning the
previous financial cosis, the weak economy and disruption of the credit markets adversely 1mpacted the abihity and wilhngness of many of vur borrowes 10
service their debt and refinance our loans 1o them at maturity. If our reserves for credit losses prove madequate we may suffer addivons! losses which would
have a matenal adverse effect on our financial performance, liquidity and the market price of our conunon stock

We have suffered losses when a borrower defaults on a loan and the underlying collateral value is not sufficient, and we may suffer additional losses in the
Sutare.

We have suffered losses ansing from borrower defaults on our loan assets and we may sufler additional losses in the futurc. In the cvent of a default by.a
borrower on a non-recourse loan, we will only have recourse to the real estate-related assets collateralizing the loan. If the underlying collateral value 1s less
than the loan amount, we will suffer a loss. Conversely, we sometimes make loans that arc unsecured or are secured only by equily interests 1n the bonowing
entitics, Thesc loans are subject to the risk that other lenders may be directly secured by the real estate assets of the borrower In the event of a detault, those
collateralized lenders would have priority over us with tespect to the proceeds of a sale of the underlying real estate. In cases desenbed abuve, we may lack
control over the underlying asset collateralizing our loan or the undeilying assets of the bortower pnor o a default. and as a result the value of the collateral
may be reduced by acts or omissions by owners or managers of the asscts.

We sometimes obtain individual or corporate guarantees from borrowers or their afliliates In cases where guarantees are not fully or partially sceuted.
we typically rely o financial covenauts from bonowers and guarantors which are designed to requite the bomrower or guarantot to maintain certan levels of
creditworthiness.- Where we do not have recourse Lo specitic collateral pledged to satisly such guuruntees or recowrse loans, or where the value ol the
-collateral proves insofficient, we will only have recourse as an unsceured crediton to the gencrat assets of the borrower or guarantor, some or all of which may
be pledged 1o satisty other lenders. There can be no assurance that a borrower or guarantor witl comply with its linancial covenants, or that sufficient assets
will be available to pay amounts owed (0 us under our foans and guarantees As a 1esult of these factors, we may suffer additional losses which could have a
material adverse etfect on our financial perfonnance, liquidity and the market price of our cormumnon stock.

In the event of a burrower banknuptey, we may not have full recourse to the assets of the borrower in order o satisfy our luan. In addibion, certwn of our
loans arc subordinatc to other debts of the borrower. If'a borrower defaults on our loan or on debt scnior to out loan, or in the cvent of a bonower bankruptey,
our loan will be satisficd only after the senior debt receives payment. Where debt sentor to our foan exists, the presence ofinterereditor amangements may
limit our ability to amend our loan documents, assign our loans, accept prepayments, exercise our remedies (through “"standstill” periods) and control
decistons made in bankruptcy proceedings relating to borrowers. Bankruptcy and borrower litigation can signrticantly mercase collection costs and losses
and the time necessary o acquire title to the underlying collateral, during whieh time the collateral may dechine in value, cdusing us o suffer additonal
losscs.

If the value of collateral underlying our toan declines or interest rates nciease dunng the term of our loan, a boriower may not be able 1o obtain the
necessary funds to repay our loan at maturity through refinancing. Decreastng collateral value and/or increasing interest rates may hinder a bonower's ability
1o refinance our loan because the underlying propenty cannot satisfy the debt service coverage requirements necessary to obtain new financing If a borower
is unable to repay our loan at matunty, we could suffer additional loss which may adversely impact our financial performance.

Our expectations as 1o the potential size of the market for Ground Lease transactions and the growth of SAFE may prove to be incorrect.

‘We have made a significant investment in SAFE and the Ground Leasc business. The achicvement ot our investment objectives tor the Ground Lease
business depends, in large part, on our ability, as SAFE's manager, to grow SAFE's purtfolio. We cannot assure vou that the size of the maket for Gro
ieases will meet our estimates Potential tenants may preter to own the land underlying the improvements they intend to develop, rehabilitate or own In
addition, as and when interest rates increase,
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there may be less activity generally moreal estate transactions, including leasing. development and financing, and less financing available for potential
icnants to finance their leaschold interests. If the Ground Leasce busiaess does not achicve our investment objectives, the value of our 1nvesiment 1n SAFE
mdy dechne matenally and/or SAFE may reduce 1ts distributions to stockholders, including us.

We 1uay acquire a commerciulproperly"wirh the intent to sell the land 1o SAFE and to sell or lease the leasehold intevest to a third party. If we are unable
to sell or lease the leaschold interest, we will be exposed to the risks of ownership of operating propertics.

We may acquire commercial properties with the intent to separate the property into an ownership interest in land that is sold to SAFE and an interest in
the buildings and improvements thereon that is sold or leased to a third party. There may be instances wheic we are unable to find a purchaser or lessee for the
mprovements. in which case we will be subject to the risks of owning operating properties.

The ownership and operation of conumetcial properties will expose us to risks, including, without limitation:

- adverse changes tn intemational, regional or local economic and demographic conditions;

+  tenant vacancics and market pressures 1o offer tenant incentives 1o sign or renew leases;

«  adverse changes in the financial position or liquidity of tenants;

= the inability to collect rent from tenants;

»  lenant baoknuptcies,

higher costs resultiog from capital expenditures and property operating expenses;

cwvil disturbances, humcanes and other natural disasters, or terrorist acts or acts of war, which may result tn uninsured or underinsured losses;
+  liabilitics under envitonmental laws;

«  nsks of loss from casualty ot condemnation;

changes in, and changes in enlorcement of, laws, regulations and govemmental policies, including, without limitation, health, safety,
environmental, zoning and tax laws; and .

+  theother risks descnbed under "We are subject to additional risks associated with owning and developing propenty."

Upon taking ownership of’'a commercial property, we may be required Lo contribute ownership of the land 1o a taxable REIT subsidiary ("TRS"), which
would subscquently seck (o sell the land to SAFE and lease or sell a leasehold interest in such commercial property te a third party. Any gain from the salc of
land would be subject to corporate income tax.

We ure subject to additional risks associated with loun participations.

Some of our loans are participation interests or co-lender amangements in which we sharc the' rights, obligations and bencfits of the loan with other
lenders. We may need the consent of these panies to exercise our rights under such loans, including rights with respect to amendment of loan documentation,
cnforcoment procecdings in thie cvent of default and the institution of, and control over, forcclosure proccedings. Similarly, a majority of the participants may
be able Lo take actions to which we object but to which we will be bound if our participation interest represents a minority interest. We may be adversely
affected by this lack ot tull control.

We ure subject to additional risk associated with owning and developing real estate.

We own a number of asscts that previously served as collateral on detaulted loans. These assets are predominantly land and development asscts and

opcrating propertics These assets expose us to additional risks, including, without limitation:

» We must incur costs 1o carry these assets and in some cases make repairs to defects 1n construction, make improvements to, or complete the assets,
which requires additional liquidity and results in additional expenses that could exceed our original estimates and impact our operating results.
Real estate projects are not hquid and, to the extent we need to raise liquidity through asset sales, we may be limited in our ability to sell these assets
10 a short-time (rame.
Uncertainty associated with economic conditions, rezoning, obtaining governmental permits and approvals, concerns of conununity associations,
reliance on third party conuractors, increasing commodity costs and threatened or pending litigation may materially delay our completion of
rehabilitation and development activities and materially increase their cost to us.
The values of our real estate investments are subject to a number of factors outside of our control, including changes in the general economic
climate, changes in 1nterest rates and the availabilny of attractive financing, over-building or decreastng demand in the markets where we own
nd changes ie law and gevemmental regelations.
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The residential market has experienced significant downturns that could recur and adversely affect us.

As of December 31, 2018, we owned laod and residential condominiums with a net camying value uf $618.8 nmllion. The housing market 1n the United
States has previously been affected by weakness in the economy. high unemployment levels and tow consumer confidence It 1s pussible another duwntum
could occur again in the near future and adverscly unpact our portfolio, and accoidingly out financial performance. In addition, nsing interest rates tend to
negatively impact the residential mortgage market, which in tum may adversely affect the value of and demand for our land assets including ow residential
development projects.

We may experience losses if the creditworthiness of our tenants deteriorates and they are unable to meet their lease obligations.

We own propertics Icased to tenants of our real cstate asscts and receive rents from tenants during the contracted term of such leascs. We underwate the
credit of prospective borrowers and tenants and often require them to provide some form of credit support such as corporate guarantees, letters of credit and/or
cash sceurity deposits. Although pur loans and real estate assels are geographically diverse and the burrowers and tendnts vperale in a varicty of indusirics, 1o
the extent we have a significant concentration ot interest or operating lcase revenues from any single borower or customer, the mability of that bonower or
tenant to make its payment could have a matenal adverse effect on us. As of December 31, 2018, our five largest borrowers or tenants of net fedse dssets
collectively accounted for approximatcly 14.4% ot our 2018 rcvenucs, of which no single customer accounts tor more than 6.7%. A tcnant's ability to pay
rent is determined by its creditworthiness, among other factors. If a tenant's credit deteriorates, the tenant may default on uts obligations undes our lease and
may also become bankrnupt. The banknuptey or insolvency ol our tenants or other failure to pay 15 bikely to adversely affect die income produced by our real
cstate asscts. 1f a tenant defaulis, we may experience delays and incur substantial costs 1n enforcing our nights as landtord If a tenant files tor bankruptey, we
may not be able to evict the tenant solely because of such bankruptey or failure to pay. A court, however, may-authonize a tenant to 1eject and termingte 1ts
lcasc with us. In such a casc, our claim against the tcnant for unpaid, futurc rent would be subject to a statutory cap that might be substanually less than the
remaining rent owed under the lease. In addition, certain amounts paid to us within 90 days prior to the tenant's bankruptey filing could be 1equued to be
returned to the tenant's bankruptcy estate. Tn any cvent, it is highly uniikely that a bankrupt or insolvent tenant would pay in full amounts it ovwes us under a
leasc that it intends to 1cject. In other circumstances, where a tenant's financial condition has become imparred, we may agree to partially or wholly termunate
the lease in advance of the termination date 1n consideranon for a lease termination fee that is likely less than the otal contractual 1enta] amount. Without
regard to the manncer in which the lcasc tcrmination occurs, we arc likcly to incur additional costs tn the form of tenant improvements and Jeasing
commissions in our efforts to lease the space (o a new tenant. In any of the foregoing circumstances, our financial performance could be materially adversely
affected. -

We are subject to risks relating 10 our assef concentration.

Our portfolio consists primarnily of real estate and commercial real estate toans which are generully diversitied by asset type, obhgor propenty type and
geographic location Refer to "ltem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis - Portfolio Overview" for our asset concentrations by propenty type and
geographic location. Many property types were advessely atlected by the previous economuc recession and we may sufler additional losses on our assets due
Lo these concentrations

Lease expirations, lease defaults und lease terminations may adversely affect our revenue.

Lease expirations and lease terminations may result in reduced revenues if the lease payments received from replacement tenants are less than the lease
payments received from the expiring or teminating corporate lenants. In addition, lease defaults or lease terminations by ane ot mote significant tenants ot
the failure of tenants under expiring leases to elect to renew their leases could cause us to expenence long periods of vacancy with no revcnue trom a facility
and to incut substantial capital expenditures and/or lease concessions 1n o1der o obtain replacement tenants. Leases representing appioximately [4.1% of
our in-place operating leasc income are scheduled to expire during the next five years.

We compete with a variety of financing and leasing sources for our customers.

The financial services industry and commercial real estate markets are highly compentive and have become mote competitive in recent yeas. Qur
competitors include finance companies, other REITs, commeicial banks and thrilt institutions, investment bauks and hedge finds, among otlicrs. Our
competitors may scek to compete aggressively on a number of factors including transaction pricing, terms and structure We may have ditficulty competing
to the cxtent we are unwilling to match our competitors' deal terms in order to maintain our interest margins and/or credit standards To the extent that we
match competitors' pricing, tenns or structure, we may experience decreased interest margins and/or increased risk of credit tosses, which could have a
matenal adverse effect on our financial performance, hquidity and the market pnce of our common stock.
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We fuce significant competttion within our net leasing business from other owners, operators and developers of properties, many of which own
propertics similar to ours in markets where we operate Such competition may affect our ability to attract and retain tenants and reduce the rents we arc able to
charge These compeling properties may have vacancy rates higher than our properties, which may result in their owners offering lower rental rates than we
wouid or providing greater tenant impiovement allowances or other leasing concessions. This combination of circumstances could adversely affect our
teveauces and financtal porformance.

We are subject to vertain risks associated with investing in real estate, including potential liabilities under environmental laws and risks of loss fiom
weaiher conditions, man-made or natural disasters, climate change and terrorism.

Under various U S. federal, state and local enviionmental laws, ordinances and regulations, a current or previous owner of real estate (including. in
cortn circumstances, a secured lender that suceeeds to ownership or control of a propesty) may become liable for the costs of removal o1 remediation of
certzun hazardous or toxic substances at, on, under or in its propenty. Those laws typically impose cleanup responsibility and liability without regard to
whether the owner or control party knew of or was 1esponsible for the release or presence of such hazardous or toxic substances. The costs of investigation,
remediation ot temoval of those substances may be substanual. The owner or control parly of a site may be subject to common law claims by third parties
based on damages and costs resulting from environmental contamination emanating from a site. Certain environmental laws also impose liability in
conucction with the handling of or exposurc to asbestos-containing natenals, pursuant to which third partics may scek recovery from owners of real
properties for personal injunes associated with asbestos-containing materials. While a secured lender is not fikely to be subject to these forms of
environmental liability, when we forectose on real property, we become an owner and are subject to the risks of environmental liability. Additionally, our net
lcasc assets require our tenants to undertake the obligation for environmental compliance and indemnify us from liability with respect thereto. There can be
1o assurance thai our tenants wiii have sufficient resources to satisfy their obiigations to us.

Weather conditions and man-made or natural disasters such as huiricanes, tornadoes, earthquakes, floods, droughts, fires and other environmental
conditions can damage properties"we own. As of December 31, 2018, approximately 16% of the carrying value of our assets was located in the westem and
northwestern United States, geograpbic arcas at higlier risk for carthquakes. Additionally, we own properties located near the coastline and the value of our
properties will potenually be subject to the risks associated with long-tlerm effects of climate change. A significant number of our properties are located in
major urban arcas which, in rccent years, have been high risk geographical arcas for terrorism and threats of terrorism. Certain forms of terorism including,
but not limited to, nuclear, biological and chiermcal errorism, political risks, environmental hazards and/or Acts of God may be deemed to fall completely
outside the gencral coverage limits of our insurance policics or may be uninsurable or cost prohibitive to justify insuring against. Furthenmore, if the US.
Tenvrism Risk Insurance Program Reauthorization Act is repealed or not extended or renewed upon its cxpiration, the cost for terrorism insurance coverage
may 1ncrease and/or the terms, conditions, exclusions, retentions, limits and sublimits of such insurance may be materially amended, and may ceffectively
deciease the scope and availability of such insurance to the point where it is eftectively unavailable. Future weather conditions, man-made or natural
disasters, effects of climate change or acts of terrorism could adversely impact the demand for, and value of, our assets and could also directly impact the
value of our assets through damage, desiruction or loss, and could thereafler matenially impact the availability or cost of insurance to protect against these
cvents. Although we believe our owned real estatc and the properties collateralizing our loan asscts are adequately covered by insurance, we cannot predict at
this ume il we or our borrowers will be able to obtain appropriate coverage at a reasonable cost in the future, or if we will be able to continue to pass along all
ol the costs of insyrance to our tenants. Any weather conditions, man-madc or natural disasters, terrorist attack or effect of climate change, whether or not
insured, could have a matenal adverse effect on our financial performance, liquidity and the market price of our common stock. In addition, there is a risk that
one or more of our property insurcrs may not be able to fulfill their obligations/with respect 1o claims payments due to a deterioration in its financial
condition.

Transactions between iStar and SAFE were negotiated between related parties and their terms may not be as fuvorable 1o us as ifthey had been negotiated
with an unaffiliated third party.

Transacuons between iStar and SAFE, including our recent $250.0 million investment in SAFE and the agrecments entered into in connection with
such investment (refer to "ltem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis - Our Portfolio”) were negotiated between related parties and their terms may not be
as favorable (o us as if they had been negotiated with an unaffiliated third party. In addition, we may choose not to enforce, or to enforce less vigorously, our
tights under agreements with SAFE becausc of our desire to maintain our ongoing relationship with SAFE.

There ure various potentinl conflicts of interest in our relutionship with SAFE, including our executive officers and/or directors who are also officers
und/or directors of SAFE, which could result in decisions that are not in the best interest of vur stockholders.

Conflicts of inteiest may exist or could arise in the future with SAFE, including our executive officers and/or directois who are also directors or officers
of SAFE. Conflicts may include, without limitation: conflicts arising from the enforcement of
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agreements between us and SAFE; contlicts 1n the amount ot time that our ofticers and employees will spend on our attairs versus SAFL's aftairs, and cortlicts
mn future transactions that we may pursue with SAFE Transactions between 1Star and SAFE would be subject to cenan approvals of vur independent
dircctors, however, there can be no assurance that such approval will be successful in achieving terms and conditions as favorable 10 us 45 would be avaiiablc
trom a third party. Two dircctots of iStar also serve on SAFE's oui board of dircctors, including Jay Sugannan, who s the chiet executive oftice: of SAFL: and
our chief executive officer.

Our directors and executive officets have duties 1o our company under applicable Maryland law, and our executive officess and our duectors who aic
also directors or officers of SAFE also have duties to SAFE under applicable Maryland law. Those duties may come in confhet from nme to tme. We have
dutics as the manager of SAFE which may come in conflict with our duties to our stockholders from time to nme In addinion, conthets of intetest may cxist or
could anse in the future with our duties to Net Lease Ventuie I and our duties to SAFE as 1ts manager 1n connection with future investment opportunities

From time to time we make investments in companies aver which we do not have control. Some of these companies aperate in industries that differ from
our current operations, with different risks than investing in real estate.

From time to time we make debt or equity investments 1n other companies that we may not control or over which we may not hdve sole conuol
Although these busincsscs gencrally have a significant recal cstatc component, some of them may opcrate in businesscs that arc different fiom our prumary
business segments. Consequently, investments in these businesses, among other risks, subject us to the operating and financial risks of industiies other than
real estate and to the risk that we do not have sole control over the operations of these businesses.

From time io time we may make additionai invesuments in or acquirc other enlitics that may subject us to similar nsks. Investments In enittics over
which we do not have sole control, including joint ventures, present additional risks such as having differing objectives than our partners or the entiues in
which we invest, or becoming involved 1n disputes, or competing with those persons. In addition, we tely on the intemal contiols and financial icporung
controls of these entities and their failure to maintain effectiveness o1 coroply with applicable standaids may adversely affect us.

Declines in the market values of our equity investments may adversely affect periodic reported resulls.

Most of our equity investments are in funds or companies that aic not publicly tiaded and their fair value may not be teadily detenminable. We may
periodically cstimate the fair value of these investments, based upon available nformation and management's judgment, Because such valuations are
inherently uncertamn, they may tluctuate over short periods of time. In addition, our detenninations regarding the tair vatue of these investments may be
materally higher than the values that we ultimately realize upon their disposal, which could result in losses that have a matenal adverse effect vn our
tinancial perfonnance, the market price of our common stock and our ability to pay dividends.

Quarterly results may fluctuate and niay not be indicative of future quarterly performunce.
q yp

Our quarterly operating results could fluctuate, therefore, reliance should not be placed on past quarterly results as indicative of vur pertormance in
future quarters. Faciors that could cause gquarterly operating results 1o fluctuate include, among others, variations 'n loan and real estate ponfoho
performance, levels of non-performing assets and related provisions, market values ol investments, costs associated with debt, general econonuc conditivn,
the state of the real estate and financial markets and the degree to which we encounter competition in our markets.

Our ability to retain and attract key personnel is critical to our success.

Our success depends on our ability to retain our senior management and the otlter key members of our management team and recruit additional
qualified personncl. We rely in part on equity compensation to retain and incentivize our personnel. In addition, if members of our management join
competitors or form competing companices, the competition could have a matenal adverse effect on our business. Efforts o retain or atvact professionals may
result in additional compcensation cxpensc, which could aftect our tinancial pertormance.

Security breaches and other disruptions could compromise our information and expose us to liability, which would cause our business and reputation to

suffer.

In the ordinary course of our business, we collect and store sensitive data, including intellectual propenty, our propnetary business information and that
of our customers, and personally identifiable mformation of our customers and employees, in our data centets and on our networks The secute processig.
maintenance and transmission of this infonnation 1s critical to our operations and bustness strategyy Despite our secunty mcasures, our wformation
technology and infrastructure may be vulnerable to atiacks by hackers or breached due to employee error, malfeasance or other disruptions Any such breach
could compromise our networks and the information stored there could be accessed, publicly disclosed. lost or stolen Any such access. disclosure
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or oihier loss of information could result in legal claims or proccedings, liability under laws that protect the privacy of personal information, disrupt our
operations and the services we provide to customers, and damage our reputation, which could have a material adverse cffect on our business.

We may change certain of our policies without stockholder approval.

Out charter does not sct forth specific peicentages of the types of investiments we may make. We can amend, revise or eliminate our investment
tinancing and conflict of interest polictes at any time at our discretion without a vote ot our shareholders. A change in these policies could have a matenal
advuise effect on our financial performance, liquidity and the market price of our common stock

Certain provisions in our charter may inhibit a change in control.

Generally, 1o mantain our qualification as a REIT under the Code, not more than 50% in value of our outstanding shares of stock may be owned,
dircetly or indirectly, by five or fewer individuals at any time during the last half of our taxablc ycar. The Code defincs "individuals" for purposcs of the
requirement described in the preceding sentence o include some types of entities. Under our charter, no person may own more than 9.8% of our outstanding
shates of stock. with some exceptions. The 1estricions on transferability and ownership may dclay, deter or prevent a change in control or other transaction
that might involve 4 premium price or otherwisce be in the best interest of the security holders.

We would be subject to udverse consequences if we fail to qualify as a REIT.

We behieve that we have been organized and opemated in a manacr 5o as to qualify for taxation as a REIT for US. federal income tax purposes
commencing with our taxable year ended December 31, 1998. Our qualification as a REIT, however, has depended and will continue to depend on our ability
to meet vanous tequirements conceming, among other things, the ownership of our outstanding stock, the nature of our assets, the sources of our income and
the amount of our distnbutions to our shareholders. Our compliance with the REIT mcome and guarteily asset requirements also depends upon our ability to
manage successfully the composition of our income and assets on an ongoing basis. Our ability to satisty thesc asset tests depends upon our analysis of the
charactenzation ot our assets for U.S. tederal income tax purposes and fair market values of our assets. The fair market values ot centain of our assets are not
susceptible to a precise determination.

If we were to fail to qualify as a REIT for any taxable year, we would not be allowed a deduction for distributions to our shareholders in computing our
nel taxable income and would be subject to U.S. federal income tax, including, for taxable years prior to 2018, any applicable altemative minimum tax on
our net taxable income at regular coiporate rates and applicable state and local taxes. We would also be disqualified from treatment as a REIT for the four
subsequent taxable years following the year during which our REIT gqualification was lost unless we were entitled to relief under certain Code provisions and
obtamed a ruling from the IRS. If disqualificd and unable to obtain relief, we may need to borrow money or sell assets to pay taxcs. As a result, cash available
for distribution would be reduccd for cach of the years involved. Furthcrmore, it is possiblc that futurc cconomic, market, lcgal, tax or other considerations
may cause our REIT qualification to be revoked. This could have a material adverse effect on our business and the market price of our common stock.

Our 2016 Senior Tenn Loan and 2015 Revolving Credit Facility (scc Itetn 8—"Financial Statements and Supplemental Data—Note 10*) prohibit us
from paying dividends on our common stock if we no longer qualify as a REIT.

To qualify as a REIT, we may be forced to borrow funds, sell assets or take other actions during unfavorable market conditions.

To qualify as a REIT, we generally must distribute to our sharcholders at least 90% of our net taxable income, excluding net capital gains cach year,
and we will be subject to U.S. federal income tax, as well as applicable state and local taxes, to the extent that we distribute less than 100% of our net taxable
income each year In addition, we will be subject to a 4% nondeductible excise tax on the amount, if any, by which distributions paid by us in any calendar
year are less than the sum of $5% of our ordinary income, 95% of our capital gain net income and 100% of our undisinbuted income from prior years.

In the cvent that pancipal, premium or interest payments with respect to a particular debt instrument that we hold are not made when due, we may
nonetheless be required to continue Lo recognize the unpaid amounts as taxable income. In addition, we may be allocated taxable income in excess of cash
flow received from some of our partnership investments. For taxable years beginning after December 31, 2017, we will genenally be required to take certain
amounts into income no later than the time such amounts are reflected on our financial statements (this rule will apply to debt instruments issued with
origimal issue discount for taxable years beginning after December 31, 2018). Also, in certain circumstances our ability to deduct interest expenses for U.S.
federal income tax puiposes may be lumited. From these and other potential uming differences between income recognttion or expense deduction and cash
receipts or disbursements, there is a significant nsk that we may have substantial taxable inc/omc in
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cxcess of cash available for distnbution. In order 1o qualify as a REIT and avoid the payment of income and excise taxes, we may need o borrow tunds ot
take other actions to mect our REIT distribution requirements for the taxable year in which the phantom tncome 1s recogmized

Complying with the REIT requirements may cause us 10 forego and/or liquidate otheiwise attractive investments.

In order to meet the income, asset and distribution tests under the REIT rules, we may be required to take o1 forego cenain acuions Forinstance, we may
not be able to make certain investments and we may have to hquidate other investients, In addition, we may be required to make distnbutions to
sharcholders at disadvantageous times or when we do not have funds readily available tor distnbution These actions could have the cffect of reduciy our
income and amounts available for distnbution to our shateholders.

Certain of our business uctivities may potentially be subject to the prohibited transaction tax, which could reduce the return on your investment,

For so long as we qualify as a REIT, our ability to disposc of certain propertics may be restricted under the REIT rules, which gencrally impose o 100%
penalty tax on any gain recognized on "prohibited transactions," which refers to the disposition of propernty that 1s deemed to be inventory or held pnimanly
for sale to customers in the ordinary course of our business, subject to certain exceptions. Whether property is inventory o1 otherwise held primanly for sale
depends on the particular facts and circumstances The Code provides a safe harbos that, if met, allows a REIT to avoid being treated as engaged 1
prohibited transaction. No assurance car be given that any property that we sell will not be trcated as property held for sale (o customets, or that we can
comply with the safe harbor. The 100% tax docs not apply to gains fiom the salc of foreclosure property or to property that is held through a taxable REIT
subsidiary ("TRS") or other taxable corporation, although such income unll be subicet to tax 1n the hands ¢f the corporation at regular corporate rates We
intend to structure our activities to avoid prohibited transaction characlenization.

Certain of our activities, including our use of TRSs, are subject 10 taxes that could reduce our cash flows.

Even it we qualify as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes, we will be required to pay some U.S. federal, state, focal and non-U S. taxes on vur
income and property, including taxes on any undistnbuted income, taxes on income trom certain activities conducted as a result of foreclosures, and propeny
and transter taxcs. We would be required to pay taxes on net taxable income that we tail to distribute to vur sharcholders In addition, we may be required to
limit certain activities that generate non-qualifying REIT income, such as land development and salcs of condominiums, and/or we may be requned to
conduct such activitics through TRS. We hold a significant amount ol asscts in our TRS, tncluding asscts that we have acquoed thiough forecosuie, asscis
that may be treated as dealer property and other assets that could adversely affect our ability to quahity asa REIT if held at the REIT level As a result, we will
be required to pay incomne taxes on the taxable income generated by these assets. Futhermore, we will be subject to a 100% penalty tax to the extent our
cconomic amrangements with our TRS arc not coruparable to similar anangements amoog unrclated parties. We will also be subject to 4 100% tax to the
extent we derive income from the sale of asscts to customers in the ordinary course of bustness other than through our TRS. To the extent we o1 our IRS are
required to pay U.S. federal, state, local or non-U.S. taxces, we will have less cash available for distribution w our sharcholders.

We have substantial nct operating loss carry forwards which we use to offset our tax and distiibution requirements. We fully utitized our net capital loss
carry forward during the year ended December 31,2017, Net operating losses ansing 1o (axable years beginning after December 31, 2017 will only be able (v
offset up to 80% of our net 1axable income (after the application of the dividends paid deduction) and may not be canied back. In the cvent that we
cxpericnce an "owncrship change" for purposcs of Scction 382 of the Codc, out abdity to usc thesc losses will be Iimitcd An “"owncrship chanpe® s
determined through a set of complex rules which track the changes in ownership that occur in our common stock for a trailing three year period. We have
experienced volatility and significant trading mn our common stock in recent years. The occunence of an ownership change is gencrally beyond our contiol
and, iftiggered, may increase our tax and distribution obligations for which we may not have sufficient cash flow.

A failure to comply with the limits on our awnership of and relationship with our TRS would jeopardize our REIT qualification and may result in the
application of a 100% excise tax.

No more than 20% (25% for taxable years beginning before December 31, 2017) of'the value of'a REIT's total assets may consist of stock or securities ol
_one or more TRS. This requirement limits the extent to which we can conduct activities through TRS or cxpand the activities that we conduct through I'RS.
The values of some of our assets, including asscts that we hold througlh TRSs may not be subject 1o precisc determination. and values are subject to change in
the future. In addition, we hold certain mortgage and mezzanine loans witlin one or more of our TRS that are secuied by real property We treat these loans as
qualifying assets for purposes of the REIT asset tests to the extent that such mongage loans arc secured by real property and such mezzanine
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loans are secured by an interest 1n a imited hability company that holds real property. We received from the IRS a private letier rmuling which holds that we
may cxclude such loans fiom the himitation that sccuntics from TRS must constitutc no more than 20% (25% for taxable ycars beginning before
December 31, 2017) of our total assets. We are entitled to rely upon this pnvate lewer ruling only to the extent that we did not misstate or omit a matenal fact
in the ruling request and that we continuc to opcratce in accordance with the material facts described 1n such request, and no assurance can be given that we
will always be able to do so. To the extent that any loan 1s recharactenzed as equity, it would increase the amount of non-real estate securities that we have in
our RS and could adversely affect our ability 10 mecet the limitation described above. If we were not able to exclude such loans to our TRS from the
limuiation described above, our abiluy o meet the REIT assct tests and other RETT requirements could be adversely afiected. Accordingly, there can be no
assurance that we have met or will be able Lo continuc to comply with the TRS limitation.

In addition, we may from time 1o time need to make distnbutions fiom a TRS in order 10 keep the value of our TRS below the TRS limitation. TRS
divilends, however, generally will not constitute qualifying income for purposes of the 75% REIT gioss income test. While we will monitor our compliance
with both this income test and the lunitation on the percentage of our total assets represented by TRS securities, and tntend ta conduct our affairs so as ta
comply with both, the two may al times be in conflict with one another. For example, it is possible that we may wish to distribute a dividend from a TRS in
order to reduce the valuc of our TRS 1o comply with limitation, but we may be unable to do so without simultancously violating the 75% REIT gross income
test :

Although there are other measutes we can take in such circumstances to remain in compliance with the requirements for REIT qualification, there can be
00 assurance that we will be able to comply with both of these tests in all inarket conditions.

Dividends payable by REITs duv not qualify for the reduced tax rates on dividend income from C corporations, which could adversely affect the value of
our common stock.

The maximum U.S. federal income tax rate for centain qualified dividends payable by C corporations to U.S. stockholders that are individuals, trusts
and estates is 20%. Dividends payable by REITs, however, are generally not ehigible for this reduced rate. For taxable years beginning after December 31,
2017 and before January 1, 2026, non-corporate taxpaycrs may deduct up to 20% of certain qualiticd business income, including “qualificd REIT dividends®
(genevally, REIT dividends received by a REIT shaicholder that are not designated as capital gain dividends or qualified dividend income), subject to certain
limitauons, resulting in an cffective maximum U.S. federal income tax rate of 29.6% on such income. Although the reduced U.S. federal income tax rate
applicable to qualified dividends from C comorations docs not adversely affect the taxation of REITs or dividends paid by REITs, the more favorable rates
applicable to regular comporate dividends, together with the recently reduced comorate tax rate (21%) could cause non-comporate investors to perceive
investments in REITs to be relatively less attractive than investments in non-REIT corporations that pay dividends, which could adversely affect the value of
the REIT shares, including our common stock.

Legislative or regulatory tax changes related to REITs could materially and adversely affect us.

The U.S federal income tax laws and regulations governing REITs and their stockholders, as well as the admunistrative interpretations of those laws and
cgulations, arc constantly under review and may be changed at any time, possibly with retroactive effect. No assurance can be given as to whether, when, or
i what fonm, the U.S. federal 1ncome tax laws applicable 10 us and our stockholders may be enacted. Changes to the U.S. federal income tax laws and
inte:pretations of U.S. federal tax luws could adversely affect an investment in our common stock.

The Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, witich was sigaed into law on December 22, 2017, made significant changes to the U.S. federal income tax laws applicable
to businesses and their owners, including REITs and their stockholders. Certain key provisions of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act could impact the Company and
its stockholders, beginning in 2018, including the tollowing:

> Reduced Tax Rates. The highest individual U.S. federal mcome tax rate on ordinary income is reduced from 39.6% to 37% (through taxable years
cnding in 2025), and the maximum corportatc incomce tax rate is reduced from 35% to 21%, In addition, individuals, trust, and cstatcs that own the
Company's stock are permitied to deduct up to 20% of dividends received from the Company (other than dividends that are designated as capitat
gain dividends or qualified dividend income), generally resulting in an effective maximum U.S. federal income tax rate of 29.6% on such dividends
{through taxable ycars ending in 2025). Further, the amount that the Company is required to withhold on distributions to non-U.S. stockholders that
are treated as attibutable to gans from the Company's sale or exchange of U.S. 1cal property interests is reduced from 35% to 21%.

+  Net Operating Losses, The Company may not use net operating losses generated beginning in 2018 to offset more than 80% of the Company's
taxable income (afler the application of the dividends paid deduction). Net operating losses generated beginning in 2018 can be carried forward
indetinttely but can no longer be carried back.
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* Limitation on Interest Deductions. The amount of net interest expense that cach of the Company and its TRSs may deduct for a taxabic yean s
limited to the sum of: (i) the taxpayer's business interest income for the taxable year: and (i1) 30% of the taxpayer's "adjusted waxable income” lor the
taxable ycar. For taxable years beginning before January 1, 2022, adjusted taxable income means camings befoie interest. tuxes, depreciation, and
amortization ("EBITDA"); for taxable years beginning on or after January 1, 2022, adjusted taxable income 1s rmited to camings before interest and
1axes ("EBIT"). Cenain electing businesses, including electing real estate businesses, may elect out of the foregoing limtation

*  Alternative Minimum Tax. The corporate alternative minimum tax is ehiminated.

«  Income Accrual. The Company 1s required to recogmze certam items of income for US federal income tax purposes no later than the Company
would teport such items on its financial statements As discussed in Ttem 1a-Risk factors-"To qualify as a REIT, we may be forced to bonow funds,
sell assets or take other actions during unfavorable market conditions, earlier recognition of mcome for US federal income tax pumoses could
impact the Company's ability to satisfy the REIT distnbution requirements. This provision generally appiies to taxable years begmning afier
Dccember 31, 2017, but will apply with respect to tncome from a debt instrument having "ongmal issuc discount” for US. fedeal income tax
purposes only for taxable years beginning after December31,2018.

Prospective investors are urged to consult with their lax advisors regarding the cffects of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act or uther legistative, repulatory or
admimstrative developments on an investment 1n the Company's common stock.

Our Investment Company Act exemption limits our investneent discretion and loss of the exemption wowld adversely affect us.

We believe that we currently are not, and we intend to operate our company so that we will not be, regulated as an tnvestment company under the
Investiment Company Act because we are "primanly engaged in the busiess of purchasing or otherwise acquinng mostgages and othet hiens on and 1nterests
in real estate.” Specitically, we are required to 1nvest at least 55% ot our assets 1n "qualitying real estate assets” (that 1s, real estate, mongage loans «nd other
qualitying interests in real estatc), and at lcast 80% of our assets in “qualitying real estate assets” and other "ical estate-related assets™ (such as mezzanine
loans and uasccured investments in real estate entitics) combined.

We will need to monitor our assets to ensure that we continue to satisty the percentage tests. Maintaining our exemption from regulation das an
investment company under the Investiment Company Act limits our ability to invest in asscts that otherwisc would meet our investment stategies I we tal to
qualify for this exemption, we could not operate our business efficiently under the regulatory scheme 1mposed on investment companies unda the
Investment Company Act, and we could be required to restructure our activities, This would have a matcnial adverse etfect on our tinancial performance and
the market price of our securities. :

Actions of the US. government, including the US. Congress, Federal Reserve, U.S. Treasury and other governmental and regulatory bodies, to stabilize or
reform the financial markets, or market responses to those actions, may not achieve the intended effect and may adversely affect our business.

The U.S government, including the U.S Congress, the Federal Reserve, the U.S Treasury and othe: govermmenta! and regulatory bodies have meieased
their focus on the regulation of the financial industry in recent years. New or modified regulations and related reyulatory suidance may have unforeseen or
unintended adverse effects on the financial industry. Laws, regulations o1 policies, inciuding tax laws and accounting standards and inierpretations, currently
affecting us may change at any time. Regulatory authorities may also change their interpretation of these statutes and regulanions. Theretore, our business
may also be adversely affected by future changes 1n laws, regulations, policies or interpretations or 1egulatory appiroaches to comphance and enforcement”

Various legislative bodics have also considered altering the exisung framework goveming creditors' nights and mortgage products including legislation
that would result in or allow loan modifications of various sorts. Such legislation may change the vperating environment 1n substantial and unpredictable
ways. We cannot predict whether new legislation will be enacted, and if enacted, the effect Lhat it or any regulations would have on our acuvities, financial
condition, or results of operations.

Our bylaws designate the Circuit Court for Baltimore City, Maryland as the sole and exclusive forum for some litigation, which could limit the ubility of
stockholders to obtain a favorable judicial forum for disputes with our company.

Our bylaws provide that, unless we consent 1n writing to the sclection of an alternauve forum, the sole and exclusive forum for: (a) any deuvauve
action or proceeding brought on our behalf: (b) any action asserting a claim of breach of any duty owed by us vt by any director ot otticer ur vther employee
1o us or to our stockholders; (¢) any action asseriing a claim against us or any
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director or officer or othel employee ansing pursuant to any provision of the Maryland General Corporation Law or our charter or bylaws; or (d) any action
asseiting a claim agamst us or any director or officer or other employce that is govemed by the intemal affairs doctnne shall be the Circuit Court for
Ralt:more City, Maryland, or it'that Court does not have junsdiction, the United States District Coun for the District of Maryland, Baltimore Division. This
foruin sclection provision may hmut the ability of stockholders of our company to obtain a judictal forum that they find favorable for disputes with our
company or our ditectors, otficers, cmployces, it'any, or other stockholders.

Item th.  Unresolved Staft Comments
None

Itcm 2. Properties

The Company's pnncipal executive and administrative offices are located at 1114 Avenue of the Americas, New York, NY 10036. Tts telephone number
and web address are (212) 930-9400 and www istar.com, respectivety. The lease for the Company's principal executive and adnunistrative offices expires in
February 2021. The Company's principal regtonal offices are located in the Atlanta, Georgia; Hartford, Connecticut; San Francisco, Califonia and Los
Angeles, California metropolitan arcas.

Sec Item 1—"Net Lease," and “Operating Properties” for a discussion of propestics held by the Company for investment purposes and ltem 8
—"Financtal Statements and Supplemental Data—Schedule I1," for a detailed listing of such properties.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
The Company and/or one or more of 1ts subsidiaries is party to various pending litigation matters that are considered ordinary routine litigation

mcrdental to the Company's business as a finance and investment company focused on the conunercial real estate industry, including foreclosure-related

proceedings. The Company believes il is not a party to, nor are any of its propertics the subject of, any pending legal proceeding that would have a materiat
advense eflect on the Company's consolidated tinancial statements.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not tpplicable.
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Item 5. Market for Registrant's Equity and Related Sharc Matters
The Company's common stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE") under the symbo! "STAR " The Company had 1,632 holders of recurd
of common stock as of February 22,2019

1ssuer Purchases of Equity Sccurities

The following table sets forth the informauon with respect to purchases made by o1 on behalf of the Company of 1ts common stock dunng the thiee
months cnded December 31, 2018,

Total Number of Shares Maximum Dollar Value of
Total Number of Shares  Average Price Paid Purchascd as Part of a Shaies that May Yet be
icly Ar 4 :
licly Ar

Purchased(h

100022

n Wec may repurchasc sharcs i ncgotiated mansiactons or open market ransacuons, including through onc or more vading plans

Disclosure of Equity Compensation Plan Information

(v)
Number ot securities
(a) (b) vemaumng available lor
Number of securities to Waeighted-averape future issuance under
be issued upon vxercise exercise price of cyuity compensation plans
of outstanding options, outstanding options, (excluding securitics

Plaus Category warrants and ri

warranots aod rnghts

refleeted in culumn (a))

193 -

(1) Restricted Siock—The amount showt in column (a) 1acludes 357,414 unvested restrected stock units witich may vest i the tuture based on the employees' contmued service 1o
the Company (sc¢ Iten 8—"Financial Statements and Supplemental Data—Note 14* for « more detailed description of the Company's rostricled stock grants) Substunually all of
the restricted stock units included in column (a) arc required o be setled on a net, after-tas bass (after deducung shaces for minumum required statutory withholdings),
therefare, the actual number of shares ssued will be less than the gross amount of the awards, The amount sbown in column (4) also meludes 239,801 of common stack
cquivalents and restricted stock awarded to our non-employee directors in consideration of their service to the Company as directors Cotmmon stock cquivalents represent nights
to recerve shares of common stock ut the date the conimon stock equivalents are setiled. Common stock equivalents have dividend cquivalent nights begianing vn the date ol
grant. The amount in column (¢) represcnis the aggregatc amount of stock options, shares of restricted stock units o1 other performance awards that vould be granwed unde
compensation plans approved by the Company's secunity liolders after giving citect to previously sssued awutds ol stock oplions, shares ol 1eshicted stock unus and other
performance awards (see Itemn 8—'Financial Staiements and Supplemental Data-—Note 14" for & more detaled description of the Company's Long-Term [ncenuve Plans)

(2)  The amouat shown to column (u) dues not include g curtendy mdeteiminable number of shares that may be 1ssued upon the satistaction vl petfurmiance and vesung condinons
of awards made under the Company's Performance Incenuve Plan (PIP") approved by sharcholders. In no cvent may the nuimber of shares 1ssugd exceed the amount avatlable
in column {c) unless sharcholders authorize additonal shares (see [tem 8—"Financial Suternents and Supplemental Data—Note 14" tor a more dewuled descripuon o1 PIP )
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Itens 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table sets forth selected financial data on a consolidated histoncal basis for the Company. This information should be read in
conjunction with the discussions set forth in Item 7—"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”
For the Years Ended December 31,
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
(Inth

ousunds, except per share data and ratios)
s o >

et

AABIUSARE i

49,033
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(5,828) {12,514)
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Income from sales ol real estate

e
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o
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100,182
R

(32.262)

e
3

e T

Sceunty

endy iy et SRR s

) toss allocable to HPU holders and Parucipating

Net (income
holders®!

Per cormmon share dauat,

e e
Tablc it N
EUHMA L

(055
FH0S55Y

Gt A0k
(0 40)

) Refer to "Item 7. - Management's Discussion and Anulysis - Qur Portfolio" for morc information on ymparrments rccognized in 2018.
) Refer to Note 7 for more information on "Gain fiom consolidation of equity method investment.”
3) All of the Company's outstanding HPUs were repurchasced and retired on August 13, 2015 (scc Item 8-- “Financial S ts and Suppl | Data—Note 13).

Parucipating Security holders are nun-cmploycee dircetors who hold unvesied common stock equivalents and restricted stock awards granied under the Compuny's Long
Term Incenuve Plans tha are chigible 1o parucipac in dwidends (sce ltem 8—"Financial Statements and Supplemental Data—Note 14 and 13).
(4) Sce fiem 8 "Financial Statements and Supplemental Nata—Nole 15."
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For the Years Faded December 31,

218 2017 016 2015 2014

(In thousands, except per share data and ratios)

(24.128) 101,543

Financmng activiues (457,939) {41,480) (877,655) {

As of December 31,

2018 2017 016 2015 i4

Tota! real cstatet!? 1,793,570 1,550,619 1,624,805 1,776.890 3 1,987,543

T Y
anddovdapmcnion

Luans recarvable and otier lending mvestmen
ST R 2

[t

s, ne

g

3,609,086 3,476,400

)

"N Prior w0 December 31, 2015, land and development asscts were recorded in total real estate. Prior year amounts have been reclasgificd 0 contorm o the current period
presentation,
(2) Total equity includes $201.1 million ot nonconmolling interests as of December 31, 2018,
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Item: 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

This discussion sunmatizes the signsticant factors atfecting our cousolidated operating 1esults, financial condition and liquidity during the three-ycar
penod ended December 31, 201 8. This discussion should be read 1in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and related notes for the thice-
year period ended December 31, 201% included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. These historical financial statements may not be indicative of
our future performance. Certain prior ycar amounts have been reclassified 1n the Company's consolidated financial statements and the related notes to
conform to the current penod presentation

Executive Overview

Capistal remained cheap and plentiful in most traditiona! lending scctors of the commercial real estate markets in 2018, and we expect such dynamics to
continuc in 2019 In addition, interest rates and the equity markets have recently expenenced volatility. We have taken a cautious approach 1n these
conditions. [ocusing on providing capital to customers with whom we have a pre-existing relationship, originating fewer traditional loans, and aggressively
seekimyg to monetize legacy assets

Consistent with our historical approach of offenng differentiated capital where we believe we can capture belter risk-adjusted retums, we have invested,
and 1ntend o continue to invest, more of our capital and resources in the Ground Lease business. In January 2619, we expanded our relationship with SAFE
through an additional $250.0 million equity investment and an amendment of our management agreement with SAFE that gives us greater protection against
a tenmination of the agreement, and incentivizes us to grow SAFE's portfolio. We have also pursued and will continue to pursue joint transactions with SAFE,
such as offering customers a SAFE Ground Lease and an iStat Icaschold loan.

In July 2018. we entered into Net Lease Venture [ with total capital commitments of $526 million and an investment strategy similar to the Net Lease
Venture We have an equily nterest in the new venture of approximately 51.9% and are responsible for managing the venture in exchange for management
and 1ncentive fees.

We continue to work on monetizing, repositioning or redeveloping our legacy pontfolio, which tncludes transitional operating propertics and land and
development assets. For the year ended December 31, 2018, we received proceeds of $735.6 million from legacy assets and recognized $137.8 million of
aggregate gains, net of noncontrolling intcrests. Under the guidance of'a new President of Land and Development hired in 2018, we intend to accelerate the
monetization of additional legacy assets, including scveral larger assets, in order to atlow us to focus additional capital and resources on new investments,
particularly 1n the Ground Lease business. The 1eevaluation of our expected holding period and the expected cash flows for certain of the legacy assets
resulted in our recognizing material impaimments w1 2018, offsetting the gains referenced above.

For the year ended December 31, 2018, we recorded a net loss allocable to common sharcholders of $64.8 million, compared to net income of $110.9
mithon during the prior year. Adjusted income allocable to common shareholders for the year ended December 31, 2018 was $222.3 million, compared to
$214.6 million duting the ptior year (sce "Adjusted Income” for a reconciliation of adjusted income to net income).

As of December 31, 2018, we had $531.8 miilion of cash and $325.0 million of credit faciiity availabiiity. Subsequent to December 31, 2018, we
invested $250 0 nullion in SAFE and bave called the $375.0 million remaining outstanding principal amount of our 5.0% senior notes due 2019 for
redemption. We have no other debt matunues in 2019. We expect to use our unrestricted cash balance primarily to fund future investment activities and for
gencial working capital needs.

(8]
I~
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Portfolio Overview

As of December 31, 2018, based on our gross book value, including the carrying value af our equity meihod investments exclusive of accumulated
deprectation, our total investnent portfolio has the followtng charactenstics:

Nof Lease
47.4% SAFE

3.6%

Operating
Propertes
88% '

Land &
Development
16.1%

Strategic

Investmenis
Reql Estate T 02%

Finance
23.9%
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As of December 31, 2018, based on canying values exclusive of accumulated depteciation and general loan loss reserves, our total investment portfolio
has the tollowing property/collateral type and geographic charactenstics ($ 1n thousands):

Real Estate Operating Land & % of
Property/Collateral Types Finance Properties Development Total Total

iR

SFOORE I B

Retal
CTER
A

Total

A S TR

2,133,726 S 368,903

Real Estate Operating Land & Vs of
* Geographic Region Finance Propertics Development Total Total

¥ SIS T,
- a0

#
RN e A

158,007 54,144 15.8%
RSuthsad e s 5 ; SRR e e e IR R RO
Mid-Atlantic = 401,726 6,300 127.550 12.8%

l_.’.'.Q;“!Sﬁ‘_%\:;%%‘ é%%;i‘?%gg'
212,319 57.836

31,53

345,899

TR ey TR
S B Gl 10433 zxgﬁézg»ﬁ@@» 5
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Industry Segments

The Company has four réponable business segments' Real Estate Finance, Net Lease, Operating Properties and Land and Developiment The fellowany
describes the Company's reportable segments as of December 31, 2018 (8 in thousands)

Reul Estate ’ Opcecuting Luad uad Cuorporate /
Finance Net Lease Properties Developinent Otherth lotal
e : 3 -y L 82076333
(305,314)
Bl SUHATEOG S

[ and. el

i
oo Ehind

Land and development, net

o

1y
i A

Other investments?)

304 278

[t et KET

Totalip 21684287

oy Corporate/Other inchudes certain jomt venture and strategic mvestments that are not mcluded in the other 1eportable segments See Hem E—"Fancial Swtements and
Supplemental Data—Note 7" for further detwl on these investoents

(2) The Net Lease segment includes our equity method investment in SAFE. As of December 31, 2018 we vwned 7 6 million shares of SAFL's common stock, o: 41 8% On

January 2, 2019, we made an additional $250 0 miltion cash mvestment i [nvestor Units ot SAFE OP, 1epresenting an additional 12 3 milhon shares vt commun siock,
bringing our total economic interest in SAFE to approximately 65.5% '

Real Estate Finance

Our real estate finance business targets sophisticated and innovative owner/operators of reat estate and real estate related projects by providing one-stop
capabilities that encompass financing altematives janging from full envelope senior loans to mezzanine and preferred equity caprtal positions The
Company's real estate finance porttolio consists of senior mongage loans that are secured by comumercial and residential real estate assets wheie the Compuny
is the first lico holder, subordinated mortgage loans that are sccured by sccond lien or junior intcrests tn commercial and residential real estate assets,
leaschold loans to Ground Lease 1enants, including tenants of SAFE, and corporate/pannership ioans, which represent mezzanine or subuvidmated louns 1o
entities for which the Company does not have a lien on the underlying asset, but may have a pledge of underlying equity ownership of such assets The
Company's real estate finance postfolio includes loans on stabilized and transitional properties, Ground Lcases and ground-up construction projects. In
addition, the Company has preferred equity investments and deb! secunties classified gs other lendir vestments.
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The Company'’s real estate tinance portfelio included the following (S in thousands):

As of December 31,
2018 2017
Total % of Total Tetal % of Total

[

atc mortgages
s N

63395

Yt 4 b o

A

A i

Total loans receivable and other lending investments, net 3 988,224 $ 1,300,65
ey e et
(l") B _Non-;;zr_l_o;wng loans ;r—é_p_r;;;r.ﬁ;d"ncx of asset pcc;-l:l-c_‘l_o—an foss reserves of $40 4 million and $61.0 raillion, respectively, as of December 31, 2018 and 2017.

Portfolio Activity—Dunng (he year ended December 31, 2018, the Company invested $511.5 million (including capitalized defemed interest and
excluding seller financing originations) in its real estate finance portfolio and received repayments of $860.5 million (including the receipt of previously
capiwahized deferved interest).

In the seccond quarter 2018, we resolved a non-performing loan with a carrying value of $145.8 million. We reccived a $45.8 million cash payment and
a prefermed equity investment with a face value of $100.0 million that 1s mandatorily redeemable in five years. We recorded the preferred equity at its fair
value of $77.0 willion and are accruing interest over the expected duration of the investment. Tn addition, we recorded a $21.4 million loan loss provision
and simultancously charged-ofT of the remaining unpaid balance.
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Summary of Interest Ruate Characteristics—The Company's loans reccivable and other fending investments had the lollowing interest tate
charactenstics (S in thousands):

As of December 31,

2018 2017
W cighted
Carrying % Average Carrying Y Average
Value of Totul Accrual Rate, Value of Totat Acctual Rate
17.9% TS A5 BRLUAL
890.082 07 3%

TTOR8R, 57, 134%
{318,155 100.0%

s —t——

Total loans receivable and othcx lending investments, net S 088,224 I § 1,300,655

£} As of December 51, 20i8 and Z0i7. mcwaes 3461 3 muion and $416.6 miilon, tespecuvely, of loans with 2 weighted average LIBOR fioor of U 1% and 0 3%,
tespectively,

2) Non-pertarming loans ate presented net at asset-specific Joan loss reserves of $40 4 nillion and $61 0 milhon, respecavely, as at Decenter 31, 2018 and 2017

Summary of Maturities—As of December 31, 2018 the Company's loans receivable and other lending investments had the following matunities (5 m
thousands):

Nuinber ot
Loans Currving Y
Maturing alue of Tutal

2024 and thereafter - 5 70,001

SESEA «ZV_‘"’“ .\..}Z‘E*‘X‘
%Ti’y tal pmon g

(1) Year of maiwurty represents the sminal matarity and does not include any extension options. As of December 31, 2018, our real estate finance porttolip had o woighied
avelage remaining term, exclusive of any boriower extensiun opuons, of 2.5 years
(2) Non-performing loans aic presented net of asscl-specific loan loss rescives of $40 4 million
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The tables below summarize our loan portfolio, excluding sccurities, and the rescrves for loan losscs associated with our loan portfolio ($ in thousands):

December 31, 2018

Reserve tor Loan Losses
Gross Carrying Reserve for as a % of Gross
Number Value Loan Losses (.arryln" Value % of Total Carrying Value

66,725 R 26,330

December 31, 2017
Reserve for Loan Losses
Gross Carrying Reserve for as 2 % of Gross
Number Value Loan Losses Canylnn Value % of Total Carrying Value

Performing Louns—--The table below summarizes our performing loans gross of reserves (§ in thousands):

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Non-Performing Loans—\We designate loans as non-perfonming at such time as: (1) the loan becomes 90 days delinquent; (2) the loan has a maturity
default; or (3) management determines it is probable that we will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan. All non-
perturming loans are placed on non-accrual status and incoine 1s only recognized in certain cases upon actual cash receipt. As of December 31, 2018, we had
non-perfonning loans with an aggregate carrying value of $26.3 million compared to non-performing loans with an aggregate carrying value of$176.9
million as of December 31, 2017. In the sccond quarter 2018, we resolved 2 non-performing loan with a carrying value of $145.8 million. We received a
$45 8 million cash paymcnt and a preferred cquity investment with a fuce value of $100.0 million that is mandatorily redecmablc in five ycars. We recorded
the preferred equity at its fair value of $77.0 million and are acciuing inteiest over the expected duration of the investment. In addition, we recorded a $21.4

million loan loss provision and simultancously charged-off of the remaintnyg unpaid balance. We expect that our level of non-pc.mnrmmlD loans will fluctuate
from period to period

Rexerve for Loan Losses—The rescrve for loan lossces was $53.4 million as of December 31, 2018, or 5.8% of total loans, compared to $78.5 million or
6.1%, as of December 31, 2017, For the year ended December 31, 2018, the provision for loan losses included a $21.4 million provision resulting trom the
resofution of a non-performing loan partially offset by a $4.5 million decrease in the general reserve. We expect that our level of reserve for loan losses will
tluctuate trom period to period. Duc to the volatility of the commercial real estate market, the process of estimating collateral values and reserves requires the
use uf significant judgment. We cumently believe there 1s adequate collateial and reserves to support the canrying values of the loans.

The reserve for loan losses includes an asset-specific component and a formula-based component. An asset-specific reserve is established for an
mnpaired loan when the estmated fair value of the loan's collateral less costs to sell is lower than the carrying value of the loan. As of December 31, 2018,
assci-specific reserves decreased to $40.4 million compared to $61.0 million as of December 31,2017,
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The formula-based general reserve 15 denved from estimated principal default probabilitics and loss sevenities applied to gioups of perfoaniog loans
based upon risk ratings assigned to loans with similar risk characteristics dunng our quarterly loan portfolio assessment. Duning this assessment, we perform a
comprehensive analysis of our loan portfolio and assign risk ratings to loans that incowporate management’s cunent judgments and futuie expectations about
their credit quality based vn ali known and relevant factors that may affect collectability. We consider, among other things, payment status, lien position,
borrower financial resources and investment in collateral, collateral type, project economucs and geograplical location as well as nationdl and regional
economic factors. This methodology results in loans being scgmented by nsk classification into risk raling catcgones (hat arc assoctated wath estimated
probabilities of default and principal loss We estimate loss rates based on historical realized losses cxpenenced wathin our portfolio and take into account
current cconomic conditions affecting the conmmcercial real estate matket when cstablishing appropuate time faines to cvaluate loss cxperience

The general reserve decieased to $13.0 million or 1.5% of performing loans as of December 31,2018, compaied to $17 5 mullion o1 1 7% ol performing
loans as of December 31, 201 7. The decrease was primarily attributable to a dectease in the size of our loan portfolio.

Net Lease

Oul net lease business secks to create stable cash flows thiough long-term net lcases primarily to single tenants on owr propertics We taigel nussion-
critical facilities leased on a long-term basis to tenants, offering structured solutions that combine our capabilities in underwnting. lease stiuctunng, asset
management and build-to-suit construction. Leases typically provide for expenscs at the facility w be paid by the tenant on a tnple net lease basts Under a
typical nct lcasc agrecmeni, the icnant agiees 1 pay a base monthly vperating icase payment and most o1 ali of the faciiny opeiating cxpetses (inciuding
taxes, utilities, mamntenance and insurance). The Company generally intends to hold 1is net leasc assets for long-term investment. However, the Company
may dispose of assets if it deems the disposition 1o be in the Company's best interests.

The net lease segment includes the Company's traditional net lease investments and its investment in SAFE

~7
Net Lease Venture—In 2014, the Company partnered with a sovereign wealth fund to form a venture to acquire and desclop net lcase asscts and gave a
right of first refusal to the venture on all new net lease investments that met specified 1nvesunent critena (refer to Note 7 in out consohdated linancial
statements for more information on our Net Lease Venture). The Net Lease Venture's invesument period expired on June 30, 2018 and the iemarnimg temm of
the venture extends through February 13, 2022, subject to two, onc-year extension options at the discretion of us and our partner. We obtained contiol over
the Net Lease Venture when the investment period expired on June 30,2018 and consolidated the assets and habilities of the ventuie, which had pieviously
been accounted for as an equity method investment.

Net Leave Ventw e Jl—In July 2018, we cntered into Net Leasc Venture 1l with similar investment strategies as the Net Leasc Venturc (reter to Note 7).
The Net Lease Venture T has a nght of fiest offer on all new net lease investments (excluding Ground Leases) originated by us. We have an cquity interest in
the new venture of approximately 5§1.9%, which 15 accounted for as an equity method investment, and arc responsible for managing the venture in exchange
for a management fee and incentive fee.

SAFE—In April 2017, institutional invcstors acquircd a controlling intercst in our Ground Lceasc business through the merger ot onc of our subsidiarics
and related transactions. Our Ground Leasce business was a component of our net lease segment and consisted of 12 properties subject (o long-term net leases
including seven Ground Leases and one master lease (covering five properties). As a result of the Acquisition Transactions, we deconsoltdaied the 12
propertics and the associated financing. We account for our invesument in SAFE as an cquity method investment (tefet to Nowe 7) We ae SAFE's external
manager, and we have an exclusivity agreement with SAFE pursuant to which we agreed, subject (o cerlain exceptions, that we will not acquire, onginate,
invest in, or piovide tinancing for a third paity’s acquisition of, 2 Ground Leasc unless we have first oftcred that opportunity 1o SAFE and a majority ol 1ts
independent directors has declined the opportunity. As of December 31, 2018, we owned approximately 41 8% of SAFE's common stock vutstanding

On January 2, 2019, we purchased 12,500,000 newly designated limited partuership units (the "Inv estor Units™) in SAFE's vpetating paitneiship ("SAFE
0P, at a purchase price 0of $20.00 per unit, for a total purchase price of $250.0 million. The pumpose of the investment was to altow SAFE 0 fund additional
Ground Lcase acquisitions and originations

The Investor Units have the following features:

»  theright to receive cquivalent distributions per unit to thosc paid oa onc sharc of SAFE common stock,
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*  novoting nglts;

= non-transferable prior to June 30,2019;

*  no automatic conversion or exchange rights. and
+  limited protective consent rights.

SAFE has agreed to scek stockholder approval to exchange the Investor Units for shares of SAFE common stock, on a one-for-one basis.

The Investor Units represent an approximate 40.6% fully diluted economic interest in SAFE. After giving effect to the issuance of the Investor Units, our
aggregate fully diluted economic interest in SAFE (including the shares of SAFE common stock and Investor Units owned by us) is approximately 65.4%:
howevet, our vouing power in SAFE will remarn capped at 41.9%, as a result of the limitations descnbed below.

In connection with oui purchase ot the Investor Units, we entered mto a Stockholder's Agreement with SAFE on January 2, 2019. The Stockholders
Agrecinent

«  limuts owr discrctionary voting power to 41.9% of the outstanding voting power of SAFE's Common Stock until our aggrcgate ownership of
SAFE common stock 1s less than 41.9%,

*  1equircs us Lo cast alt of out voting power in favor of thrce director nominecs to SAFE's board who are independent of each of us and SAFE
for three years,

*  subjectsus to certain standsull provisions for two years;

= restricts our ability to transfor sharce of SATE conunon stock issucd in exchange for Iny Units,
therr issuance;

»  prohibits us from transferring shares of SAFE common stock representing more than 20% of the outstanding SAFE common stock in one
transaction or a senes of related transactions to any person or group, other than pursuant to a widely distributed public offering, unless
SAFE's other stockholders have participation rights in the transaction; and

»  providcs us certain preemptive rights,

or "Exghangr_\ Sharee " for onc ve

arcg,” loronc yearall

In connection with the new investment, SFTY Manager LLC (our wholly-owned subsidiary) and SAFE amended and restated the Management
Agreement, dated as of June 27, 2017, between them, the "Amended and Restated Management Agrcement”. The Amended and Restated Management
Agrecment, dated January 2, 2019, generally provides for incremental increases in the base management fee payable to the manager frotn 2 minimum of 1.0%
to a maximum of |.5% of SAFE's Total Equity {as defined in the agicement) as it increases. The management fee will be payable in cash or SAFE common
stock, at SAFE's clection (as determined by SAFE's independent directors). SAFE common stock issued to pay the management fee will be valued at the
greater 0f $20.00 or a recent volume weighted average market price.

The Amended and Restated Management Agreement will have an iniual term through June 30, 2022 during which the agreement is non-terminable,
except for centain cause events. After the initial term, the agreement will be automatically 1enewed for additional one year tenms, subject to certain rights of
SAFI's independent directors to terminate the agreement bascd on the manager's materially detrimental long-temm performance or, beginning with the seventh
annual reaewal term afier the initial term, unfair management fees that the manager declines to renegotiate. SAFE will be obligated to pay the manager a
termnation fee equal to three times the annual management fee paid 1n respect of the last completed fscal year prior to the ternmnation if, by the tume efsuch

ternnnation, SAFE has raised Totat Equity ol at least $820.0 miilion since inception, inctuding from us.

L1 connection with our purchase of the Investor Units, the parties also entered into an Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement, dated
Tanuary 2,2019, which requires SAFE to, amony ovther things, use commercially reasonable effons to file a shelf registration statement with the Securities and
Exchunge Comumission providing for resale of all shares of SAFE common stock held by us. The agreement also provides us with certain demand registration
1ghts.
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As of December 31, 2018, our consolidated net tease portfolio totaled $2 0 billion. Qur net lease portfolio, including the carrying value of our equity
mcthod investments 1n SAFE and Net Lease Venture T, exclusive of accumulated depreciation, totaled $2 1 billion The table below provides cortain
statistics for our net leasc portfolio

Consolidated Net Lease
Real Estatett) Ventuie Il SAFE®™

Wi

ook value (milhions)?3)

(48] We own 51.9% ot the Net Lease Veanuse which 1s consolidated in our GAAF tinancial statensents (reter to Note 4)
(2) On January 2, 2019, we made an addittonal S250 0 million cash investmemt m Tnvestor Units ol SAFE OF
)

)

Crose hoole vahaz ¢

1ot real zetar

o

viu by ne
vy by ag

Represents the mittal matunity and does not include extension options

Poartfolio Activity—On June 30, 2018, we consolidated the Net Lease Venture (refet to Note 7) and tecorded $743.6 million o "Real estate, net” on out
consolidated balance sheet and recorded a gain 0f $67.9 million 1n "Gain on consolidation of equity method iavestment” in our cunsvhdated statement ot
operations as a result of the consolidation.

As a result of the adoption of new accounting standards (refer to Note 3), on January |, 2018, we recorded an increase to retatned camings o $55.5
million, bringing our total gain on the salc of our Giound Leasc business to SAFE to appioximately S$178.9 mullion. In addition, dunng the year ended
December 31,2018, we purchascd 0.8 mitlion shares of SAFE's common stock for $13.8 million, representing an average cost of 817 92 per share

We also entered into Net Lease Venture 11, which acquired its first investment 1n December 2018, We contributed $16 4 mullion o the venture which
purchased the asset for $31.2 million. ’

Also during the year ended December 31, 2018, we acquired two net lease assets for $14.8 million and invested an aggregate $40 2 million of tenant
improvements and capital expenditures on our existing net lease assets.

During the year ended December 31, 2018, we recorded an aggregate impairment of $10.4 million on two net lease assets We recorded a $0.0 mulhon
inipaimment on a property based on a strategic decision to sell the asset. The fair value is based on purchase offers teceived from third pamics We alse

recorded a $4.4 million impairment on a propenty as we determined our total recovery was less than ow canying value
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Sumimary of Lease Expirations—As of December 31, 2018, futuie lease cxpirations on the Company's net lease assets, excluding our equity method
investments 1n SAFE and Net Lease Venture 10, arc as follows ($ in thousands).

Number of Anpualized In-Place % ot In-Place
Leases Operating Operating % of Total Squarc Feet of Leases
Year of Lease Expiration Expiring Leasc Income Lease Income Explring (in thousands)

BT

S

Rellects the percentage of annualized operating lease income for leases in-place as a percentage of anaualized total revenue.
Represents the initial matunity and does not mctude extension options
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Operaung Properties

Ou: operating propertics pottfolio is comprised ot commercial and 1esidential propertics, which represent a pool of asscts across a broad 1ange ot
geographies and collateral types including office, retail and hotel properties The operaung propeities aie prnmanly part of'our legacy portfolio, and generally
represent properties that we acquired in foreclosures of loans on which the borrowers defaulted duninyg the financial crisis The Company generally sceks to
reposition or redevelop transitional propenties with the objective of maxtmizing therr value through the infusion of capital and/or intensive assct
management efforis. Upon stabilization, the Company will generally look 1o moncuze these assets if favorable conditions cxist for maximizing value, or 1
the Company dctermincs that the future prospects of the property indicate that the Company would be better served by disposing ot the assct and invesung
the cash in new assets, paying down debt or otherwise using the cash. The commercial propetties within this portfolio include office, retail, hotel and othe
property types. The residential properties within this portfolio are generally tuxury condominium projccts located in major US ciues where the Company's
strategy 15 to scil indiv idual condominium umits through retal distributton channels

The Company's operating properties portfolio, including equity method invesunents, included the tollowing ($ in thousands)

Cummercial Residential
As of December 31, As of December 31,
2018 2017 2018 2017

ok FnGns
e available

tvesimen(s: e

1!
eticiden 2 p L e S A

Total portfolio assets ) 301,113 8 525,078 $ 20551 S 48,519

() There arc 10 commercal real estate assets in the operaung properties segment, of which the largest four propertics comprise 83 0% of the segment's carrying value as of
December 31, 2018 The remaiung six properues have an average carrying value of $6 7 milhon per property.

As of Décember 31,2018, our operating property portfolio, including the carrying value of our equity method mvestnents, exclusive ot accumulated
depreciation, totaled $368.9 million.

The tablc below provides certain statistics for our legacy comumercial operating property portfolio.

Gross Book
Value
(10 thousands)®) Properties Yield

Fathe ¥

(1) Gross book value represents the acquisition cost of real estate and any additonal capital invested into the property by us
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Portfolio Activity—We have been aggressively monetizing our operating properties and during the year ended December 31, 2018, we sold 10
comiaercial operating properties and residential condominiums fiom other propertics for total net sales proceceds of $327.9 million and recognized S81.0
miltion of gains in "Income from sales of real estate™ in our consolidated statement of operations. We recorded aggregate impairments of $71.1 million on tive
legacy operating mopertics and $8.9 million of aggregate impainments on residential condominiums sold and unsold units, The impairments included a
$47 ¢ mithon impanment on an urban regional mall located in Chicago, 1L, Since foreclosing on the mall we had been actively working to release vacant
spaces and made some progress with national retailers. In the sccond half of 2018, onc of the mall’s two anchor tenants liquidated and closed its store. This
inggeted the lower altemative rent clauses in the leases of several of the in-line tenants, which led to a significant decline 1n the mall's income. We continue
w scck new tenants for the mall, but based on recent indications recetved from prospective tenants and the large, anticipated future and ongoing capital
commitment 1equited to Ieasc the vacated anchor space and in-linc vacancics, in the fourth quarter of 2018 we decided to market the assct for salc. The
impauments also included a $23.2 million impaiment on an entertainment complex located in Coney Island, NY. We completed construction of the asset in
2016 and hired an operatol Lo program the asset and 1o provide food and beverage services. While the project initially produced positive cash flow, operating
perfermance significantly detertorated dunng 2018 and we curently expect the facility to produce losses 1nto the foresecable fitture. As a result, we reduced

our ¢stimate of the future cash flow to be received from the property. We also invested $19.9 million in our operating properties and made contributions of
$29.% mullion to our opcrating property cquity method mvestments.
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The following table presents an operating property portfolio roflforward for the year ended December 31, 2018

Operating Property Rollforward
(in nullions)
Total

Commercial Residential Other Investinents Sepgment

45 L5736
(215.2) (261 8)
RCENA
{80 2)
168
: L Sy
Ending balance S 206 S 3216
() For commercial and restdental, represents net book value of the assets suld, ratber than proceeds reeeived For other investments, reprosents distubutions iecetved by uas
(2) For other mnvesuncats, represents contributivns made by us
(3) Represents assets placed nto service duing the period
(4) For other investments, includes a S12 ¥ milhon step-up in basis to fair value relaung 1w the dispositon of real estate to ventures for which we previously tecognized partal

gains Pnior to the adopuon of ASU 2017-05 (refer to Note 3, we were requued o rceognize gams va only the pottion of ow mterest tanstcired 1o thud patties and were
precluded from recognizing a gain on our retained noncontrolling mterest, which was carried al our historical cost basis.

As ot December 31, 2018, tuture lcasc expirations on comumercial properties within the operating properties porttolie, excluding hotels, mannas and
other investments, were as follows (8 in thousands):

; Numnber of Annualized In-Place % of In-Place
Leases Operating . Operalting % of Total Square Feet of Leases
Year of Lease Expiration Expiring Lease Income Leasce Income Revenue? Expining (in thousands)

= T T

Ty PR

2022

(1) Retlcets the percentage ot annualized operating ledse income tor teases in-place as 4 percentsgs ot annualved towl revenuc
(2) Includes office leases expiring 10 conunercial propertics as well as montii-to-month and short term heense agreements within our retail propertics
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Land and Development

As of December 31, 2018, the Company's land and development portfolio, including equity method investments, included 24 properties, comprised ot
tive MPCs, 13 1ntill land parcels and six waterfront land parcels located throughout the United States. MPCs represent large-scalc 1esidential projects that the
Company has and/or will entitle, plan and/o1 develup and may sell through retail channcels to home builders or in butk. The remainder of the Company’s land
includes infill and walertront parcels located in and around major cities that the Company will develop, sell to or partner with commerctal real estate
developers Watertiont parcels are generally entitled for residential projects and urban infill parcels arc generally entitled for mixed-use projects. The land
and development properties arc pnmanly part of our legacy ponfolio and generally represent properties that we acquired in foreclosures of loans on which
the Lotrowers defaulied during the financial crisis. Similaw to our lcgacy operating propettics, we have been actively weviewing our legacy land and
development properties and seeking o monetize assets when we believe the proceeds generated from sale can be better deployed 1n new investments and/or
used Lo repay debt or for other purposes We have decided to continue to hold and develop other projects in cases where we believe the potential future
returns outweigh the benefits of selling the asscls now.

As of December 31, 2018, we had four projects in production, seven in development and 13 in the pre-devclopment phasc. Thesc projects arc
collecuvely enutled for approximately 9,200 lots and units. The Company's land and development portfolio included the following ($ in thousands):

As of December 31,

G

;3';.{35 98

et

Portfolio Activity—Dunng the year ended December 31, 201 8, we sold land parcels and residential lots and units and recognized $409.7 million n
"Land development revenue® and $350.2 million in "Land development cost of sales” in our consolidated statement of operations. We recorded aggregate
mpairments of $56.7 million on five legacy land and development propertics. Of the $56.7 million of impairments, approximately $25.0 million relates to a
waterlront land and development asset located 1n Long Beach, NY. In 2014, as part of the settlement of litigation with the city. we received entitlements to
develop a higher density projcct than was as-of-right under current zoning. We intended to build or joint venture the project and sought a tax abatement in
ordes to move forward with the development. In 2018, the city revoked its previously approved incieased zoning and revoked our building permits. Several
lawsuits were filed and litigation is ongoing. In the fourth quarter 2018, we received written indications of interest from parties interested in acquiring the site

- from us. Based on these indicattons, and the desire to nutigate future development risk associated with the asset, we intend to more broadly market the
property for sale in 2019 321.6 million of the impairment relates to a MPC located in Santa Clanita, CA. During 2018, we hired a local homebuilder as a
consultant to create detailed lot development plans and budgets for the site. Based on the review, which was concluded in the fourth quarter 2018, an
evaludtion of the estimated capital needed to develop the project, the expected four to five year period to develop and sell the lots and market risks over that
time horizon, we decided Lo market the property for sale as is rather than develop the property. The balance of the impairments relates to three smaller
propettics, one property that was sold in 2018, one property that was sold 1n 2019 and one property where we reduced our expectations for future cash flows
from the pioperty.
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The foltowing table presents a land and development portiolio rollforward for the year ended December 31, 2018 and certamn fand und development
statistics.

Land and Development Porttolio Rollforward
! (in millions)

Asbury
Ocean Asbury Park . Magnolia All Total
Club Waterfront Green Others Sepment
BEdiitiing® X603
[CIRIPS]

31R)

1445

626V
59%.2

Net salests) S — 8 09) S (1.3) % 622 § 395

) As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, Total Segment excludes $65.3 mullion and $63.9 millwn, tespecun ely, of equity method iy esunents
(2) Represents gross book value of the assets sold, rather than proceeds teceived During the yew ended December 31, 2018, we receved approximately $233 4 oullion n gross

procceds in connccuon with the sale of two land parcels totaling 93 acres v San Jose, CA and San Pedro, CA. We also completed the moncuzation of a 785 acre mastar
planned community entitled for 1,458 single famudy lots in Riverside County, California

3) Represents assets placed into service during the perod
(4) Inctudes $56.7 million of impairments
(5) Net sales represents fand development revenue less land development cost of sales

Following 15 a description of some of our major land and development projects that we are holding for further development Theie can be no
assurance that we will not change our current strategy for any of the projects described below:

Asbury Ocean Club and Asbury Park Waterfront

iStar owns 35 acres of oceanfront property 1n the Asbury Park waterfront redevelopment area 1in Asbury Park. N J. iStar serves as the master de eloper
and its land holdings represent approxumately 70% of the undeveloped land along the waterfront Over the past several years, iStar has stategically
developed a limited number of residential and comumercial projects to re-establish the local housing market and dnve momentum for future growth The
existing redeveloper agreement with the city permits up to approximately 2,500 addiuonal units, comprised ol lor-sale residenual homes, hotel keys und
multi-family apartments. Future projects arc positioned to b developed by iStar or m conjunction with jownt venture pantaers. These mdividual tand parcels
couid also be sold to thitd party developers.

Asbury Ocean Club is a 16-story mixed-use project comprised of 130 residential condominium units, 4 54-umit boutique hotel, 24,000 square feet ol
rctail spacce, a 15,000 squarc foot spa, 26,000 squarc fcct ot outdoor amenity spacc and 410 structured parking spaccs, locuted at 1101 Occan Avenue in
Asbury Park, New Jersey. The projectas currendy under constmuction and with an estimated completion date of summer 2019

Magnolia Green

Magnolia Green is a 3,500 unit mutti-gencrational master planned community just outside of Richmond, Virginia with disuinct phases designed tor
people 1n ditterent life stages, trom tirst home buyers to empty nesters Buslt on nearly 1,900 acies, Magnoha Green 1s a conununity with home designs lrom
the arca's top builders The community’s amenity package fearures an 18-hole Jack Nicklaus designed golf course and a tull-service golf clubhousc and
aquatic center. There is also a tennis facility which is currently under construction

Magnolia Green sold 166 residenuial lots for $14.8 million of land development revenue dunng the year ended December 31, 201%
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The Company's land and development projects that contnbuted to revenues during the year ended December 31, 2018 are listed below ($ in
thousands)

Current
Anticipated
Sales Estimated
. Campletion Units Sold in Cumuliative Remaining
Project Property Type Location Date™ 2018 Revenue 2018% Units Sold Units®?

s " PRI T T ey FETIEY)

B 5
Spning Mountain Ranch
i
N

Magnolia Green

Infill Lan
Parcel

Paln Tree

" & o3 men sy

; A
Asbury Munroe sbury Park, NJ
B AR L

s S - Y ey EL
e

) Current anticipated completion dates are subject to change as a result of factors that may be outside of the Company's control, such as economic conditions, uncertainty with
12zoning, obtaiming goveinmental permits and approvals, concerns of community associations and reliance oa third party contractors

(2) Units sold 1n 20138 excludes bulk land parcel sales. Estunated remaining upnits may include single-family lots, condos, mulufamily rental units dod hotel keys, as applicable, for
the respective properties and are subject to change

3) These fand and development projects are accounted for under the equiry method of accounting

(d4) Sales acuvily 15 the result of percentage of compleuon accounung at the venture during the year ended December 31, 2018,
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Results of Operations for the Year Ended December 31,2018 compared to the Year Ended December 31,2017

For the Years Ended
December 3,

2018 1017 $ Change % Change

(1n thousands)

S
(8 070) (3)%
RR S (05,7297 BRI
196,879 212,831 »100%
SEgTe. v RE 1§
194 axs (10.935) (‘5)".,
Land dcvclopmcnt cost ofsa!es 350,181 180,9!6 169,265 94 9,
; [ HAAG0R T : : : ‘ Tragey
(7 W
mé‘i%ec CE0uey
>100%

I e oM e p Tl

Tl 33 ST 8 ok 23 S0 el b o DA
Lo» on carly extinguishment of debl, net

p‘f}iinuxlassc‘“ffx%n?vem’iﬁ?fiac(f’o v

Net income (lass) $ (18326) S 180,208 § (198,534) >Uoo</o)

Revenue—Operating leasc income, which primarily includes income from net lease assets and commercial operating properties. increased to $208 2
million in 2018 from $187.7 million in 201 7. The following tables summanzes our operating lease income by segment (S m nullions)

Change

g,mug,@,,,e.\g»;’f’fn?nﬁ RS
Total s 208.2 3 877 S

(1) Change primanly due to a $36 9 million increase from the consolidauon of the Net Lease Venture and enterng into new [eases, partiatly offset by $8 o iillion trom asset
sales.

(2) Change primarily due to a decrease of $8.9 nullhion due 10 asset sales, partially offset by an 1nctease of $2 3 aulhon fiom the net wmwtizabion ol wtangible lease labiliues
relating i lease ternninations and an operating property placed nto scevice in 2018
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The following table shows certain same store statistics for our Net Lease and Qperating Propertics segments. Same store assets are defined as assets we
owned on or priot to fanuary 1,2017 and were in service through December 31, 2018 (Operating lease income in millions)

2018 2017

Net l.ease S 109.3 S 107.1

pancy

Net Lease 98.1% 97.9%

(1) Excivaes 32 6 muliion recognized during tive year ended Uecember 31, 2018 in connccuion with the termination of two leases.
(2) Occupancy as of December 31, 2018 and 2017,

Interest income decreased 1o $97.9 million in 2018 from $106.5 nultion in 2017. The decrease in interest 1ncome was due primarily to a decreasc in the
weighted-average yield of our performing loans, which decreased to 9.2% for 2018 from 9.8% for 2017, principally trom the payoff of higher yielding loans
n 2618, The average balance ot our performiny loans was $1.07 bitlion for 2018 and 2017.

Other income decreased to $82.3 million in 2018 from $1¥%.} mullion in 2017. Other income in 2018 consisted primarily of income from our hotel
propertics, incomce recognized from the termination of a lease, other ancillary income from oui operating piopertics and intercst income eamed on our cash
balances. Other income in 2017 primanly consisted of interest income and real eslate tax reimbursements resulting from the settlement of the Bevard
liugation (refer to Note 5), income from our hotel properties and other ancillary income from our operating properties. The decrease in 2018 was related
primanly to the Bevard litgation, which resulted in $123.4 million of other income in 2017,

Lund development revenue and cost of sales—In 2018, we sold land parcels and residential lots and units and recognized land development revenue of
$409 7 mitlion which had associated cost ol sales 0f $350.2 million. In 2017, we sold residential tots and units and one land parce! totaling 1,250 acres and
tecognized land development tevenue of $196.9 million which had associated cost of sales 6f $180.9 million. The increase in 2018 was primarily the result
of two bulk land parcel sales that generated $253.3 million in land development revenue, pantially offset by the tccoanition of $114.0 million in land
development tevenue in 2017 related 10 the Bevard litigation.

Costs and expenses—Interest expense decreased to $183 8 million in 2018 trom $194.7 mitlion in 2017. The decrease in interest expense was due to
the balance of our average outstanding debt, which decreased to $3.52 billion for 2018 from $3.58 billton for 2017. Our weighted average cost of debt was
5.5% for2018 and 5.6% for2017. In addition, during the year ended December 31, 2018, we recorded $10.7 million in interest expense as a result of the
consolidation of the Net Lease Venture on June 30, 2018, of which we own a 51.9% equity interest.
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Real estate expenses decreased to $139.3 million 1n 2018 trom $147 6 million 1n 2017 The following table summarizes our real estate cxpenses by
segment (S 1n milhions).

Ycar Endcd December 31, R
2018 2017 Change

Land and Devclopmenlll)

Total S 1393 § 147.6

(1) Change primanly duc to a salc of assets; parually offsct by new asscis beginning oparations ta 2018
(2) Change primaniy due to an morcase m markeuny and other Losts assoctated with faunclung residenual condommunm sdivs, pactally oftsct by asset sales
(3) Cliange primarily duc to a $1.9 mullion increase trom the consulidason of dre Net Lease Venuure, partially olfset by asset sales.

Depreciation and amortization increased to $58.7 nullion in 2018 from $49.0 milhon for the same penod 1n 2017, The increase m 2018 was pnmanly
due to the consolidation of the Net Lease Venture, partially offset by the sale of net lease and conuunetcral operating propertics.

General and administrative expenses decreased to $92.1 milion 10 2018 trom S98 9 mullion 11 2017. We capitabized 1nto vur acuve development
projects $1.7 million and $1.8 million of payroli-related costs (including salanes, bonuses, LTIP awards, bencfits and taxes) for the years ended December 31,
2018 and 2017, respectively. The following table summarizes our general and admunistrauve expenses for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 (n
millions).

Year Ended
December 31,

Qccupancy costs
ST e ﬁw;wmz*m@
@lyl\m&ugpgg y.Coste:

(1) Decrease due to 2 reduced bonus payout and a reduction hcadcuunl We reduced our headcount to 166 employees as of December 31, 2018 from 186 employces as of
December 31, 2017

(2) Represents costs assuciated with termiated employees.

(3) Represents the far valuc of points issucd and change 1n fair value of the pians during the periods presented. Such emounts may increase or deciedse over ume unul the
awards are settled. Pleasc refer to Note 14 - Stock-Based Compensation Plans and Employee Benefits for a deseripuon of the Performance Incentive Plans

The proviston for loan losses was $16.9 million 1n 2018 as compared to a recovery of loan losses of $5.8 million tn 2017, The provision for loan lusses
in 20)8 was due to a specific reserve of $21.4 miltion 1esulting from the resolution of a non-performing loan, pantially ofTset by a 84 5 nullion dectease m the
geaeral reserve due to a decrease in the s1ze of our loan portfolio. The recovery of loan |os>es in 2017 resulted fiom 2 reduction 1a the general reserve due Lo
an overal! improvement in the risk ratings of our toan portfoho

In 2018, we recorded impairments ot $147 1 million on land and development and real estate assets. Refer to "Management's Discussion and Analysis -
Our Porttolio™ for more information oa such unpairments, which resulted pnmarily from our decision to accelerate the monctization of certain legacy assets,
including several larger assets. In 2017, we recorded impairments on land and development and real estate asscts totaling $32 4 million. The smpairments
recorded in 2017 were pnmarily the result of impairments on land and development assets of $20 5 mullion resulting from a decrease tn expected cash tlows
on onc assct and a changce in cxit strategy on another assct. We also recorded impainnents of $11.9 million on rcal cstate asscts duc to shifting demand 1n the
local condominium markets and changes in our exit strategy on other real estate assets.
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Other expense decrcased to $6.0 million i 2018 from $21.0 million in 2017. The decrease was primarily the result of paying organization and offering
costs assoctated with the initial public oftering of SAFE (refer to Note 7) and costs incurred 1n conncction with the repricing of our 2016 Senior Term Loan
recorded in 2017

Income from sales of real estate—Income from sales of real estaie increased to $126.0 million in 2018 from §92.0 million in 2017. The following table
presents our tncome fiom sales of real estate by segment (S in millions).

2018

et

g Prohentt

Net Lease

Loss on early extinguishment of debt, net—In 2018 and 2017, we 1ncurred losscs on carly extinguishment of debt of $10.4 million and $14.7 million,
respectively. In 2018, we incunred tosses on early extinguishment of debt resulting from the opportunistic refinancing of a net lease asset which generated
S1IS.5 mithon of excess proceeds to us, repayments of our 2016 Senior Term Loan prior to its modification, the modification and upsize of our 2016 Senior

" Term Loan and repayment of senior notes prior to maturity. In 2017, we incurred losses on carly extinguishment of debt pnmanly resulting from repayments
ol unsecured notes prior to maturity and the repneing of our 2016 Senior Term Loan.

Earnings (losses) from equity method investments—Eamings (losses) from equity method investments decreased to $(5.0) million in 2018 from $13.0
million in 2017, Tn 2018, we recognized $4.1 million of income related to operations al out Net Lease Venture (which we consolidate as of June 30, 2018),
54.7 million of income fiom our equity method tnvestment in SAFE and $13.8 million was aggregate losses from our remaining equity method investments,
inclusive of a $10.0 milhon impartment on a non-U.S. equity method investment due to local macket conditions and a $6.1 million impaitment on a land and
development equity method investment due to a change in business strategy. In 2017, we recognized $4.7 million primarily from profit participations on a
land devclopment venture, $4.5 million related o operations at our Net Lease Venture, $2.6 million iclated to sales activity on a land development venture
and S1 2 million aggregate income from ouriemaining equity method investments.

Gain on consolidation of equity method investment—On June 30, 2018, we gained control of the Net Lease Venture when 1ts investment period
cxptied. As a result. on that date we consolidated the assets and liabilitics of the venture which had previously been accounted for as an equity method
investment. We recorded a gain 0£367.9 million as a result o( the consolidation.

Income tux (expense) benefit—Income taxcs are primarily generated by assets held in our TRS. An income tax expense of$0.8 million was recorded in
2018 and a $0 9 million income tax benefit was recorded in 2017, The income tax expense for 2018 includes federal taxes related 1o one of our TRS's, state
margins taxes and other minimum state franchise taxes. The income tax benefit for 2017 primarily relates to the credit for prior year’s minimum taxes
genceated 1n 2015 and 2014 for which we expect Lo receive refunds from changes made by the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act to the corporate altemative mintmum
L.

We also incurred a tax liability in 2017 for $6.1 million of alternative mrnimum tax uposed at the REIT level. The Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, however,
pennits us to clarm a refundable credit for pror year's minimum taxes over the next four years. Therefore, we have no net income tax expense or benefit in our
consalidated sitatement of operations at the REIT level forour 2017 tax liability.

Income from discontinued operations—In Apnl 2017, two institutional investors acquired a controlling interest in our ground leasc business through
the werger of onc of our subsidianes and related transactions. Income from discontinued operations represents the operating results from the properties
com;rising our ground lcasc busincss

Gain from discontinued operations—In April 2017, two institutional investors acquired a controlling intetest in our ground lease business through the
merger of one of our subsidianes and related transactions. We accounted for this transaction as an 1n substance sale of real estate and recognized a gan of

$124.4 nullion, reflecting the aggiegate gain less the fair value of our tetained interest in SAFE.

In addiuon, as a result of the adoption of ASU 2017-05, on January 1, 2018, we recorded an increase to retaincd camings of $55.5 million, banging our
apgregate gain on the sale ol our Ground Lease business to approximately $178.9 million (refer to Note 7).
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Results of Operations for the Year Ended December 31,2017 compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2016

For the YVears Ended
December 31,

2017 2016 S Change % Change

(m (lnuuunds)
L TONse
129,153

(3.494).
22.605)

108,539
SA015 e T T e
(26,712

118,909

S STRERLE,

Oft an

axcpreciation andamoniztion: e anv 19.0. : (2627000 5
General and administrative 93,882 84,027 14,855 1% %

k.vfi!w»«nb&z ron
Income tax benefit
ﬁxcum?: Trant dt@mmnﬁi&‘

Gain from dncommucd opcrations
—

Revenue—Operating lease 1ncome, which pnmanly inciudes income trom net lease assets and commercial operating propertics, decreased to $187.7
mitlion in 2017 from $191.2 mitlion in 2016 The following tables summarizes our operating lease mcome by segment ($ 1n millions)

2017 2016 Change

B
0pc1.1unu Prupcruca(z’

1877 $ ) (3.5)

(1} Chaage primarily due to the sale aof assets
(2) Change primarily due to the sale ot assets parvally ottset by the exccution ot new leases
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The followiny table shows certain same store statistics for our Net Lease and Operating Properties segments. Same store assets are defined as asscts we
owned on or priol to January 1,2016 and were i1n service through December 31, 2017 (Operating lease income in millions).

2017 2016

it S i ; e T ‘
Net Lease

Interest income decreased to $106.5 mtllion 1n 2017 from $129.2 million in 2016. The decrease in interest income was due primarily to a decrease 1n the
average balance of our performing loans to $1.07 billion for 2017 from $1.40 biltion for 2016. The weighted average yicld of our performing loans increased
109 8% tor 2017 from 8.9% for2016.

Other income increascd to $188.1 million in 2017 from $46.5 million in 2016 Other income in 2017 primarily consisted of interest income and real
estate tax reimbursements resulting fiom the settlement of the Bevard litigation (refer to Note S), income from our hotel properties and other ancitlary income
from our operating propertics. Other incomce in 2016 consisted of income trom our hotcl propertics, loan prepayment fees and property Lax rcfunds.

Land development revenue and cost of sales—In 2017, we sold residential ots and units and one land parcel totaling 1,250 acres and recognized land
developmentievenue ot'$196.9 million which had associated cost of sales of $180.9 millton. Tn 2016, we sold residential lots and units and recogmzed land
development revenuc of $88.3 million which had assoctated cost of sales of $62.0 million. The increase in 2017 from 2016 was primarily due to the Bevard -
liugation (refer to Note 5), which resulted in us recognizing $114.0 million of land development revenuc and $106.3 million of land development cost of
sales in 2017,

Costs and expenses—Interest expense decreased 10 $194 7 mitlion in 2017 from $221.4 million in 2016. The decrease in interest expense was due to a

decrease 1n the balance of our average outstanding debt. which decreased to $3.58 billion for 2017 from $4.00 billion for 2016. Our weighted average cost of
debt was § 6% for 2017 and 5.6% for 2016,

Real estate expenses increased to $147.6 muilion in 2017 from $137.5 million 1n 2016. The increase was due to expenses for commercial operating
propertes, which increased Lo $83.4 million in 2017 from $73.6 million in 2016. This increcase was primarily duc to an increase in expenses at our hotel
propertics and expenses incwred at properties impacted by the hurricanes that hit the United States. These increases were partially offset by property sales in
2017 and 2016. Expenses associated with residential units decreased to $6.3 million in 2017 from $8.8 million in 2016 due to unit sales. Expenses for same
storc commercial operating properties, excluding hotels, increased to $30.9 million in 2017 from $30.2 million in 2016. Expenses for net lease assets
decreased to $16.7 million in 2017 trom $18.2 million in 2016 primarily duc to asset sales. Expenses for same store net leasc asscts increased to $14.9 million
in 2017 from $13 § million in 2016. Camy costs and other expenses on our land and development assets increased 1o $41.2 million in 2017 from $37.0
mill:on 1in 2016.

Depreciation and amortization decrcased to $49.0 million in 2017 from $51.7 million for the same period in 2016. The decrease was primarily due to
the salc ot'net teasc asscts and commercial operating propertics in 2017 and 2016.

General and administrative expenses increased to $98.9 million in 2017 from $84.0 million in 2016. The increase was primarily duc to an increase in
compensation expense rclated to perfonnance incentive plans.

Recovery of loan losses was $5.8 niillion in 2017 as compared to a net recovery of loan losses of $12.5 million in 2016. The recovery of loan losses in
2017 resulted from a reduction in the general reserve duc to an overall improvement in the risk ratings of our loan portfolio. The net recovery of loan lasses in
2016 1ncluded 1ecovenes of specific reserves of $13.7 million and a decrease in the general reserve of $12.7 million, partially offset by new specific reserves
ol'$13.9 million N
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In 2017, we recorded hmpainnents of $32.4 million on land and development and real estate assets The impaimments recorded n 2017 were primanly
the result of iImpairments an land and development asscts of $20.5 million resulting from a decrease in expeeted cash flows on onc assctand a change m exit
strategy on another asset We also recorded impairments of $11.9 million on real estate assets due 1o shitting demand in the focal condominium markets and
changes in our exit stratcgy on other real cstate asscts. In 2016, we wccorded impaimments on tcal cstate asscts totahing $14.5 million comprised of $3.a
million on a land asset resulting from a change 1n business strategy, $5.8 million on 1esidental operating properties iesulting from untavorable tocal market
conditions and $4.9 million on the sale of net lease asscts.

Other expense increased to $21.0 million in 2017 from $5.9 million in 2016. The incicase was pnmanly the result of paying organization and ollenng
costs associated wath the initial public offening of SAFE (refer to Note 7) and costs incurred i conncction with the iepncing ot ouwt 2016 Senior Term Loan
{refer 1o Note 10) recorded 1n 2017,

Income from sales of reul extate—Income hom sales of 1eal estate decieased to $92.0 intllion m 2017 trom $105 3 molhon in 2016 The tollowng tabte
presents our income from sales of real estate by segment (8 in millions)

2017 2010

Operating Properties

O T R

1 d e it

Total income trom sales of real estate

(1) During the year ended Decemaber 31, 2016, we sold a lund and development usset 0 ¢ newly tormed unconsolidated enuty tn which we own u 50 0% equity mieiest and
recognized a gain on sate of $8.8 miilion. reflecung our share of the interest sold o a third party

Loss on early extinguishment of debt, net—In 2017 and 2016, we incurred losses on early extingushment of debt of 314.7 mullion and $1 6 mithon,
respectively. In 2017, we incurred lusses on carly extinguishiment of debt primarily resulting frum repayments uf unsecured nutes prioe tu maturity and the
repricing ot our 2016 Senior Term Loan. In 2016, we incurred tosses on the carly extinguishment ot debt primartly related to repayments ot seeured faciliiies
and unsecured notes prior to matunty.

Earnings from equity method investments—Eamings from equity method investments decreased to $13.0 million 1n 2017 fiom $77 3 mullion 1n 2016
n-2017, we recognized $4.7 million primanly from profit participations on a land development venture, $4 5 million related o operatons at vur Net fease
Venture, $2.6 million related to sales activity on a land development venture and $1.2 mullion was aggregate income trom our remaining equity method
mvestments. In 2016, we recognized $33.2 million prnmarily fom the sale of an equity method investment 10 4 commercial operaing property, we
recognized $11.6 million of camings primarily trom the non-callable distribution ot non-recourse financing procecds in exceess of pur carrying value at ong of
our land equity method investments, $22.1 million related to sales activity on a land development ventuie, $3.6 million related to leasing operations at our
Net Lease Venture and $6.8 million was aggregate income from our remaining equity method investments.

Income tux (expense) benefit—Income laxes are pnmarily generated by assets held in our TRS Anincome Lax benefit 0130 9 mithon wasrecorded n
2017 and a §10.2 million income tax benefit was recorded in 2016. The Tax Cuts and Jobs Act climimated the corporate altemative nummuin tax and gants
corporations a refundable credit for prior years’ minimum taxes pard. The income tax benefit for 2017 pnmanly relates 1o the credit fur prioy year's mimimum
taxes generated in 2015 and 2014 for which we expect to receive refunds from changes made by the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act to the corporate altemative
minimum tax. The income tax benefit for 2016 primarily related to taxable losses gencrated from sales of certatn TRS properties

We also incurrcd a tax liability in 2017 for $6.1 million ot altenative minimum tax imposcd at the REIT tevel The Tux Cuts and Jubs Act, however,
permits us to claim a refundable credit for prior year’s minimum taxes over the next four years. Therefore, we have no net tncome tax expense o1 benelitim our
consolidated statement of operations at the REIT level for our 2017 tax lability.

-Income from discontinued operations—In Apnl 2017, two institutional investors acquired a controlling tntetest 1n our ground lease busmess through
the merger of one of our subsidiaries and related transactions. Income trom discontinued operations represents the operaung resulis trom the properties
comprising our ground lease business.

Guain from discontinued operativns—In April 2017, two institutional investors acquired a controlling interest 1n our ground lcase business thiough the
merger of one of our subsidiancs and related transactions. We accounted for this transaction as an 1n substance sale of real estate and recognized a gaw of
$123 .4 million, reflecting the aggregate gain less the fair value of our retained interest in SAFE.
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Adjusted Income

In addition to netincome (loss) prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America ("GAAP"), we use
adjusted imcome, a non-GAAP financial measure, (o measure our operating performance. Adjusted income is used internally as a supplemental performance
mcasure adjusting tor centain non-cash GAAP measures to give management a view of income more directly deiived from cunent period activity. Adjusted
incuine is calculated as net income (loss) allocable to common sharcholders, prior to the effect of depreciation and amortization, provision for (recovery of)
loan losscs, impairment of assets, stock-based compensation expense, the non-cash portion of gain (loss) on early extinguishment ot debt and is adjusted for
the etfeet of gains or losses on charge-offs and dispositions on canrying valuc gross of loan loss reserves and impairments ("Adjusted Income"). In the third
quarner 2017, we moditicd our prescntation of Adjusted Tncome to exclude the effect of the amount of the liquidation preference that was recorded as a
prentium above book value on the redemption of prefeired stock (1efer to Note 13) and the imputcd non-cash interest expense recognized for the conversion
featuie of vur senior conveitible notes (refer w Note 10). Adjusted Income also includes the impact to retained camings (income that would have been
recopntzed in prior perods had the accounting standaids been ctfective duning those prior periods) resulting trom the adoption of new accounting standards
on Jonuary 1, 2018 (reter co Note 3).

Adjusted Income should be cxamined in conjunction with nct income (loss) as shown in our consolidated statcments of opcrations. Adjusted Income
should not be considered as an altemauve o net income (foss) (determined in accordance with GAAP), or to cash flows frum operating activities (determined
in accordance with GAAP), as a measure of our liquidity, nor is Adjusted Income indicative of funds available to fund our cash nceds or available for
distbution to shareholders Rather, Adjusted Income is an additional measure we use to analyze our business performance because it excludes the effects of
ceriain non-cash charges that we betieve are not necessanly indicative of our operating performance while mcluding the effect of gains or losses on

im cstments when realized. Tt should be noted that our manner of calculating Adjusted Tncome may differ fiom the calculations of similarly-titted measurces by
other companics.

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2018 2017

Adjusted Income

R O
l,339 60,828

w&s«"’%‘;) 5138 (,

2 S R

SRR

) Depreciation and amortization also includes our proportionate share of depreciation and amoruzation expense for equity method investments and excludes the portion of
depreciation and amorlization expense allocable to nonconwrolling interests.

(2) Impatment ot assers also inctudes impatrments on equily method avestuents recorded in "Earnings from cquity method 1avestments” in our cansohidated stalements ot
opcrations.

3) Represents an increase (o retained earnings on January 1, 2018 upon the adoption of ASU 2017-05 (refer to Note 3).

(4) Represents the impuct of charge-offs and dispositions realized during the period These charge-offs and dispostuons were¢ on assets that were previously impaired for GAAP

and reflected 1 act income but not in Adjusted lacome.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

During the year ended December 31, 2018, we invested $886.0 million in new investments, prior financing commitments and ongoing development
This amount includcs $574.0 million in tending and othet invesements, $138.7 million to develop our land and development asscts, $57 S nuthion ot capiial
to reposition or redevelop our operating propeities, $115.7 million to mvest in net lease assets and $0 1 milhion 1n othen investments Alau dunng the vea
ended December 31, 2018, we generated $1.579.4 million from loan repayments and asset sales within our portfolio, comprised of $791 2 mullion from real
estate finance, $310.8-million from operating properties, $97.3 million from net lease asscts, $378 7 million fiom land and develupment asseis and S1 4
million from other investments. These amounts are inclusive of fundings and proceeds from both consolidated 1investments and our pro rata share from cquity
mcthod investments,

The following table outlines our capital expenditures on operating properties, net lease and land and development assets as reflected 10 ow
consolidated statements of cash flows for the ycars ended December 31,2018 and 2017, by scginent (S 1n thousands)

For the Years Ended December 31,

2018 2017
— . RENEYELY
3,293
37,067

u_('lfa'gi'(\l_%l)_'éf\'f_élﬁ“;iﬁffﬁ(. : Q:z;;q

Total capital expendituies on land and development assets S 128,543  $ 121,400

As of December 31, 2018, we had unrestricted cash ot $931.8 million. Subsequent to December 31, 2018, we made a $250 0 million cash investment in
Investor Units of SAFE OP and we called the remaining $375.0 million aggregate principal balance of our 5 0% senior notes due July 2019 for redemption
Our primary cash uses over the next 12 months are expected to be tunding of nvestments, capital expenditures, repayment of maturing debt and funding
ongoing business operations. Over the next 12 months, we currently expect to tund n the range of approximately $100 million to $150 mullion oi capital
expenditurcs within our portfolio. The majority of these amounts relate to our land and development projects and vperating properties, and include
multifamily and residential development activities which are expected to include approxunately $65 million 1n vertical construction. The amount actually
invested will depend on the pace of our development activitics as well as the extent 1o which we strategically partner with vthers 1o complete these projects
As of December 31, 2018, we also had approxtmately $489.3 million of maximum unfunded commitments associated with our investments of which we
cxpecet to fund the majority of over the next two ycais, assuming borrowers and tenants mecet all milestones and performance hurdles and all othier conditions
to tundings (sce "Untunded Commitments” below). We also have $516.0 million canying amount ot scheduled real estate finasce maturities over the next 12
months, exclusive of any cxtension options that can be exercised by our borrowers. Our capital sources 1o meet cash uscs through the next 12 months and
beyond are expected to inciude cash on hand, income tiom our portfolio, loan rcp‘aymcnls trom bormowers and proceeds trom assct sales

We canuot predict with certainty the specific transactions we will undcertake to gencrate sufficicnt liquidity to meet our obligations as they come duc
We will adjust our plans as appropnate 1n response to changes in our expectations and changes tn market conditions. While economic trends have stabihzed,
it is not possible for us to predict whether these trends will continue or to quanufy the impact of these or other tiends on our finuncial 1esults. Furthermore, as
more fully described in Ttem la. Risk Factors, our ability to incur more debt to create cash hquidity 1s dependent on our comphance with debt covenants in
our unsecured notes and corporate debt facihues.
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Contructual Obligations—The following table outlines the contractual obligations related to our long-tenm debt obligations, loan paricipations
payable and opcrating lease obligations as of December 31, 2018 (see Item 8—"Financial Statements and Supplemental Data—Note 10").

Amounts Due By Period

Less Than 1 1-3 3.5 5-10 After 10
Total Year Years Years Yeurs Years

S Lty

2,112,500

5,
EA300
180,749

868,749 114,027
AR RE b 04381 : y : egg*(;f:
able®) — 22,642 — — —

4,470,052 § 583,530 S 1,201,376 % 1,909,166 § 630,367 $ 145,613

() Subseyuent to December 31, 2018, we called these otes for redempuion on the redemptivn date of March 7, 2019.
2) Vanable-rate debt assumes one-month LIBOR ot 2.51% and three-moath LIBOR of 2 1% that were in clfect as ot December 31, 2018
3) Reler to Note 9 10 the consolidated financial statements .

2017 Secured Financing—In March 2017, the predecessor of SAFE (which at the time was compriscd of ocur wholly-owncd subsidiarics conducting our
Ground Leasc business) entered into a $227.0 million secured financing transaction (the "2017 Secured Financing™) that accrued 1interest at 3.795% and
matures in April 2027. The 2017 Secured Financing was collateralized by the 12 properties comprising SAFE's initial portfolio. In April 2017, we
derceognized the 2017 Secwed Financing whea third parties acquired a controlling interest in SAFE's predecessor, prior to SAFES's initial public offering
(refer wo Note 4). ’

2016 Senior Term Loan—In June 2016, we cntered into a sentor term loan of $450.0 million (the "2016 Senior Term Loan™). In August 2016, we
upsizcd the facility to $500.0 million. The initial $450.0 million of the 2016 Senior Tenn Loan was issucd at 99.0% of par and the upsize was issued al par. In
September 2017, we reduced, repriced and extended the 2016 Senior Term Loan to $400.0 million priced at LIBOR plus 3.00% with a 0.75% LIBOR floor
and matuning 1n October 2021, In Junc 2018, the Company increased the 2016 Senior Term Loan to $650.0 million, reduced the interest rate to LIBOR plus
2.75% and extended its niaturity to June 2023. The facility was also modified to permit substitution of collateral, subject to overall collateral pool coverage
and concentration limits, over the life of the facility. This modification climinates the mandatory amortization upon payofTor sale of collateral which existed
prior to the upsize and broadens the types of collateral permitied under the facility. We may make optional prepayments, subject to prepayment fees, and are
tcquired to repay 0.25% of the principal amount cach quarter.

2015 Revolving Credit Facility—In March 2015, we entered into our 2015 Revolving Credit Facility. In September 2017, we upsized the 2015
Revolving Credtt Facility to $325.0 million, added additional lenders to the syndicate, extended the malurity date to September 2020 and made certatn other
changes. This facility is secured by a pledge of the cquity interest in a pool of assets which provide asset value coverage for borrowings under the facility.
Bonowings under this credit facility bear interest at a floating rate indexcd to onc of several base rates plus a margin which adjusts upward or downward
based upon our corporatc credit rating. An undrawn credit facility commitment (ee ranges from 0.30% to 0.50% based on corporale credit ratings. At maturity,
we may conver outstanding borrowings to a one year term loan which matures in quarterly installments through September 2021, During the year ended
December 31, 2018, we repaid from cash on hand the $325.0 nullion outstanding on the 2015 Revolving Credit Facility and as of December 31, 2018, we
had $325.0 milhon of bormowing capacity available under the 2015 Revolving Credit Facility.

Unsecured Notes—In September 2017, we issucd $400.0 million principal amount 0f4.625% senior unsecured notes due September 2020,5400.0
muillign principal amount of 5.25% senior unsecured notes due September 2022 and $250.0 million of3 125% Convertible Notes due September 2022,
Procecds from these offerings, together with cash on hand, were used to repay in full the $550.0 million principal amount outstanding of the 4.0% senior
unsccured notes due November 2017, the $300.0 millron principal amount outstanding of the 7.125% senior unsecured notes due February 2018 and the
$301.0 nullion principal amount outstanding of the 4.875% scnior unsceured notes due July 2018, In addition, the initial purchasers of the 3.125%
Convertible Notes exercised their option to purchase an additionat $37.5 mitlion aggregate principal amount of the 3.125% Convertible Notes.
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Collateral Asscts—The carrying value of our asscts that are dircctly pledged or are held by substdiaries whosce cquity s pledged as collateral 1o secure
our obligations under our sccured debr facilities arc as follows, by assct type (8 1n thousands)

As of December 31,

20148 N 1017
Nup-Collateral Noyn-Collateral
Collateral Assets!") Assets Coullateral Assetst? Assels
BLOLHR; S 798321 8 I a8GTI0

20,069 48,519
20007 TN

194,529 1.021.340
e 3iaa
898,252
61273

[8))] The 2016 Senior Term Losn and the 2015 Revolviog Credin Fauhly are secured vnly by pledges ot cauity ot certain vl vur substdures and nof by pledye S5
by such subsidwrics. Such subsidiarics arc subjcct to contractual restrictions under the terms of such credit facihues, including 1estictions on ncurang acw debt (subju,l w
ceridm cxceptions) As of Decembea 31, 2018, Collaterat Assets imcludes S403 5 willion canrymy vahie ol asssts beld by enuues whose cyuitly mwiests are pledged as
collatera! for the $325.0 million 2015 Revolving Credit Facility that is undrawn 4s of December 31, 2018

(2) Asof December 31, 2018 and 2017, the amounis presented exclude gencral reserves for luan losses o1 $13.0 million and $17 3 mifbon, respecnively

3 As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the amounis presenied exclude loan participauons of 322 5 mithon and $102 3 million, wespreunely.

Debt Covenants

Our outstanding unsecured debt securities contain corporate level covenants that include a covenant (o maintain a a0 of unencumbered assets o
unsccured indcbgcdncss, as such tcnms are defined in the indentures goveming the debt sccurities, of at least 1.2x and a covenant sot to wncur additional
indebtedness (except for incurrences of permitted debt), 1f on a pro forma basis, our consolidated fixed charge coverage mto, determined 1n accordance wath
the indentures governing our debt securities, is 1.5x or lower If any of our covenants are breached and not cuted within applicable cure penods, the breach
could result in acceleration of our debt securities unless a waiver or modification is agreed upon with the requisite percentage of the boadholders 1t ow
ability to incur additional indebtedness under the fixed charge coverage ratio 1s limited, we are permmitted to incur tndebtedness tor the purpose ot refinuncing
existing indebtedness and for other pemuitted purposes under the indentures

The 2016 Senior Term Loan and the 2015 Revolving Credit Facihity contain certain covenants, including covenants relating to collateral coverage.
dividend payments, restnctions on fundamental changes, transactions with affiliates, matters xcl ating to the licns granted to the fenders and the delivery ot
information to the lenders In paiticular, the 2016 Sentor Term Loan requires us tom

¢ of at teast 1.25a ouistundayg borowings on
the facility. The 2015 Revolving Credit Facility is secured by a borrowing base of asscts and requircs us to matntain both collateral coverage of at least | 5x °
outstanding borrowings on the facility and a consolidated rauo of cash flow to lixed charges of at least 1.5x The 2015 Revolving Credit Facitity does not
require that proceeds from the berrowing base be used to pay down outstanding bonowings provided the collateral coverage temains at least 1 5x
outstanding borrowings on the facility. To satisfy this covenant, we have the option 1o pay down outstanding botrowings o1 substitute assets in the
borrowing base We may not pay common dividends if we cease to quality as a REIT In June 2018, we umended the terms of the 2016 Sentor Tenn Loan and
the 2015 Revolving Credit Facility to include the ability 1o pay conuuon dividends with no testnctions so long as we are not in default oa any of vur debt
obligations.

Derivatives—Qur use of denvative financial instruments is primarily limited to the uttlization of inteest rate swaps, ntefest rate caps or other
instruments lo manage interest rate risk exposure and foreign exchange contracts to manage our risk to changes in foreign cunencies See Item 8—"Fmancial
Statements and Supplemental Data—Note 12" for further details.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements—We are not dependent on the usc of any oft-balance sheet financing amangements for liquidity We bave made
investments in various unconsolidated ventures. Sce Item 8—"Financial Statements and Supplemental Data—Note 7% for turther details ot vur
unconsolidated investments. Qur maximum cxposure to loss from these investments is linited 10 the canying value of our investments and any unfunded
commitments (sce below). !

Unfunded Commitments—We generally fund construction and development loans and build-outs of space i real cstate assets over a penod of time if
and when the borrowers and tenants mcet established mulestones and other performance critena. We refer to these arangements as Perfonrance-Bascd
Commitments. In addition, we have committed to invest capital in several real estate funds and other ventures. These arrangements are referred to as Stretegic
Investments.
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As of December 31, 2018, the maximum amount of fundings we may be obligated to make under each category, assuming all performance hurdles and

milestones are met under the Performance-Based Commitments and assuming 100% of our capital commutted to Strategic Investments is drawn down, arc as
tollows (in thousands):

Loans and Other Other
Lending Investmentst") Real Estate Investments

() Excludes $27 4 million of commistments on loan participauons sold thdt are not our vbligauon.

Stock Repurchase Program-—We may repuichase shares in negotiated transactions or open market transactions, including through one or more trading
plans. Dunng the year ended December 31, 2018, we 1epurchased 0.8 million shares of our outstanding common stock for $8.3 million, representing an
aveiage cost of $10.22 per share. In addition, 1 connection with the sale of the 3.125% Convertible Notes 1n September 2017 (refer to Note 10), we
1epurchased 4.0 nullion shares of our common stock for $45 9 million, representing an average cost of$11.51 per share in privately negotiated transactions
with purchasers of the 3.125% Convertible Notes.

Preferred Equity—In October 2017, we redeemed our Serics E and Series F preferred stock at par for the aggregate liquidation preference of $240.0
million plus accrued dividends to the redemption date {reter to Note 13).

Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements 1n accordance with GAAP tequires management to make estimates and judgments in centain circumstances that
affect amounts reported as assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. We have established detailed policies and contol procedures intended to ensure that
valuation methods, including any judgments made as part of such methods, are well controlled, reviewed and applied consistently from period to period. We
busc our estimates on historical corporate and industry experience and various other assumptions that we believe to be appropriate under the circumstances.
For all of these estimates, we caution that future e ents rarely develop exactly as forecasted, and, therefore, routinely require adjustioent.

During 2018, management reviewed and cevaluated these crtical accounting estimates and believes they are appropriate. Our significant accounting
policics are described in Iiem 8—"Financial Statements and Supplemental Data—Note 3." The following is a summary of accounting policies that require
more signtficant management estimates and judgments:

Reserve for loan losses—The reserve tor loan losses reflects management's estimate of loan losses inherent in the loan portfolio as of the balance sheet
date. If we determine that the collateral fair value less costs to scll is less than the canrying value of a collateral-dependent toan, we will record a reserve. The
reserve is increased (decreased) through "Provision for (recovery of) loan losses™ in our consolidated statements of operations and is decreased by charge-offs.
Nuring delinquency and the foreclosure process, there are typically numerous points of negotiation with the borrower as we work toward a settlement or other
altemauve resolution, which can impact the potential for loan repayment or receipt of collateral. Our policy is to charge off a loan when we detennine, based
on a variety of factors, that all commercially reasonable means of recovering the loan balance have been exhausted. This may occur at ditferent times,
including when we reccive cash or other asscts in a pre-foreclosure sale or take contiol of the underlying collateral in full satisfaction of the loan upon
foreclosure or deed-in-l1eu, or when we have otherwise ceased significant collection efforts. We consider circumstances such as the foregoing to be indicators
that the final steps in the loan collection process have occurred and that a loan is uncolleetible. At this point, a loss is confirmed and the loan and related
teseive wll be charged off. We have one portfolio segment, represented by commercial real estate lending, whereby we utilize a uniform process for
determining our reserves Jor loan losses. The reserve for loan losses includes a gencral, tornmula-based component and an asset-specitic component.

The gencral reserve component covers performing loans and reserves for loan losses are recorded when: (1) available information as of cach balance
sheet date indicates that it is probable a loss has occurred in the portfolio; and (i1) the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The formula-based
general reserve is derived from estimated principal default probabilitics and loss severities applied to groups of loans based upon risk ratings assigned to
loans with similar risk characteristics during our quarterly loan portfolio assessment. During this assessment, we perform a comprehensive analysis of our 1oan
porttolio and assign risk ratings to loans that incorporute management's current judgments about their credit quality bascd on all known and relevant intemal
and cxtemal factors that may affect collectability. We consider, among other things, payment status, lien position, borrower financial resources and
investment in collateral, collateral type, project cconomics and geographical location as well as national and regional economic factors. This methodology
results in loans being segmented by nsk classification into risk rating catcgories that are associated with estimated probabilities of default and principal loss.
Ratings range from "1" to "5" with "1 " representing
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the lowest risk of'loss and "5 representing the highest risk of loss. We estimate loss rates based on hustonical realized losses expernienced within our portiolio
and take intc account current cconomuc conditions atfecting the commercial real estate market when establishing appropriate tme frames to evaluate toss
experience.

The asset-specific reserve component relates to reserves for losses on impaned loans. We consider a loan to be impaued when, based upon cunrent
information and cvents, we belicve that 1t 1s probable that we will be unable to collect all amounts duc under the contractual tems ot the loan agicement
This assessment 1s made on a loan-by-loan basis cach quarter based on such factors as payment status, hien positon, bomower financial resources and
mvestment in collateral, collateral type, project economics and geographical location as well ay national and regional econonne fuctors A teserve s
established for an impaired loan when the present value of payments expected to be receved, observable market prices, or the estimated farr value of the
collateral (fo1 loans that aic dependent on the collateral for repayment)1s lower than the canying value of that loan

Substantially all ot ourimpaired loans are collateral dependent and impaiment 15 measured using the estunated fan value ot collateral, less costs o sell
We generally use the income approach thraugh internally developed valuation models to estunate the faie value of the collateral tor such lodns ln some
cases, we obtain external "as is" appratsals for loan collateral, generally when third party participations exist Valuattons are pertormed o1 obtained at the trme
a loan is determined to be impaired and designated non-performing, and they are updated 1f cucumstances indicate that a signiticant change ¢ value has
occurred. [n limuted cases, appraised values may be discounted when real estate markets rapidly deterionate

Alodn is also considered impaired if its terms are modified in a troubled debt restructuring ("TDR™) A TDR oceurs when we grant g corvession g
debtor that is experiencing financial difficultics. Impaimments on TDR loans are generally measuted bascd on the present vatuc of expected tuture cash flows
discounted at the effective inteiest rate of the original loan.

The provision for (rccovery of) loan losscs tor the ycars cnded Deccember 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 were $16.9 mullion, $(5.8) mullion and $(12 5)
million, respectively. The total reserve for loan losses as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, included asset specitic reserves of $40 4 million and $61 0 mithon,
respectively, and general reserves 0f $13.0 mitlion and $17.5 million, respectively.

Acquisition of real estate—We generally acquire real estate assets or land and development assets through purchases ot through toreclosure or decd-in-
lieu of foreclosure n full or partial satisfaction of non-performing loans. When we acquire assets these properties are classified as "Real estate, net” or "Land
and development, net” on our consolidated balance sheets. When we intend 1o hold, operate or develop the property for a perod of at least 12 months, assets
arc classified as "Real estate, net," and when we intend to market these properties fo1 sale 1n the near term, assets aie classilied as "Real estate avanlable and
held for sale.” When we purchase assets the properties are recorded at cost. Foreclosed assets classified as real estate and land and develupment ate minally
recorded at thetr estimated fair value and assets classified as assets held for sale are recorded at their estimated fan value less costs to sell. The excess of the
carying value of the loan over these amounts is charged-off against the reserve for loan losses. In both cases, upon acquisition, tangible and intangible assets
and liabilities acquired are recorded at their estimated fair values.

During the years ended December 31, 2048 and 2016, we received title to propenies in sausfaction of mongage toans with fan values of $4.6 nulhon
d $40.6 mitlion, respectively, for which those propertics had served as collateral. We did not take utle 1o any properties during the year ended December

nd
1,2017.

d
-
3

Impairment or disposal of long-lived assets—Real cstate asscts to be disposed of are reported at the lower of their carrying amount or estimated fair
value less costs to sell and are included 1n "Real estate available and held for sale” on our consolidated balance shects The difterence between the estimated
fair value less costs to scll and the camrying value will be recorded as an impairment charge. Impaimment for real estate assets are included i "lmpairment of
assets” in our consolidated statements of operations. Once the asset 1s classitied as held o1 sale, depreciation expense 15 no longes secorded

We periodically review real estate 1o be held and used and land and development assets for impairment in value whenever events ur changes n
circumstances indicate that the camrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable. The asset's value 15 impanted only 1t management's estimate of the
aggregate future cash flows (undiscounted and without interest charges) ta be generated by the asset (taking tnta account the anticipated holding penod ot
the assct} is less than the carrying value. Such estimate of cash flows consideis factors such as expected future operating income. uends and prospects, as well
as the effects of demand, compelition and other cconomic factors, To the extent impairment has occurred, the loss wall be measuted as the excess ol the
carrying amount of the property over the fair value of the asset and reflected as an adjustment to the basis of Lhe asset Impairments of real estate and land and
devclopment asscts arc recorded in "Impairment of asscts" in our consolidated statenmcents of operations.

During the ycar cnded December 31, 2018, we recorded aggregate impairments on real cstate and land and development asscts o $147 1 mithion Refer
to "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis - Qur Porttolio" for more intonmation on the impauments we recorded during the year ended December 31,
2018. Durning the year ended December 31, 2017, we recorded
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impainnents on real estate and land and development asscts totaling $32.4 million. The impainments recorded in 2017 were primarily the result of
impiuments on land and development assets of $20 § mudlion resulting from a decrease in expected cash flows on one assct and a change 1 exit strategy on
another assct, and impairments of $11.9 million on real estate assets due to shifiing demand in the local condominium markets and changes in our exit
stiategy on othet tcal cotate asscts. During the year ended December 31, 2016, we recorded impaitments on tcal cstate and land and devclopment asscts
wlaling $14 § million 1esulung from unfavorable local market conditions, sales of net lease assets and changes in business strategy for certain assets.

Identified intangible assets and liabilities—We record intangible assets and liabilities acquired at their estimated fair values, and detennine whether
such wntangible assets and habilitues have finite or indefinite lives. As of December 31, 2018, all such acquired intangible assets and liabilities have finite
fives. We amortize finite lived intangible asscts and liabilitics over the period which the assets and fiabilitics are expected to contribute directly or indirectly
to the futuwie cash flows of the bustness acquired. We review finite hived intangible assets for impaimment whenever events or changes 1n circumstances
mdicate that their camying amount way not be recoverable. It we determine the carrying value of an intangible asset 1s not recoverable we will record an
imparrment charge to the extent its camrying value exceeds its estimated fair value, impaimients of intangibles are recorded in "Lmpainnent of assets" in our
con:oltdated statemeats of operations

Valuation of defesved tax assets—Delenied income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilittes for tinancial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes, as well as operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. We evaluate
our .abihity to realize our defemed tax assets and vecognize a valuation allowance 1f, based on the available evidence, both positive and negative, 1t is more
iikeiy than noi that some portion or ali of our deierred tax assets wiil not be realized. When evaiuating our ability to realize our deferred tax assets, we
consider, among uther matters, estimates of expected futuie taxable tncome, nature of current and cumulative losses, existing and projected book/tax
difterences, Lax planning strategics available. and the general and industry specific cconomic outlook. This analysis is inherently subjective, as it requires us
to forecast our business and genctal ccononuc environment m future periods, Changes in estimate of our ability to realize our defened tax assct, if any, arc
included in "Income tax {expense) benefit” in the consolidated statements of operations.

While certain entitries with NOLs may generate profits in the future, which may allow us to utilize the NOLs, we continue to record a full valuation
allowance on the net defered tax asset due to the history of losses and the uncertaioty of the entities' abitity to generate such profits, We recorded a full
valuation allowance 0f'$78 | million and $63.3 million as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Variable interest entities—We cvaluate our investments and other contractual amangements to determine if our interests constitute variable interests in
a vanable interest entity ("VIE") and 1t we are the primary beneficiary. There is a significant amount of judgment required to determine if an eatity is
considered a VIE and if we are the primary beneliciary. We first perform a qualitative analysis, which requires certain subjective decisions regarding our
assessment, including, but not limited to, which interests create or absorb varability, the contractual terms, the key decision making powers, impact on the
VIE's cconomic performance and rclated party relationships. An iterative quantitative analysis is required if our qualitative analysis proves inconclusive as to
whether the entity is a VIE or we are the primary beneficiary and consolidation is required.

Fair value of assets und liabilities—Thc degree of management judgment involved in determining the fair valuc of asscts and liabilitics is dependent
upon the availability of quoted market prices or observable market parameters. For financial and nonfinancial assets and liabilities that trade actively and
have quoted market prices o1 observable market parameters, there is minimal subjectivity involved in measuring fair valuc. When observable market prices
and parameters are not fully available, management judgment is necessary to estimate fair value. In addition, changes in market conditions may reduce the
avaiiability of quoted prices ot observable data. For example, teduced liquidity in the capital matkets or changes in sccondary market activities could result
in observable market inputs becoming unavaitable. Therefore, when market data is not available, we would use valuation techniques requiring more
management judgment to estimate the appropnate fair value measurement. -

Sec ltem 8—"Financial Statements and Supplemental Data—Note 16" for a complete discussion on how we determine fair value of financial and non-
linancial assets and financral liabilities and the related measurement techniques and estimates involved.
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Itemn 72. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
Market Risks

Market nsk 1s the exposure to loss resulting from changes in interest rates, foreign cumency exchange rates, conunodity pnces ¢nd equity pnees In
pursuing our business plan, the primary market risk to which we arc cxposed 15 interest 1ate nsk. Qut operating tesults will depend in part on the ditteience
between the interest and related income earned on our assets and the interest expense incurred 1n connection with our interest-beating habshues Changes in
the general level of interest rates prevailing 1o the financial markets will affect the spread between our foating rate assets and habilives subject to the net
amount of floaung rate assets/habilitics and the impact of interest 1ate floors and caps. Any significant compression of the spicads between interest-eaming
assets and nterest-bearing habilities could have a matenal adverse effect on us

In the event of a significant nsing interest rate environinent or economic downtum, defaults could increase and cause us to e addivonal credit
losses which would adversely affect our liquidity and eparatng results. Such delinguencies o1 defaults would likely have a matenal advetse ettect on the
spreads between interest-caming assets and interest-bearing Liabilities. In addition, an mcredse in interest 1ates could, among other things, 1educe the value ot
our fixed-rate intercst-bearing assets and our abulity to 1calize gains from the sale ot such assets

Intcrest mates arc fughly scastiive to many factors, inciuding governmenta) monctary and tax policies, domestic and intemational ceconomue and
political conditions, and other factors beyond our conuiol We monitor the spreads between our interest-caming assets and interest-beanng habilities and may
implement hedging strategies to it the effects of changes in interest rates on our operattons, including cngaging in inlerest rate swaps. inteiest rale caps
and other intetest rate-related derivative contracts. Such strategies are designed to reduce our exposute, on specific transactions or on a poittolio basis, to-
changes in cash flows as a result of interest rate movements in the market. We do not cnier 1nlo denvative contracts for specutative purposes o1 as a hedge
against changes n our credit risk or the credit risk of our borrowers.

While a REIT may utilize derivative instruments (o hedge interest mte nsk on its habilities mcurred to acquire o1 carry real estate assets without
generating non-qualifying income, usc of derivatives for other purposes will generate non-quatified income for REIT income test purposes This includes
hedging asset related risks such as credit, foreign exchange and 1nterest rate exposure on our loan assets. As a result our abslity to hedge thesz 1ypes of nisks is
limited. There can be no assurance that our profitability will not be matenally adversely affected during any period as a result of changing intetest rates

The following table quanutics the potential changes in annual net income, assuming no change in our interest eamung assets ot intetest bearing
liabilities, should interest rates increase ot decrease by 10, 50 or 100 basis points, assuming no change in the shape of the yield curve (e, relauve interest
ratcs). The basc intcrest ratc-scenario assumcs the onc-month LIBOR ratc of 2 50% as of December 31, 2018 Actual results could differ significantly fiom
those estimated in the table.

Estmated Change In Net Income
(8 in thousands)

Ncl Incomet

(1)  We have an overall net variable-rale asset postion, which results m an increase i net meome when rales increase and g decrease in net iweome when rales decrease As of
December 31, 2018, S462.4 million of our floating raiw loans have a cumulauve weighted average LIBOR floor of 1 1% and $22 6 nullion of our floaung rawe debt hus o
cumulative weighted average inwrest rate floor of 0.4%.



Table of Coatents

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplemental Data

Index to Financial Statements

AT

?(1I8

017 dnd 2()16

54




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the sharcholders and the Board of Directots of 1Star Inc.

Opinion on the Financial Statements

¢
We have audited the accompanyiny consohidated balance sheet of 1Star Inc. and subsidianies (the "Company™) as ot December 31, 2018, the related
coansolidated statements of oparations, comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash Hows, for the year ended December 31, 2018 and the related
notes and the schedules listed 1n the Index at item 15 (collectively referred to as the “financial statements”) In our opimion, the financiat statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the financeal position of the Company as of December 31, 2018, and the 1esults of its operations and its cash lows for the year
ended December 31, 2018, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted i the United States of America

We have also audited, in accordance with the standaids of the Public Company Accounting Overstght Board (Unsted States) (PCAOB), the Company'’s
internal control over financial reporung as of December 31, 2018, based on ciitena established n Internal Cantrol - Integrated Framesork (2013)1ssucd by
tie Committee of Sponsoring Organizauons of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 25, 2019, expressed gn ungualificd opiniun on e
Company's intemal control over financial reporting.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 3 to tiie financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which 1t accounts for the transfer and derccogniuon of noalinoncal
asscts and in substance nonfinancial asscis 1n 2018 due to the adoption of Accounung Standards Update 2017-05,*Other Income - Gains and Losses from the
Derecognition of Nonfinancial Assets”.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's managemeat. Our responsibility 18 to express an opmion on the Company's financial
statements based on our audit. We are a public accounung firm registered with the PCAOR and are requued o be independent with respect to the Company
in accordance with the U.S. fcderal sccuritics laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Sceurtties and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards 1equire that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are fiee of material misstatement, whether duce to error or fiaud. Our audit included performing proceduies to
assess the risks of material misstalement of the financial statements, whether due to enor or fraud, and performing procedures that respond o those risks. Such
procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosuies 1n the financial statements. Out audit also included
evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as cvaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

New York, New York
February 25,2019

We have served as the Company's auditor since 2018.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the shaicholders and the Board of Dircctors of 15tar Inc.

Opinion on Internal Coatrol over Financial Reporting

We have audited the temnal conttol over financial reporting of iStar [nc and subsidiaries (the “Company™) as of December 31, 2018, based on criteria
established 10 Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Conunission (COSO).
In out opinton, the Company maintained, 1n all matenal respects, eflective intemal control over {inancial reporting as of December 31,2018, based on criteria
established w Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by COSO.

We have also audited, in accordance wrth the standards ot the Public Compuny Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the consolidated
financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2018, of the Company and our report dated February 25, 2019, expressed an unqualified
opinion on those financial statements and included an explanatory paragiaph iegarding the Company’s change in the manner in which it accounts for the
uansler and derecognition of nonfinancial assets and 1n substance nonfinancial assels in 2018 due to the adoption of Accounuing Standards Update 2017-05,
“Otl:er Income - Gains and Losses from the Derecognition of Nonfinancial Assets™.

Basis for Opinion

The Company’s management 1s responsible for maintaining effective intemal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the cffectiveness of
inteinal conirol over financial repoiiing, included in the accompanying Management’s Repori on Intemal Conitol over Financial Repoiting. Our
respunsibtlity 1s to express an opinion on the Company’s intetnal coatrol over financial reporting based on our audit, We are a public accounting tirm
registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the
applicable rules and regulations of the Secuntics and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether cffective mtemal control over financial 1cporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an
understanding of intemal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a matcrial weakness exists, testing and cvaluating the design and operating
cffectivencss of intemnal control based on the assessed risk, and performing-such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe thal our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Repaorting .

A cempany's intermal conuol over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the rcliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements tor extemal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control
over financial reporting includes those policics and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of tecords that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of tinancial statements tn accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide rcasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timeiy detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material eftect on the financial statements.

Becuuse of its inherent limitations, internal conuol over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of

effecuiveness to future penods are subject 1o the nsk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies ot procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
New York, New York
Febiuary 25,2019
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Board of Dircctors and Sharcholders of iStar Inc

Opinion on the Financial Statements

:
We have audited the consolidated balance shect of1Star Inc. and 1ts subsidiancs (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2017, and the related consolidated
stalements of operatious, comprehensive income (loss), changes in equity and cash flows 1o cach of the 1wo yeais in the pertod ended December 31,2017,
mcluding the related notes and the accompanying schedules of valuation and qualifying accounts and reserves. real estate and accumulated depreciation,
and mortgage loans on real estate tor each of the two years in the period ended December 31,2017 (vollecuively referred to as the "consoliddted tinancral
statements™).

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements preseat farrly, tn all matcerial respects, the financial position of the Company as ot December 31, 2017,
and the results of its operations and its cash tlows tor cach ot the two years in the peniod ended December 31, 2017 in conformity with accounting prnciples

generdlly accepted in the United Stdtes of America.

Change wn Accounting Principles

Busis for Opinion

Thesc consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management Qur iesponsibility 1s to express an opinion on the Company's
consolidated financial statements based on our dudits. We are a public accounting finn registered with the Public Company Accountng Qversight Board
(United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company tn accordance with the U.S. federal securitics faws and the
applicable rules and regulations of the Secunues and Exchange Commmussion and the PCAOB

We conducted our audits of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standaids requuie that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whetlier due to error or
traud

Our audits included performing procedures to asscss the risks ot material misstatement ot the consolidated financial statcments, whether duc to erot or traud,
and pedforming procedures that respond to thuse nisks. Such procedures included examining, on.a test basis, evidence regaiding the amounts and dssclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant esumales made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis tor our opinion

/s/PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

New York, New York

February 26, 2018, except for the change in manner in which the Company classifies certain cash recespts and cash payments and the change 1n mannet in
which it presents restricted cash on the consolidated statements of cash flows discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, as to which the
date is February 25,2019

We scrved as the Company's auditor from at least 1997 to 2018. We have not been able to detemune the specific year we began serving as auditor of the
Company.
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iStar Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands, except per share data)

As of December 31,

2018 2017

860 31 I
300655
321,241
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Total lldblllllcs and equity s 5 014 277 s 4 731 078

Note - Refer to Note 2 for detatls on the Company's consolidated variable interest entities (*WI1Es").,
pany

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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iStar Inc.
Consolidated Statemneuts of Operations

(In thousands, except per share data)

For the Yeurs Ended December 31,

01 2017 e

20%,192 < 1X7.684 < 1yl 1X0
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145 091 a6 514

Y0687

679,202

194,656
Ta.6177

180,916

H ;Gn\h"'

$4.027
12504

lmp.unncmot dss:ls 147,108 32379 14,484

994140

(18.326)

iy,

Prefericd dividends

T
ﬂ

_"t

110,924

i,

10 93)

Diluted

() For the ycars ended Decomber 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, includes $15.4 oullion, $14.9 miltion and S5 8 mulhan, respectis cly. of cquity-based compensauon associated with
1PIP Plans (1efer to Note 14) These plans are hability-based plans which are marked-to-market Quarterly and such marks are based upon the pertormance ol the assets
underlying the plans as of the quarwrly mcasurement daies, however, actual amouets cannot be determined until the ead date of the plans and the ultinate repayment vt
monetrzation of the related assess.

) Parucipating Sccurity holders arc nun-cmiployce dircctors who hold common siock cquinalemis ("CSEs") and resmicicd stock awards aranted arder the Company's T onyg
Term Incentive Plans that are ehigible w patuctipate in dividends (sefzr to Note 14 and Note 15)

The accompanying nates are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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.~ iStar Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)
(In thousands)

For the Years Ended December 31,
2018 2017 2016

Rv:n.lamﬁcdllon of |o>aes on (.umulduvc Lranslauun ddjuslmenl nto carni
izattont!)

(N

(1 135)

"“‘? 6‘)9) 23%‘;2»

[N
S

Comprehensive income (loss) atmbu(ablc to iStar Inc. (47 050) $ 177 418 S 95,939

(1) Amaunts were teclassfied to. Lnnungs from Lquuy ‘method 1nvestments” 1n the Company's consohdated statements of operations.

(2) Reclassified 10 "Interest expense” in the Company's consolidated statements of operauons are $388, $64 and $217 for the years ended Deceinber 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016,
respectively Amountieclassified 1o "Gain on consolidation ol cquity incthod invesitucnt" 1a the Company's consolidated
statements of vperations is $1,876 for the year ended Decenber 31, 201 8. Reclassified to "Earnings (losses) from equity method investments” in the Company's consoliduted
stalements of operations arc $(20). S304 and $381, re<pectively, for the years ended December 31, Deeember 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Dividends declared—
preferred

Issuance of common
stock for conversion of
semor unsecured
convertible nows

iStar Inc.

Consvlidated Statements of Changes in Equity

(In thousands)

iStar Inc. Sharcholders' Equity

Accumulated
Preferred Common Additional Retained Other
Preferred Stock Stock at Paid-In Earnings Comprehensive  Noncontrolling Total
Stock™" Series J1) Par Capital {Deficit) Income (Loss) Intercsts Equaty

Change n accumulated
other comprehiensive

pawd in caputal
auributable
redecmable

PR A s
flm\‘m)nruttlllllp' interesty
fiteliichivt il

o 4 4 e

Distributions to
noncontrolbng
interestst

Dividends declared—
preferred

payable — Series E
and Scrics F Preferred

Change in additional
paid in capital
attributable
redeemable
noncontrolling
tnterestts)

Distributions to

181,535

(45.92%)




iStar Inc.
Consulidated Statements of Changes in Equity

(In thousands)

iStar Inc. Sharchulders' Equity

Accumulated

Preferred Cummun Additional Retained Other
Pretferred  Stock Series  Stock at Paid-1n Earnings Comprchensive  Noncontrolling Total
Stockt Jo Par Capital {Delicit) Income {Loss) Interests Equity
Balance as of December 31, .

2017 i 12 8 4 8 68 $3,352,665 §(2,470.564) % (2482) S 34546 S y14.24y

Dividends declared— )
common _

— - [$3] (8.303)
o

A

fhon

Distributions to
noncontrolting interests : —

(48,930,

Fetfrb et AL Sade L e R
{rmpact from adoption of new
accounting standards (refer to

75,869

I
) Refer to Note 13 for details on the Company's Preferred Stock
(2) Net ot payments for withholding taxcs upon vesting ot stock-based compensation
3) . For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 net income shown above excludes $1,327 and $6,051 of net loss attributable 1o redeemable noncontrothng intezests
(4) Includes payments of $10.8 mallion to acquire a nonconaolling interest,
(&) Represents the amount paid in excess of its cairying value to acquire a redeemable noncontrolling snterest.
. The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated tinancial statemeuts.
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iStar Inc.
Consulidated Statements of Cash Flows
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iStar Inc.

Notes tu Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1—Business and Organization

Business—iStar Inc (the "Company") finances, invests in and develops real estate and real estate related projects as part of its fully-integrated
investment platform. The Company also manages entities focused on ground lease and net lease investments (refer to Note 7) The Company has invested
apptoxtmately 340 bilhon of capital over the past two decades and 1s structured as a real estate investment trust ("REIT) wath a diversified portfolio focused
on larger assets located in major metropolitan matkets. The Company's primary repontable business segments are real estate finance, net lease and operating
pioperties and land and development (refer to Note 17)

Organization—The Company began 1ts business in 1993 through the management of private investment funds and became publicly traded in 1998.
Since: that time, the Company has grown through the ongination of new investments and cotporate acquisitions.

Basis of Presentation—The accompanying audited consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with gencrally accepted
accounting punciples in the United States of Amenca ("GAAP") for complete financial statements. The preparation of financial statements 1n confornuty with
GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumpuions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and habiliues at the dates of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenucs and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Principles of Consolidation—The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company, its wholly owned subsidiaries,
controlled partnerships and variable interest entitics ("VILs") for which the Company is the primary beneficiary. All intcrcompany balances and transactions
have been eliminated in consolidation. The Company's involvement with VIEs affects its financial performance and cash flows primarily through amounts
recorded in "Operating leasc income," "Interest income," "Eamings from equity method investments," "Real estate expense” and “Interest expense” in the

Company's consolidated statements ot operations. The Company has provided no financial support to those VIEs that it was not previously contractually
required Lo provide. ’
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iStar Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Consolidated VIEs—The Company consolidates VIEs tor which it 1s considered the primary bencticiary. The Liabshities of tirese VIEs are non-recourse
to the.Company and can only be satisfied from cach VIE's respective assets. The Company did not have any unfunded commitments 1elated to consohdated
VIEs as of December 31, 2018, The followiny table presents the assets and habilities of the Compdny's consolidated VIEs s of December 31, 2018 and 2017
($ 1n thousands)

As of

December 31, December 31,
2018 2017

Total liabilities 591,907 38,616

Unconsolidated VIEs—The Company has investnents in VIEs where it is not the prumary bencficiary, and accordingly, the VIEs have not been
consalidated in the Company's consolidated financial statements. As of December 31, 2018, the Compuny’s maximum exposure o loss nom these
investments does not exceed the sum of the $93.2 million canywng value of the investments, which aic classified i "Other investments® and “Loans
receivable and other lending investments, net” on the Company's consolidated balance sheets, and $35.7 million ofielated untunded commitments.

Note 3—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following paragraphs describe the impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements from the adoption of Accounting Standards
Updates ("ASUs") on January 1,2018.

ASU 2014-09—ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Ceontracts with Customers ("ASU 2014-09"), stipulates that an entity should recognize revenue to
depict the wransfer of promised goods or services 1o customers tn an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Ceitain contracts with customers, including lease contracts and financial insuuments and other contractual nghts, aie
oot within the scope of the new guidance. The Company's revenue within the scope of the guidance is primarily ancillary income related 1w 1ts operating
propertics. The Company adopted ASU 2014-09 using the moditied retrospective approach and the adoption did not have a matetial impact on the
Coinpany's consolidated tinancial statements.

ASU 2016-01 and ASU 2018-03—ASU 2016-01, Financial Instruments - Overall: Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Fmancal
Liabilities ("ASU 2016-01"), addressed certain aspects of recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of financial mstruments. ASU 2018-03.
Technical Cormections and Improvements to Financial Instruments - Overall: Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabshities,
provided technical corrections and improvements to ASU 20{6-01. ASU 2016-01 requires entities to measure equity investinents not accounted tor under the
cquity mcthod at fair value and recognize changes in fair value in net income. For cquity investments without readily determnable fais values. entities
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Notes tv Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

may clect a measurcment altermatve that will allow those investments to be recorded at cost, less impairment, and adjusted for subsequent observable price
changes. Upon adoption, entities must record a cumulative-effect adjustment to the balance shect as ot the beginning of the tirst reporting pertod 1n which the
standard is adopted. ASU 2016-01 alsu chiminated the requirement for public business entities to disclose the methods and signtficant assumptions used to
estimate the fair value that 1s required to be disclosed for tinanctal instruments measured at amontized cost on the balance sheet. The adoption of ASU 2016-
01 and ASU 2018-03 did not have a matenal impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

ASU 2016-15—ASU 2016-15, Statement of Cash Flows: Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments ("ASU 2016-15"), was 1ssued to
reduce diversity in practice in how certam cash receipts and cash payments, including debt prepayment or debt extinguishiment costs, distributions from
cquity method investees, and other separately identifiable cash tlows, are presented and classified in the statement ot cash flows. The adoption of ASU 2016-
15 was rewrospective and resulted in an ineredse o cash flows provided by operating acuvities 0f $20.8 million and a decrease to cash flows provided by
finarcing activitics of $20.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2017 and an increasc to cash flows provided by opcrating activitics of $7.3 million and
a decrease to cash flows provided by financing activities of $7.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2016, primarily resulting from the reclassification
of cash payments made related to the extinguishiment of debt.

ASU 2016-18—ASU 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows. Restricted Cash ("ASUJ 2016-18"), requires that restricted ¢
cash cquivalents when reconciling beginning and ending cash and cash cquivalents on the statement of cash flows and n,qulrcs dlsclosurc of what is
included 1n 1estncted cash. The adoption of ASU 2016-18 did not have a matenal impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements. The adoption
of A5U 2016-18 was retrospective and resulted in an increase to cash flows provided by operating activities of $0.6 million and a decrease 1o cash flows
provided by invesung activities of $6 4 million for year ended December 31, 2017 and resulted in an increase to cash flows provided by operating activities
0f'$0.7 million and a decrease to cash flows provided by investing activities of §1.5 million for the ycar ended December 31,2016,

ASU 2017-0t—The adoption of ASU 2017-01, Business Combinations: Clarifying the Definition of a Business ("ASU 2017-01"), did not have a
malerial impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements. Under ASU 2017-01, certain transactions previously accounted for as business
combinations under the former accounting guidance will be accounted for as asset acquisitions under ASU 2017-01. As a result, the Company expects more
transaction costs to be capitalized relating to real estate acquisitions as a result of ASU 2017-01.

ASU 2017-05—ASU 2017-03, Other Income - Gains and Losses from the Derecognition of Nonfinancial Assets ("ASU 2017-05"), simplifies GAAP
by climinating several accounting differences between transactions involving assets and transactions involving busincsses. The amendments in ASU 2017-
05 requite an entity to snivally measure a retained noncontrolling interest in a nontinancial asset at fair value consistent with how a retained noncontrolling
interest in a business is measured. Also, if an entity transfers ownership interests in a consolidated subsidiary that is within the scope of ASC 610-20 and
continues to have a controlling financial 1nterest in that subsidiary, ASU 2017-05 requires the entity to account for the transaction as an equity transaction,
which is consistent with how changes in ownership interests in a consolidated subsidiary that is a business are recorded when a parent retains a controlling
finaucial interest in the busincss. The Company adopted ASU 2017-05 usiny the modified retrospective approach which was applied to all contracts. On
Januucy 1, 2018, the Company recorded a siep-up in basis to {air value of its retained noncontrolling interest relating to the sale of its ground lease business
{refer to Note 4) and other transactions where the Company sold or contributed real estate to a venture and previousty recognized partial gains. Prior to the
adoption of ASU 2017-05, the Company was required to recognize gains on only the portion of its interest transferred to third patics and was precluded from
recognizing a gain on its retained noncontrolling interest which was carmried at the Company's hislorical cost basis. The adoption of ASU 2017-05 had the
tfollowtng impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements (in thousands)

December 31, Impact from ASU 2017-

- 2017 05 on January 1 2018 January 1,2018
?ﬁil'ﬁ;{ rﬁ\"i‘«(lﬁc’.'-_f)xj_," ; - ] s& i

Total assets 4.38006,947

75869 §
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ASU2017-12—-ASU 2017-12, Derivatives and Hedging - Targeted Improvements to Accounting tor Hedging Activities ("TASU 2017-127), was 1ssued
to bettet align an entity’s risk management activities and financial reporung for hedging relationships thiough changes to both the designatan and
measurement guidance for qualifying hedging relauonships and the presentation of hedge results ASU 2017-12 cxpands and refines hedge accountng for
both nonfinanctal and financial risk components and aligns the recognition and presentation of the ettects of the hedgmy instrument and the hedged tem i
the tinancial statements The Company adopted ASU 2017-12 on January 1, 2018 and the adoption did not have a matenal nnpact on the Company's
consolidated financial statements.

Significant Accounting Policies

Real estate and land and development—Recal cstate and land and development assets ate recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and
amortization, as follows:

Cupttalization and depreciativn—Cenain improveinents and replacements ar
projects, the Company begins to capitalize quahfied development and construction

e capitalized when they extend the usetul life of the asset For real estate
costs, |m~|ud|nn nleres

ces, compensution and cor

carrying costs incurred which are spectfically identifiable to a developnient project once activ nu.css.ny to bex l} he asset ready for ns intended use luv:.
commenced. If specific allocation of costs is not practicable, the Company will allocate costs based on telative fair value priol to construction or 1elative
sales value, relative size or other methods as appropnate durning construction The Company’s policy lor interest capitahizauion on quahitying real estate assels
is to use the average amount of accumulated expenditures during the period the asset is being prepared for 1ts mtended use, which 1s typically when physical
construction commences, and a caputahzalion rate which 1s derived from specific bomowings on the qualifying asset o1 the Company’s cotporte borrowiny
rate in the absence of specific borrowings The Company ceases capitalization on the portions substantially completed and ready for then tended use
Repars and maintenance costs are expensed as incumed. Depreciation is computed using the straight-hne method of cost recovery over the estimated useful
life, which is generally 40 years tor facilities, live years for furniture and equipment, the shorter of the rematning lease tenn or expected hte for tenant
improvements and the remaining useful life of the facility for facility improvements.

Purchase price allocation—Upon acquisition of real estate, the Company detennines whether the transaction is a business combrnation, which 1y
accounted for under the acquisition method, o1 an acqutsition of assets. For both types of transactions, the Company recognizes and measwes 1dentitiable
assets acquired, liabtlities assumed and any noncontrotling interest in the acquiree based on their relative fair vatues For bustness combinations, the
Company recognizes and nicasures goodwill or gain from a bargain purchase, 1f applicable, and expenses acquisition-related costs in the penods in which the
costs are incurred and the services are recetved. For acquisitions of assets, acquisition-related costs are capitalized and recorded 1n "Real estate, net” on the
Company's consolidated balance sheets.

The Company accouots for its acqutsition of properties by u,condmg the purchase price of tangtble and in
on their estimated fair values. The value of the tangible assets, consisting of land, buxldmga building nmpluvumnla and tenant improvements ts d::lcnmm.d
as If these assets are vacant. Intangible asscts may include the value of lease incentive assets, above-market leases and m-place leases which are each recorded
gt their estimated fair values and included in “Deferred expenses and other assets, net” on the Company's consolidated balance sheeis Intangible habiliues
may include the value of below-market icases, which are recorded at their estintated fair values and included in “Accounis payable, accrued cxpenses and
other liabilities” on the Company's consolidated balance sheets. In-place leases arc amortized over the remaining non-cancelable term and the amortizauon
expense is included in "Depreciation and amortization” in the Company's consolidated statements ot operations. Lease incentive assels and above-market (or
below-market) lease value is amortized as a reduction of {or, increase to) operating lease income over the remaining non-cancelable term of cach lease plus
any rencwal periods with fixed rental terms that are considered to be below-marketl. The Company may also engagé in sale/leaseback transdctions and
execute leascs with the occupant simultancously with the purchase of the assct. These transactions arc accounted for as assct acquisitions,

Inpairments—The Company reviews real estate assets to be held and used and land and development assets, for impairment in value whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the canrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable. The value of a long-lived asset held for use and land and
devclopment assets are impaired only if management's estimate of the aggregate future cash flows (undiscounted and without interest charges) to be
gencrated by the asset (taking into account the anticipated holding period of the asset) is less than the camying value. Such estimate of cash tlows considets
factors such as expected future operating income trends, as well as the effects of demand, competition and other econonuc factors. To the extent imparrment
has occutred, the loss will be measured as the excess of the carrying amount of the property over the estimated fair
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valuc of the asset and 1ctlected as an adjustment to the basis of the asset. Impaiments of real estate assets and land and development asscts are recorded in
"lmpaument ot assets” in the Company's conselidated statements of operations.

Real estate available and held for sale—The Company reports teal estate asscts o be sold at the lower of their carrying amount or estimated fair value
less costs to sell and classifics them as “Real estate available and held for sale™ on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets. If the estimated fair valuc less
costs 1o seil is bess thun the canying value, the difference will be recotded as an impairment charge. Impairment for real estate assets disposed of or classified
as held for sale arc included 1n “Impaiment of assets” in the Company's consohdated statements of operations. Once a real estate asset is classified as held for
sale, depreciation expensc s no longerrecorded

[f circumstances arise that were previously considered unlikely and, as a result the Company decides not to sell a property previously classified as held
for sale, the propeny is reclassified as held and used and included 1n "Real estate, net” on the Company's consolidated balance sheets The Company
measures and records a property that is reclassified as held and used at the lower of: (i) its carrying amount before the propenty was classified as held for sale,
adjusted for any depreciation expense that would have been recognized had the property been continuously classified as held and used; or (ii) the estimated
Gurvalue at the date of the subsequent decision not to sell,

Dispasitions—Revenuc from sales of land and development assets and gains or losses on the sale of real cstate assets, including residential property, are
tecogmzed 1n accordance with Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 610-20, Gains and Losses from the Derecognition of Nonfinancial Asscts. The
Company primarily uses specitic identitication and the relative sales value method to allocate costs. Gains on sales of real estate are included in "Income
trom salcs of real estate” in the Company's consolidated statements of operattons.

Loans receivable and other lending investments, net- -Loans receivable and other lending investments, net includes the following investments: senior
mortgages, corporate/partnership loans, subordinate mortgages, prefened equity investments and debt securities. Management considers nearly all of its loans
10 be held-for-investment, although certain investments may be classificd as held-for-sale o1 available-for-sale.

Loans reccivable classitied as held-for-investment and debt securities classified as held-to-maturity are reported at their outstanding unpaid principal
balauce, and include unamortized acquisition prenyums or discounts and unamonized deferred loan costs or fees. These loans and debt secunties also
include accrued and paid-in-kind interest and accrued exit fees that the Company detenmines arc probable of being collected. Debt securities classified as
available-for-sale are reported at fair value with unrealized gains and losses included in "Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)" on the Company's
consolidated batancee sheets,

Loans receivable and other lending invesiments designated for sale are classified as held-for-sale and are carried at fower of amortized historical cost or
estimated fair vaiuc. The amount by which carrying value cxceeds fair valuc is recorded as a vaiuation atiowancc. Subscquent changes in the vaiuation
allowance are inctuded 1n the determination of net income (luss) in the period in which the change occurs.

For hcld-to-maturity and available-for-sale debt securities held in "Loans receivable and other lending investments, net," management cvaluates
whether the asset is other-than-temporarily impaired when the fair market value is below camying value. The Company considers debt securities othet-than-
temporarily impaired ift (1) the Company has the intent to sell the security; (2) it is more likely than not that it will be required to sell the security before
recovery; or (3) it does not expect to recover the entire amortized cost basis of the seeurity. If it is detenmined that an other-than-temporary impainment exists,
the portion related to credit Josses, where the Company does not expect 1o recover its entire amortized cost basis, will be recognized as an "Impairment ot
asscts” in the Company's consolidated statements of operations. If the Company docs not intend to sell the sccurity and it is more likely than not that the
entity will not be required 1o sell the secunty, but the security has suftered a credit loss, the impainnent charge will be separated. The credit loss component
of the impairmept will be recorded as an “Impainnent of assets” in the Company's consolidated statements of operations, and the remainder will be recorded in
"Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)" on the Company's consolidated balance sheets.

The Company acquires propertics through foreclosure or by decd-inlicu of foreclosur: in full or partial satisfaction of non-performing loans. Based on
the Company's strategic plan to rcalize the maximum valuc trom the collatcral reccived, property is classificd as "Land and devclopment, net," "Real cstatc,
net" or "Real estate available and held for sale” at its estimated fair value when title to the property is obtained. Any cxcess of the canrying value of the loan
over the cstimated fair value of the property (less costs to scll for assets held for sale) is charged~ofT against the reserve for loan losses as of the date of
foreclosure.
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Equity and cost method investments—Equity interests are accounted for pursuant to the equity method of accounting 1 the Compuany can
significantly intluence the operaung and financial policies of an investee This 1s generally presumed to exist when ownership intesest 1y between 20% and
50% of'a corporation, or greater than 5% of'a limted partnership or certain himited liability companies The Company's periodic shuie of carnings and losses
n cquity method investees 1s included 1n “Eamings from equity method investments” in the consolidated statements of operations When the Company's
ownership postiion is oo small to provide such fluence, the cost method ts used 1o account for the equity interest. Equity and cost inethod investments are
mcluded 1in "Other investments” on the Company's consoltdated balance sheets

To the extent that the Company contributes asscts to an unconsolidated subsidiary, the Company’s imvestment n the substdiary 15 tecorded at the
Company’s cosl basis in the assets that were contnbuied to the unconsolidated subsidiary. To the extent thut the Company's cosl basts 1s different from the
basis reflected at the subsidiary level, when required, the basis difference 1s amortized over the life ot the tclated asscts and imcluded 1 the Company’s share
of cquity in net income (loss) of the unconsolidated subsidiary, as appropnate The Company recognizes gains on the contribution of 1eal estate to
unconsolidated subsidianies, relating solely to the outside partner’s interest, to the extent the cconomic substance of the transaction is a sale The Company
recognizes a loss whea it contnibutes property 1o an unconsolidated subsidiary and receives a disproportionately smaller interest i the substdiary based on a
companson of the canying amount of the property wath the cash and other consideration contnbuted by the uther investors

The Company periodically reviews cquity method investments for impaiment 1 value whenever events or changes 1n circumstances indicate that the
canying amount of such investments may not be recoverable. The Company will record an impasrment chaige 10 the extent that the estimated {an value ol an
investment is lcss than its camrying value and the Company determinces the impaiment 1s other-than-temporary Imparnnent charges atc recorded in "Eamings
from equitly method investments” 1n the Company's consolidated statements of operations

Cash and cash equivalents—Cash and cash equivalents inctude cash held in banks or invested in money market funds wath original matunty terms of
less than 90 days

Restricted cash-- Restricted cash represents amounts required to be maintained under certain of the Company's debt obligations, loans, leasing, land
development, sale and derivalive transactions. Restricted cash is included 1in "Deferred expenses and ulher assets, net on the Company's consolidated
balance sheets. The following table provides a reconciliation of the cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash reported 1n the Company's consolidated
balance sheets that total to the samc amount as reported in the consolidated statements of cash flows (in thousands):

December 31, December 31, December 31,
2018 2016

CIRan g % i 80 328744708 4 115101
Restncted cash included in deferred expenses and other assets, net 42,793 25,883 26,657
N R TR SRR T, e 3 vt creepes - .

Pl S
O

Variable interest entities—The Company cvaluates its investments and other contractual amangements to determine 1f they constitute vanable
interests 1n a VIE. A VIE is an entity where a controlling financial interest 15 achicved through means other than voting nghts A VIE 1s consolidated by the
primary beneficiary, which is the panty that has the power to direct matters that most significantly impact the activitics of the VIE and has the obligation Lo
absorb losses or the right to reccive benefits of the VIE that could potentially be significant to the VIE. This overall consolidation asscssment includes a
review of, among other factors, which interests create or absorb variability, contractual terms, the key decision making powers, theit impact on the VIE'S
economic performance, and related party relationships. Where qualitative assessment is not conclusive, the Company performs a quantitative analysis The
Company reassesses its evaluation of the primary beneficiary ot'a VIE on an ongoing basis and assesses 1ts evaluation of an enuity as a VIE upon cenan
reconsideration events.

Deferred expenses and other assets—Defened expenses and other asscets include certain non-tenant receivables, lcastng costs, lcase mcentives and
financing fees associated with revolving-debt arrangements. Financing fecs associated with other debt obhigations are recorded as a reduction of the camying
valuc of "Dcbt obligations, nct" and "Loan parucipations payable, nct" on the Company's consolidated balance sheets. Lease mcentives and Icasing costs
that include brokerage, legal and other costs are amortized over the life of the respective leases and presented as an operatng aclnity 1n the Company's
consolidated statements of cash flows. Extemal fees and costs incurred 1o obtain long-lerm debt {inancing have been deferred and are amortized over the
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e of the respective bomowing using the eflective interest method Amorntization of leasing costs is included in "Depreciation and amortization” and
amoltization of deferved financing fees is included in "Inteiest expense” in the Company's consolidated statements of operations.

Identiticd intangible assets and liabilities—Upon the acquisition of a business or an asset, the Company records intangible assets or liabihities
acquired at their cstimated tair values and determines whether such intangible asscts or liabilities have finite or indefinite lives. As of December 31, 2018, all
such intangible asscts and liabilitics acquired by the Company have finite lives. Intangible asscts are included i "Deferred expenses and other asscts, net”
and ntangible liabilities are included in "Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities” on the Company's consolidated balance shects. The
Company amoruzes finite I1ved intangible assets and habilitics based on the period over which the asscts are expected to contribute directly or indtrectly to
the future cash flows of the business acquired. The Company reviews finute lived intangible assets for impairment whenever events or changes in
ciicumstances indicate that their cairying amount may not be rccoverable. If the Company determinces the carrying valuc of an intangiblc assct 1s not
iecoverable it will record an impairment charge to the extent its carrymng value exceeds its estimated fatr value. Impairments of intangible assets are recorded
in "Timpainnent of assets™ in e Company's consolidated statements of operations.

Loan participations payable, net— The Company accounts for transfers of financial asscts under ASC Topic 860, “Transfers and Scrvicing,” as either
sales or secured bonowings. Transters of financial assets that result in sales accounting are those in which (1) the transter legally isolates the transterred assets
Bom the transferor, (2) the transferee has the right to pledge or exchange the transferred assets und no condition both constraios the transferee’s nght to
pledge or exchange the assets and provides more than a tivial benefit to the transferor, and (3) the tansferor docs not maintain effective control over the
wransiened assets. If the transter does not meet these ciiterta, the transter s presented on the balance shect as “l.oan participations payable, net”. Financial
asset activities that are accounted for as sales ate removed from the balance sheet with any realized gain (loss) seflected in eamings during the pedod of sale.

Revenue recognition—The Company's tevenue iecognition policies are as follows:

Operating lease income: The Company's leases have all been determined to be operating leases based on analyses performed in accordance with
ASC 840. Opcrating leasc income is recognized on the stratght-line method of accounting, generally from the later of the date the lessce takes possession ot
the space and it 1s ready for its intended use o1 the date of acquisition of the facility subject to existing leases. Accordingly, contractual lease payment
increascs are recognized cvenly over the tenn ot the lcase. The periodic ditference between leasc revenuc recognized under this method and contractual lcasc
payment terms 1s recorded as "Deferred operating lease income receivable, net” on the Company's consolidated balance sheets.

The Company also recognizes revenue from certain tenant feases for reimbursements of all or a portion of operating expenscs, including common area
cosls, insurance, utilities and real estale taxes of the respective property. This revenue is accrued in the same periods as the expense is incurred and is
recorded as “Operating lease income™ in the Company's consolidated statements of operations. Revenue is alsc recorded from centain tenant leases that is

contingent upon icnant sales excecding defined thresholds. These rents are recognized only afier the defined ihreshold has been met for the period.

Management estimates losses within its operating lease tncome receivable and deferred operating lease income receivable balances as of the balance
sheet date and incorporates an asset-specific component, as well as a general, formula-based reserve based on management's evaluation of the credit risks
associated with these receivables. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the allowance for doubtful accounts rclated to real estate tenant receivables was $1.5

milhion and $1.3 million, respectively, and the allowance for doubttul accounts related to deferrcd operating lease income was $1.8 million and $1.3 million,
respectively.

luterest Income: Interest income on Joans teccivable is rccognized on an accrual basis using the interest method.

On occasion, the Company may acquire loans at premmums or discounts. These discounts and premiums in addition to any deferred costs or fees, are
typically amontized over the conuractual term of the {oan using the interest method. Exit fees are also recognized over the lives of the related loans as a yietd
adjustment, if management believes it is probable that such amounts will be received. If loans with premiums, discounts; loan ongination or exit fees are
prepaid, the Company immediately recognizes the unamortized portion, which 1s included in "Other income” or “Other expense" in the Company's
consolidated statements of operations.

The Company considers a loan to be non-petforming and places loans on non-accrual status at such time as: (1) the loan becomes 90 days delinquent,
{2) the loan has a maturity default; or (3) management determincs it is probablce that it will be unablc to colicet all amounts duc according to the contrrctuat
wims of the loan. While on non-accrual status, based on the Company's
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judgment as to collectability of principal, loans are either accounted for on a cash basis, where interest income is rzcognized only upon actual ieceipt of cash,
or on a cost-recovery basis, where all cash receipts reduce a loan's canying value Non-accrual loans ate retumed to accrual status when 4 loan has become
contractually cumrent and management believes all amounts contractually owed will be recetved

Certain of the Company’s loans contractually provide for accrual of interest at specified 1ates that differ tiom cunent payvment teons Interest s
1ecognized on such loans at the acciual rate subject to management's determination that acerued inteiest and outstanding prncipal ae ulumately collectible,
based on the underlying vollateral and operations of the borrower,

Certain of the Company's loan investments provide for additional interest based on the bonower's apenating cash flow orappreciauon of the underlying
collateral. Such amounts are considered contingent interest and are reflected as interest income only upon receipt of cash

Other income: Other income includes revenues from hote! operations, whlch are recognized when rooms are OLLupICd and the related services are
nrovided. Revenues include room sales, food and bev

s aind b‘“ :.uup safes Ctha incuiiic also mcludes 5ais frum

calan aadl
52:¢S, pal

adlcs ot loans, loan prepayment tees, ylcld naintenance payments, lease lcxmmauon tees, management fees and othet ancillary income Dunag the year ended
December 31, 2017, the Company recorded $123.4 million of interest income and real estate tax reimbuisements resulting fiom the settlement of huigation
involving a dispute over the purchase and sale of land (refer to Notell)

iC, Spa 5Ci

Land development revenue and cost of sales: Land development revenue includes lot and parcel sales from wholly-owned properties and s recognized
for full profit rccognition upon closing of the salc transactions, when the profit 1s detcrminable, the camings process 1s vitually complete, the pattics ae
bound by the terms of the contract, all consideration has been exchanged, any permanent financing for which the seller 1s respunsible has been amanged and
all conditions for closing have been performed. The Company primarily uses specific identification and te relative sales value method to atlocute costs.

Reserve for loan losses—The reserve for loan losses reflects management's estimate of loan losses inherent 1 the loan portfolio as of the balance shect
date. It'the Company determines that the collateral fair value less costs to sell 1s less than the canrying value ot a collateral-dependent loan, the Compeny will
record a reserve. The reserve is tncreased (decreased) through “Provision for (recovery of) loan losses” m the Company's consolidated statements of operations
and is decreased by charge-offs. Dunng delinquency and the toreclosure process, there are typically numerous potats ot negotiation with the bortower as the
Compaay works toward a scttiement or other alternative resolution, which can impact the potenuial for loan 1epayment or receipt of collateral The Company's
policy is to charge off a loan when it determines, based on a vanety of factors, that all commercially rcasonable means of recovenng the toan balance have
been exhausted. This may occur at different times, including when the Company teceives cash or other assets (n a pre-forectosure sale or taukes conuol of the
undcrlying collateral in full satisfaction of the loan upon foreclosure or deed-in-licu, or when the Company has otherwise ceased signiticant collection
sttorts. The Company considers circumstances such as the toregoing to be 1ndicators that the final steps in the foan coiicction process have occurred and that
a loan is uncollectibic At this point, a loss is confirmed and the loan and related reserve will be charged off The Company has one portfohio segment,
represented by commercial real estate lending, whereby it utilizes a uniform process for determining 1ts reserve for toan losses. The reserve for loan tosses
includes a general, fonnula-based componcent and an assct-specific component.

The general rescrve component covers perfonning loans and reserves for loan losses are 1ecorded when' (1) available intormation as ot each balance
sheet date indicates that it is probable a loss has vecurred in the portfolio; and (ii) the amount of the loss can be rcasunably estimated. The formula-based
gencral reserve is derived from estimated principal default probabilities and loss severities applied to groups of loans based upon risk ratings assigned to
loans with similar risk characteristics during the Company's quarterly loan portfolio assessment. Duiing thus assessment. the Company pearforms a
comprehensive analysis of its loan portfolio and assigns risk ratings to loans that incorporate management’s curent judgments about their credit quality
based on all known and relevant intemal and extemnal factors that may affect collectability. The Company consideis, among other things, payment status, hien
position, borrower financial resources and investment in’ collateral, collateral type, project economics and geographical location as well as national and
regional economic factors. This methodology results in loans being segmented by nsk classification into risk rating calegories that are associated with
cstimated probabilitics of default and principa! loss. Ratings range from "1" to "5" with “1" rcpresenting the lowest risk of loss and "5™ representing the
bighest risk of loss. The Company estimates loss rates based on bistorical realized losses experienced within its portfohio and takes into account cument
economic conditions affecting the commercial real estate market when establishing appropriate time frames to cvaluate loss experience.

The asset-specific reserve component relates to reserves for losses on impaired loans. The Company considers a loan 10 be impaiied when, based upon
current information and events, it believes that it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect
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all amounts duc under the contractual tenms of the loan agreement. This assessment is made on a loan-by-loan basis each quarter based on such factors as
payment status, licn position, boirower financial resources and investment in collateral, collateral type, project cconomics and geographical location as well
as national and regional cconomie factors. A reserve is stablished for an impatred loan when the present value of payments expected to be reccived,
obscrvable market prices, or the estimated fair value of the collateral (for loans that are dependent on the collateral for repayment) is lower than the carrying
valuc ot that loan.

Substanually all of the Company's impaired loans are collateral dependent and impatmment is measured using the estimated fair value of collateral, less
costs to scll. The Company gencrally uscs the income approach through intemally devetoped valuation models to cstimatc the fair valuc of the collateral for
such loans. In some cases, the Company oblains extemal "as 1s* appiaisals for loan collateral, generally when third panty participations exist. Valuations are
performed or obtained at the time a loan is detenmined to be impaired and designated non-perfomung, and they are updated if circumstances indicate that a
sigmiticant change in value has vccurred. In limited cases, appraised values may be discounted when real estate markets rapidly detenorate.

Aloan 1s also considered nupaired if its terms are modificd 1n 2 uoubled debt restructuring (“TDR"). A TDR occurs when the Company has granted a
concessinn and the dehtoris experiencing financial difficulties Impairments an TNR loans are generally measured based on the present value of expected
futuie cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate of the original loan.

Loss on debt extinguishments—The Company recognizes the ditterence between the reacquisition price of debt and the net camying amount of
extirguished debt currently in eamungs. Such amounts may include prepayment penalties or the write-oft of unamottized debt issuance costs, and are
weorded in "Loss on carly extinguishment ot debt, net” in the Company's consolidated statements of operations

Derivative instruments and hedging activity—-The Company's usc of derivative tinancial instruments 1s primarily limited to the utilization of interest
1ate swaps, interest rate caps or other instruments to manage interest rate risk exposure and foreign cxchange contracts to manage our risk to changes in
foreign currencies.

-

The Company recognizes derivatives as cither assets or liabilites on the Company's consolidated balance sheets at fair value. If certain conditions are
met, 4 denvative may be specifically designated as a hedge of the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognized assct or liability, a hedge of a
forccasted transaction or the variability of cash flows to be reecived or paid related to a recognized assct or liability.

For derivatives designated as net investment hedges, the effective portion of changes in the fair vaiue of the derivatives are reported in Accumulated

Other (.ompnchenswc Income as part of the cumulative translation adjustment. The ineffective portion of the change in fair value of the derivatives is

s arc reclassified out of Accumulated Other Compiche

cither sold or substantially liquidated. ,

'e Income into camings when the hedged net investment is

Derivatives that are not designated hedges are considered economic hedges, with changes in fair value reported in cunent eamings in "Other expense”
in the Company's consolidated statements of operations. The Company does not enter into derivatives for trading purposes.

Stock-based compensation—Compensation cost for stock-based awards is measured on the grant date and adjusted over the period of the employees'
services to reflect: (i) actual forfeitures; and (ii) the outcome of awards with performance or service conditions through the requisite service period.
Compensation cost for market-based awards is determined using a Monte Carlo model to simulate a range of possible future stock prices for the Company's
common stock, which 1s reflected in the grant date fair value. All compensation cost for market-based awards in which the service conditions are met is
1ecognized 1egardless of whether the market-condition is satisfied. Compensation costs are recognized ratably over the applicable vesting/service period and
rccorded in "General and administrative” in the Company's consolidated statements of operations.

Income taxes- The Company has elected to be qualificd and taxed as a REIT under section 856 through 860 of the Intemal Revenue Cade of 1986, as
amended (the "Code") The Company is subject to lederal income taxation at corporate rates on its REIT taxable income; the Company, however, is aliowed a
deduction for the amount of dividends paid to its shareholders, thereby subjecting the distributed net income of the Company to taxation at the shareholder
levei only While the Company must distribute at least 90% of its taxable income to maintain its REIT status, the Company typically distributes all of its
taxable income, 1t any, to ¢liminate any tax on undistributed taxablc income. In addition, the Company is allowed several other deductions in computing its
REIT taxable income, including non-cash items such as depreciation expense and certain specific reserve amounts that the Company deems to be
uncullectable. These deductions allow the Comipany to reduce its dividend payout requirement under federal tax laws. The Company intends to operate in a
manuer consistent with, and its election to be treated as, a REIT for tax purposes. The Company made foreclosure elections for certain properties acquired
through foreclosure, or an equivalent legal process, which
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allows the Company to operate these properties wathin the REIT and subjects net income, if any, from these assets 1o corporate feve! tux The carryimg value
of assets with foreclosure elections as of December 31,2018 15 $113 | million. Beginaing in 2018, the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act reduced the coipolate ta wate
10 21% tromn 35% and net income from toreclosure property, it any, 1s subject to a 21% tax rate.

As of December 31, 2017, the Company had $582 4 multion of REIT net operating loss ("NOL") camytorwards at the corporate REIT level that cun
geacrally be used to offset both ordinary taxable income and capital gain net tncome in future years. The NOL canyforwards will expiie beginning i 2031
and through 2036 if unused. The amount of NOL carryforwards as of December 31, 2018 will be subject to finalization of the Company's 2018 tax retum The
Tax Cuts and Jobs Act 1educed the deductton for net operating losses to 80% ot the Company’s taxable income for losses incuned afler December 31, 2017
The Company's NOL carryforward for losses incurred 1n taxable years prnor to 2018 remain fully deductible. The Company's tax years from 2014 through
2017 rcmain subject to cxamination by major tax jurisdictions. During the yecat ended December 31, 2018, the Company is expected to have REIT taxable
income before the deduction for dividends paid and the NOL deduction. The Company recognizes interest expense and penalties selated to uncertain tax
positiony, ifany, as “Income tax (expense) benefit" in the Company's cunsolidated statements of operations

The Company may participale in certain activities from which 1t would be otherwise precluded and maintain s qualificauon as a REIT These
activities are conducted in enuties that elect to be treated as taxable subsidiarics under the Code, subject to certain himitations. As such, the Company,
through 1ts taxable REIT subsidiaries ("TRS"), 1s engaged in vanous real cstate related opportuniues, primanly related 1o managing acurvities related 1o
cerntain foreclosed assets, as well as managing varous invesunents o equity affitiates. As of December 31,2018, 8538 0 nnlhion of the Company's assets weie
owned by TRS entities. The Company's TRS entities are not consolidated with the REIT for federal income tax purposes and arc taxcd as corporations For
financial reporting purposes, current and dcferred taxes are provided for on the portion of carnings recognized by the Company with iespect Lo its inteiest in
TRS entities.

The following represents the Company's TRS income tax benetit (expense) ($ in thousands)

For the Years Ended December 3t,

207 16

SRS ST e e e

Ciimen i bénchio(expensey LA T
Total income tax (expensc) benefit $

(1) For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company revognized a tax benefit for aliernative minmium tax credits generated from d carryback of NOUs w0 2014 and 2015 Fuor
the year ended December 31, 2018, excludes ¢ REIT wx expense of $0.5 million und for the years cuded Decembet 31, 2017 and 2016, excludes « REIT meoine tax benefiz of
$0.4 million. .

(2) Undcr the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, the alternative minimum tax crcdit carryforward is a refundable tax credut aver a four year period beginning in 201K and ending in 2021 upon
which the full amount of the eredit will be allowed

During the ycar ended December 31, 2018, the Company's TRS entities generated a taxable loss o325 9 million tor which the Company recogmzed no
current tax benefit. The Company’s TRS NOL will be carned torward and the Company’s TRS recorded a tull valuation allowance against the related detented
tax asset. During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company's TRS entities gencrated a taxable loss of $33.1 mullion for which the Company
recognized no current tax benefit. During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company's TRS entities gencrated a taxable loss of 349 4 million, resulting
in a current tax bencfit of $9.8 million, including a benefit fora rcrum to provision adjustment in the amount of $2.8 million. The 2016 benetit was Limited to
the amount the Company’s TRS expected to receive after it filed an NOL canyback claim. The remaining balance of its NOL was camied forward and the
Company’s TRS recorded a full valuation allowance against the related deferred tax asset.

Total cash paid for laxes for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 was $2.0 million, $6.0 million and $0 2 mitlion, respectively The
taxes paid in 201 7 were primarily alternative mintmum taxes at the REIT which the Company expects to be refunded over the next four years.

Deferred income taxes refiect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts for income tax purposces, as well as operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. The Company applied the corporate ax rate enacted
Decermber 22, 2017 under the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act effecuve for years beginning afier 2017 1o value 1ts deferred tax assets and liabilities. The Company
evaluates whether its defemred tax assets are reahizable and recognizes a valuation allowance if, based on the available evidence, both pusitive and negatine, it
1s more hikely than not that some portion or all of its deferred tax assets will not be realized. When evaluating whether its deferied tax assets are reahzable, the
Company considers, among other matters, estimates ot expected future taxable income, nature of cument and
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cumulative losses, existing and projected book/tax differences, tax planning strategies available, and the general and industry specific economic outlook.
This analysis is inherently subjective, as it requires the Company to forecast its business and general economic eavironment in futute periods. Based on an
assessment of al! factors, including histoncal losses and continued volatility of the actrvitics within the TRS entittes, it was determined that full valuation
allowances were required on the net defened tax assets as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, 1espectively. Changes in estimates of our valuation alfowance, 1f
any, ue included 1n "Income tax (expense) benefit” in the consolidated statewents of operattons The valuation allowance was reduced to reflect the change
m value of our net deferred 1ax assets that reflects a reduced rate of tax under the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act.

Deferred tax asscts and liabilities of the Company's TRS entities were as follows ($ in thousands):

As of December 31,

2018 2017

(1) Dcferred tax asscts as of December 31, 2018 include temporary differences related primarily to assct basis of $35 3 million, deferred expenscs and other stems of $14.9 milkion,
NOL carrytorwards ot $23.6 million and other credits of §2.3 miflion Deferred tax assets as of NDecember 31, 2017 include temporary difterences related primarily to asset basis
0t $26 | million, deterred expenses and other items of $15 9 million and NOL. carrytorwards of $21.3 million. The Company has deternvined that the change in tax law
associated with the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act will not have a material effect on whether its deferred tax assets are realizable.

(1) Gross deferred tax asscts as of December 31, 2017 weie valued w the enacted corporate tax rate during the period in which such deferred tax assets are expected to be realized

- The Tax Cuts and Jobs Act reduced the federal corpurate tax rate to 21% from 35% for taxable years beginning atter December 31, 2017, The Company's TRS's applied its
reduced eficclive WX rate (o compule its gross deferred tax assets betore valuation ullowance,

Earnings per share--The Company uses the two-class method in calculating camings per share ("EPS") when it issues securities other than common
stock that conuactually cntitle the holder to participate in dividends and camings of the Company when, and if, the Company dcclares dividends on its
common stock. Basic eamings per share (“Basic EPS") for the Company's common stock are computed by dividing net income allocable to commeon
sharcholders by the weighted average number of sharces of common stock outstanding for the period, respectively. Diluted camings per share ("Diluted EPS")
is calculated similarly, however, it reflects the potential ditution that could ocecur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or
converted into common stock, where such exercise or conversion would result in a lower camings per share amount.

Unvested share-based payment awards that contain non-forfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents (whether paid or unpaid) arc deemed a
“Panicipating Security" and are included in the computation of earnings per share pursuaat to the two-class method. The Company's unvested restricted stock
awards granted under its Long-Tenn Incentive Plans that are cligtble to paricipate in dividends are considered Participating Securities and have been
included in the two-class method when calculating EPS.

New accounting pronouncements—In October 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-16, Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815): Inclusion of the Secured
Ovcmight Financing Rate ("SOFR™) Ovemight Index Swap ("OIS") Rate as a Benchmark Interest Rate for Hedge Accounting Purposes ("TASU 2018-16"). ASU
2018-16 expands the list of U.S. benchmark interest rates permitted in the application of hedge accounting by adding the OIS rate based on SOFR as an
chgtble benchmark interest rate. ASU 2018-16 is cffective for interim and annual reporting periods in fiscal years beginning afler December 15, 2018, with
carly adoption permitted. The Company adopted ASU 2018-16 effective January 1, 2019 and the adoption did not have a material impact on the Company's
consoltdated financial statements.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments—Credit Losses: Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments ("ASU
2016-13") which was issued to provide financial statement users with more decision-usetu! information about the expected credit losses on financial
instruments held by a reporting entity. This amendment replaces the incurred loss impairment methodology in current GAAP with a methodology that refiects
expected credit losses and requires consideration of'a broader range of reasonable and supponable information to determine credit loss estimates. ASU 2016-
13 is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Early adoption is permitted for interim and annual reporting
peniods beginning after December 15, 2018. Management 1s evaluating the impact of the guidance on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In Fcbruary 2016, the FASB issucd ASU 2016-02, Leascs ("ASU 2016-02"), and in July 2018, thc FASB tssucd ASU 2018-11, Lcascs ("ASU 2018-11"%),
to address two requirements of ASU 2016-02. ASU 2016-02 and ASU 2018-11 are effective for interim
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those lcases classitied as operating or finance leases. For operating and finance leases, a tessee will be tequired to tecogmze a nght-of-use asset and a lease
Liability, inntially measured al the present value of the lease payments, in its statement of financial position Lessees under operating eases will be tequired 1o
recognize a single lease cost, calculated so that the cost of the lease is allocated over the Icase term gencerally on a straight-hine basis, and classity all cash
payments within aperating activities in its statement of cash flows. Lessees under finance leases wall be required 1o recognize interest expense on the lease
liability (under the ettective interest method) and amortization expensc ot the right-ot-use assct (gencrally on a straight hne basis). cach reflected separately
in 1ts statement of operations. For operating lease arrangements for which the Company 1s the lessee, primarily under leases of ottice space and certain ground
leases, the adoption of ASU 2016-02 will result in the recognition of a right-uf-use asset and lease hability on its consolidated balance sheets The aght-ot-
use asscts or lease liabiliues will not be matenial to the Company's balance sheet. The accounting applicd by the Company as a lessor will be mostly
unchanged from that applied under previous GAAP,

Management has decided to elect the practical expedient package that allows the Company: (a) to not reassess whether any expired o1 existing
contracts entered into prior to January 1, 2019 are or contain ledses; (b) 1o not reassess the lease classification for any expired or exssting teases entered 1nto
prior to January 1, 2019; and (c) to not reassess nitial dircet costs for any expued or existing leases entered mto prior to January 1, 2019 In addivon, the
Company wll elect Lo not record on its consalidated halanee o )1

PETL U I IR

L. e -
UGG at sldsd invCpuuit,

ASU 2018-11 amends ASU 2016-02 so that: (a) entities may elect to not tecast the comparative pettods presented when transitioniny to ASC 842 by
allowing entities to change their initial application to the beginning of the period of adoption; and (b) provides lessors with a practical expedient to not
separate non-lease components from the associated lease component of the contractual payments it certain conditions are met Management has decided to
elect both of these provisions,
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Note 4—Real Estate

[he Company's real estate assets were comprtsed ofthe following (S in thousands).

Operating
Net Lease? Properties Total

Lundd, at cost ‘ s 336740 § 133,599 S 470,339

Bulldm}_,s and i 1mpxovum.nts at cost 888 959 318, 107 1,207 066

3»»«}

466,248 1,282 031
: _ S TN
'lot.sl real estate S 815,783 § 534836 § l,350,619
m On June 30, 2018, the Company consolidated the Net Lease Venwre (refer 1o Note 7) and recorded $743.6 million to "Real estate, net™ on the Company's consolidated balance
sheet. !
(2)  As ot December 31, 2018 and 2017 the Company had $20.6 miltion and S48.5 million, respeclively, ot residential condominiums avanlable for sale in its uperating properlics
porifoliu

Real Estate Available and Held for Sale—The following table presents the carrying value of properties transfened to ht.ld for sale, by segment (S in
millions)ir:

Year Ended December 31,
2017

l’roperly Type
T ST g AR«
Hny Proy

Ncl Lt:..\sc

(1) Properties were transferred to held for sale duc Lo executed contracts with third partics or changes in busincss strategy.

Acquisions—Duiing the ycar ended December 31, 2018, the Company acquired two net lease asscts for an aggregate $14.8 million. During the year
cnded December 31, 2017, the Company acquired one net lease assct for $6.6 million. In addition, in the third quarter 2017, in conjunction with the
modilication ol two master ledses, the Company exchanged real property with the tenant, The fair value of the property exchanged excecded the Company's
cost basis by approxumately $1.5 million which will be defered and amortized to "Operating lease income" in the Company's consolidated statements ot
operations over the rematning master lease tenns.

During the yvar ended December 31, 2016, the Company acquired one net lease assct for $32.7 million. During the same period, thie Company also
acquircd land for $3 9 million and simultancously cntered into a 99 ycar ground leasc with the scller. This assct was onc of the 12 propertics comprising the
Company's Ground Lease business that was disposed of'in Apnil 2017 (see "Disposition of Ground Lease Business” below).

Disposition of Ground Lease Business—In April 2017, institutional investors acquircd a controlling interest in the Company's ground lease business
through the merger of a Company subsidiary and related transactions (the "Acquisition Transactions"). Ground leases generally represent ownership of the

land underlying commercial real cstate projects that is triple net leased by the fee owner of the land to the owners/operators of the real estate projects built
thewcon ("Ground Lease”). The
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Company's Ground Lease business was a componcnt of the Company's net Icase segment and consisted of 12 properties subject to long term net feascs
including seven Ground Leascs and one master lease (covering five properties). The acquiring entity was a newly tonmed unconsohidaied enuty named
Safety, Income & Growth Inc. ("SAFE"). The camying vatue of the Company’s Ground Lease assets was approximately $161.1 million Shortly betore the
Acquisttion Transactions, the Company completed the $227.0 million 2017 Sccured Financing on its Ground Lease assets {refer to Note 10) The Company
received all of the proceeds of the 2017 Sccured Financing The Company received an additional $113.0 milhon of proceeds 1n the Acquisiion Tiansactions,
including $55.5 million that the Company contubuted to SAFE in its imitial capitalization. As a result ot the Acquistion Transactions, the Company
deconsolidated the 12 propertics and the assoctated 2017 Secuied Financing. The Company accounts for its mvestment 1n SAFE as an equity method
mvestment (refer 1o Note 7). The Company gccounted for this transaction as an in substance sale of real estate and recognized a gan 01’8123 4 midhon,
reflecting the aggregate gain less the fair value of the Company's retained interest in SAFE The gain was recorded 1n "Gain trom discontinued operations” in
the Company's consolidated statements of operattons As a resull of the adoption of ASU 2017-05, Other income - Gains and Losses ftom the Derecogninion
ot Nontinancial Asscts, on January 1, 2018, the Company rccorded an 1ncrcasc to rctained camings ot $55.5 milhion, bringing the Company's agyregate pain
on the sale of its Ground Lease business to approximately $178.9 mullion.

e Comnanv's Ground Lease business qua alified for discontinued nperabinng

pany cur s§¢ usiness uca

and the followin lablc summarizes income from discontinued operations for the years ended December 31,2017 and 2016 (S 1n thousands)).

oSV

Year Ended December 31,

2017 2016

Expenscs (3 569)

hicgme from safcs STRATEAATE] S
Income from discontinued operations M 4939 § 18,270 .

(1) The transacuons closed on April 14, 2017. Revenues prinarily consisted of operating lease income and expenses primarnily consisted ot depreciziion and amottization and 1ea!
estale expense

The following table presents cash flows provided by vperating activities and cash flows used in 1nvestng activities from discontinued operations foi
the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 ($ in thousands).

Cash ﬂo“a used in investing acnvmcs . (534) S (7,9.72:)



Tabls of Contents

. . iStar Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateroents (Continued)

Other Dispositions—The tollowing table presents the procecds and income recognized for properties sold, by property type ($ in millions)y

Year Ended December 31,
2018 2017 2016

444 1
N6

(1)  During the year cnded December 31, 2018, the Company sold 10 commercial operatng properues and residential condominium units from other properties and recognized
SB1 0 million of gams in “Incoms from sales of real estate™ n the Company's consolidated statements of operations, of which $9.8 million was auributable to a noncontrolling
interest at one of the properties

(2) Duriag the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company sold five net lease assets and recognized $45 0 million of gamns in *Income from sales of real estate” in the Company's
consolidated statements of operations

(3} During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company sold one net kease property und recognized a baln on sale of $62.5 million. Prior (o the sale, the Company acquired the
noncontrolling interest with a carrying vaiue of 3.5 mullion for §12 0 million,

Impairments—During the years ended December 31,2018, 2017 and 2016, the Compaoy recorded aggregate impairments on real estate assets totaling
$90.-f muilion, $11.9 million and $10.7 miilion, respectively. Refer to Note 16 for a description of the impairments recorded during the year ended December
2018. The impairments recorded 10 2017 were primarily the result of shifting demand in the local condominium markets, changes in our exit strategy on
other real estate asscts and an impainnent recorded in connection with the sale of an outparce! located at a commercial operating property. The impainnents
recorded in 2016 resulted from unfavorable local market conditions on residential operating properties and tmpaimments upon the execution of sales contracts
on net lease assets.

Tenant Reimbursements—The Company receives reimbursements from tenants for certain facility operating expenses including comunon area costs,
msurance, utitities and real estate taxes, Teoant cxpense reimbursements were $22.4 million, $21.9 million and $23.6 million for the years ended
December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, respecuvely. These amounts are included in "Operating lease income” in the Company's consolidated statements of
operations.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts—As of Deceraber 31, 2018 and 2017, the allowance for doubtful accounts related to real estate tenant receivables
was $1.5 million and $1.3 million, respectively, and the allowance for doubtful accounts related 1o deferred operating lease income was $1.8 million and $1.3
mulhion, respectively. These amounts are included in "Accrued interest and operating lease income receivable, net” and "Deferred operating lease income
receivable, net,” respectively, on the Company's consolidated balance sheets.
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Future Minimum Operating Lease Payments—Futuie minimum operating leasc payments to be collected under non-cancelable leases, cxetudmy
customer retmbursements of expenses, tn eftect as of December 31, 2018, are as follows (S in thousands):

Net Lease

Note S—Land and Development
The Company's land and development assets were compnsed of the following ($ in thousands)

As of December 31,

i
S )
Land and land devclopment, at cost S 606849 §
Tota! land and development, net S 598,218 § 860,311

Acquisitions—Duriny the year ¢ended December 31, 2018, the Company acquired, via foreclosure, titke to a land asset which had a total fan value ol
$4.6 million and had previously scrved as collateral for loans receivable held by the Company. No gain or loss was tccorded 1n connection with tins
transaction.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company acquired, via deed-in-licu, title to two land asscts which had a total fan value of' 40 6
million and previously served as collateral for loans receivable held by the Company. No gain or loss was recorded 1n connection with these transactions

Dispusitions—During the years ended December 31,2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company sold land parcels and residential iots and unis and
recognized land development revenue of $409.7 miilion, $196.9 million and $88.3 million, respectively. In connection with the sale of two land parcels
totaling 93 acres during the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company provided an aggiegate $145.0 million of financing to the buyers, of which S81 2
million was repaid in the second quarter 2018. During the years ended December 31,2018, 2017 and 2016, the Company recognized tand development cost
of sales 0f $350.2 million, $180.9 million and $62.0 million, respectively, fiom its land and development portfolio.

In connection with the resolution of litigation involving a dispute over the purchase and salc ot approximately 1,250 actes of land 1n Prince George's
County, Maryland, during thc ycar cnded December 31, 2017, the Company recognized $114.0 million of land development revenuc and $106.3 milhon of
land development cost of sales.

During the ycar ended December 31, 2016, the Company sold a land and development asset to a newly formed unconsolidated enuty 1n which the
Company owns a 50.0% equity interest (1cfer to Note 7). The Company recognized a gain of $8.8 million, reflecting the Company's shate of the interest sold
to a third party, which was recorded as "Income from salcs of real cstate” in the Company's consolidated statement of operations. B

Tmpairments—During the ycar ended December 31, 2018, the Company recorded an aggiegate impainuent of $56.7 million on five land and
development assets. Refer to Note 16 for a description of the impairments recorded dunng the year ended December 31, 2018 Dunng the year ended
December 31,2017, the Company tecorded impaiments on land and development assets of 520 § million wesulting from a decrease 1n expected cash flows on
onc asset and a change in exit strategy on another asset. During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company recorded impanments on land and
development assets 0f$3.8 million.
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Note 6—L.oans Receivable and Other Lending Investments, net

The following is a sumimary of the Company's loans reccivable and other lending investments by class (8 1n thousands)-

As of December 31,

Typr of Investment 2018 2017

Total lo.ms receivable and other lending investments, net S 988,224 § 1,300, 655

) In the sccond quarter 2018, the Company resolved a non-perfornung joan with a carrying valuc of S145 & nullion. Refet to "Impaired Loans” section below.

Reserve for Loan Losses—Changes 1n the Company's reserve for loan losses were as follows ($ in thousands):

For the Years Ended December 31,

T e S ST
*; JJ‘nr.lo:m fe; Ar bcunnmg«u fpe s E it

Rcscrvc for loan losses at end ot period S 53,395 §

(i) For the year ended Decemoer 31, 2016, the (recovery of) provision tor loan losses includes recoveries of previously recorded asset-specitic loan loss reserves of $13.7
milhon. .

The Company's recorded investment in loans (comptised of a loan's carying value plus accrued interest) and the associated reserve for loan losses were
as follows (S in thousands):

Individuaily Collectively
Evaluaced for E\'nlunled for
Impnrmenl("

Totaltd) 176,888 1,039,444 $ 1,216,332

(1)  The carrying value of these loans include unamortized discounts, premiums, deferred fees and costs totaling net discounts of $0.5 millhion and $0.7 million as of December 31,
2018 and 2017, 1espectively The Company's louns individually evaluated for impairment primarily represent loans on non-accrual status; therefore, the unamortized amouots
assgeiated with these loans aie not currently betng amortized into tncome.

(2)  The carrying value ot these loans include unamortized discounts, premiuims, deterred fees and costs totating net discounts of $3.1 million and net premiums of $6.2 million as of
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respecuvely.

(3)  The Company's recotded invesunent sn loans as of December 31, 2018 und 2017 includes accrued intecest of $4 9 million and $5 3 milhon, respectively, which is included in
"Accrucd mterest and operating Iease ncome recervable, net” on the Cumpany's consolidated balance sheets. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the total amounts exclude
$122.1 million and §89.6 million, 1espectively, ot securities that are evaluated for impairment under ASC 320.
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Credit Characteristics—As part of the Company's process for monstoring the credit quality ot tts loans, 1t performs ¢ quarterly loan portfolio
assessment and assigns risk raungs to cach of its performing loans. Risk ratings, which 1ange fiom | (lower risk) to 5 (migher nsk). are based on judgments
which are inherently uncentain and there can be no assurance that actual perfonmance will be similar o cunent expectation. .

The Company's recorded investment 1n pertorming loans, presented by class and by credit quality, as 1ndicated by nsk rating. was as tollows (5
thousands}

As of December 31,

2018 2017
Weighted Welghted
Performing Average Performiug Average
Loans Risk Ratiags Loans Risk Ruatings

ioans

Total 3 857,662 . 1,056,944 277

The Company's recorded investment in loans, aged by payment status and presented by ciass, was as tollows ($ 1n thousands).

Less Than Greater
and Equal Than Total

As of December 31,2018 Current to 90 Days 90 Days) Past Due Totsl
R R ey - ” ™ - - - -~
%}\cmor\nmﬁ&gcs@%@ o

Corpomtc/l"dnncrﬁhlp loans

st U3 QU
PR AR LV

149,663
24

rdu% »ig MOTEages

DR

3 863,662 S — % 60,725 % 60,725 3

Scnior morntgages

o/ annerdhin Joaas

Subordmalc morgages

(1)  As of December 31, 2018, the Company had two loans which were greater than 90 days delmquent and were In various stages of resolution, ctudmy lepal and foreclosure-
related proceedings and environmental matters, and renged from 4.0 to 9 0 years outstanding. As of December 31, 2017, the Company bad four loans which wete greater than
90 days delinquent and weie in various stages ot resolution, wmcluding legal and toreclosurc-telated procecedings and enviroamental matcis, and tanged triom 1 0 109 0 years
outstanding
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Impaired Loans—In the sccond quarter 2018, the Company resolved a non-perfonming loan with a carrying value of $145.8 million. The Company
iccerved a $45.8 million cash payment and a prefenred equity investment with a face value o' $100 0 mitlion that is mandatorily redeemable in five years.
The Company recorded the prefermed equity at its fatr vatlue 0f $77.0 million and are accruing tnterest over the expected duration of the investment. In
addition, the Company recorded a $21 4 mullion loan loss provision and simuitancously charged-otY of the rematning unpaid balance.

The Company's recorded investment in impaired loans, piesented by class, were as tollows ($ in thousands)\)

As of December 31, 2018 As of December 31, 2017
Unpaid Unpaid
Recorded Principal Related Recorded Princtpal Rcelated

Investment Balance Allowance Investment Balance Allawance

Total S 66,725 § 66,777  § (40,395) § 237877 % 227,280 % (60,989)

(1) All of the Compuny's non-accrual loans arc considered impaired and included 1n the able above

The Company's average recorded investment in impaired loans and interest income recognized, presented by class, was as tollows ($ in thousands):

For the Years Ended December 31,
2018 2017 2016

Average Interest Average Interest Average Interest
Recorded Income Recorded Income Recorded Income
Investment Ru,ol.nlzcd Investment ‘Recognized Investment Recognized

’@liﬁ"m Felatod. ullu\\”’anﬂ:ﬁ .

ma%wmw’%};i

Subtotal
VO ahallowancs recordeda i
'nlor monbabcs
; pmmg’l'.mc i

Lrand

Ea

185,027 —

Subtotal

122 582
=uh61 01

g&%‘z’ﬁiﬁm
s

3 mm.;mémas
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Securities—Other lending investments—sczcurnties include the tollowing (3 in thousands):

Amortized Cost Net Unrealized Estimated Fan Net Canying
Face Value Basis Gain Value Value

21661 21661

Hiv472 100465,

122,126

, 3 142051 § 121,650  $ 483§ 122,133

5 87.964

As of December 31,2018, the contractual maturitics of the Company’s securitics were as follows ($ in thousands):

Held-ta-Maturity Securitics Available-for-Sale Securities
Amortized Cost “ Estimated Fair Amortized Cost Estimated Fair
Basis Value Basis Value

(LTI Baren

Within one year ) $ '20359 S 20866 S s —
mﬂsmn@‘y&wﬂxmugl ”? Xm"

00 465 100,472
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Note 7—Other Investments

The Company's other investments and 1is propurtionate share of eamings (losses) from equity method investnents were as follows (S in thousands):

Carrying Value Equity in Earnings (Losscs)
As uf December 31, For the Years Ended December 31,

2018 2017 2018 2m7 2016

i1 605
S LG LB T ot

il $e RN
304,275 § 3’7l24l S (5007) S 13,015 §

(1) Oa January 2, 2019, the Company made an additional $250.0 million cash investnent in ntwly designated limited partnership units (the "lovestor Units") of SAFE's operating
partnciship ("bAFE OP") (1efer w Notc 19). For the ycar ended December 31, 2017, cquity in camings is for the penod from April 14, 2017 10 December 31, 2017,

(2} OnJanuary t, 2018, the Company recorded a step-up n basis w fair value of its retained noncontrulling interest relating to the sale of its Ground Lease business (refer to Note 4)
and othcr transactions where the Company sold or contributed real estate to a venturc and pieviously rccognized partial gains Prior to the adopuon of ASU 2017-03, the
Company wds reguired (o recogaize gains on only the pornon ot its interest ransterred 10 third parties and was prectuded from recognizing # gain on its retained noncontrolling
intcrest, which was emried at the Campany s hisworical cost basis.

(3)  The Company consolidated the assels and liabiluies of the Net Lease Venture on June 30, 2018 (refer w Net Lease Venture below).

(4)  During the year endued December 31, 2018, the Company recorded 4 $6.1 million imapairment on a land and development equity method investment due o a change in business
strategy. During the yoar ended December 31, 2016, « majority-owned consolidated subsidiary of the Company sold its interest 1n a real estate eguity method investment for net
proceeds of $39.8 million and recognized cquity 1n carnings of $31.5 million, of which $10.1 million was atwibutablc to the noaconwolling intcrest. In additon, the Company
received a distributuon fiom one of it 1eal estate equity method investments and recognized equity in eamnings during the year ended December 31, 2016 of $11.6 million.

(§)  For the yedr ended December 31, 2018, cquity in carnings (Josses) includes a $10.0 million impairment on a foreign equity method invesmment due to local market conditions.

Safety, Income & Growth Inc.—The Conpany and two institutional investors capitalized SIGI Acquisition, {nc. ("SIGI") on April 14, 2017 to acquire,
manage and capitalize Ground Leases. The Company contributed $55.5 million for an initial 49.1% noncontrolling interest in SIGI and the two institutional
mvestors contributed an aggregate $57.5 million for an initial 50.9% controtling interest in SIGL Awholly-owncd subsidiary of the Company that held the
Company's Ground Lease busioess and asscts merged with and into SIG! on April 14, 2017 with SIGI surviving the merger and bclng renamed Safety, Income
& Growth Inc. ("SAFE") Through this merger and rclated transactions, the inslilullunal investors acquired a rontrollmg intercst in the Company's Ground
Lease business. The Company's canytng value of the Ground Lease asscts was approximately $161.1 million. Shortly before the Acquisition Transactions,
the Company completed the $227.0 million 2017 Secured Financing ou its Ground l.ease assets (refer to Note 10). The Company reccived all ot the proceeds

-of the 2017 Sccuied Financing. The Company reccived an additional $113.0 million of procceds in the Acquisition Transactions, including $55.5 million
that the Company contributed to SAFE in its initial capitalization. As a result of the Acquisition Transactions, the Company deconsolidated the 12 properties
and the associated 2017 Sccured Financing. The Company accounted for this transaction as an in substance sale of real estate and recognized a gain of
$123.4 million, reflecting the aggregate gain less the fair value of the Company's retained interest in SAFE. As a result of the adoption of ASU 2017-05, on
Janvary I, 2018, the Company rccorded an incrcasc to retained camings of $55.5 million, bringing thc Company's aggregate gain on the salc of its Ground
Lease business to approximately $178 9 million.

On June 27, 2017, SAFE completed its inttial public offering (the "Offering”) raising $205.0 million in gross proceeds and concumrently completed a
$45 0 mullion private placement Lo the Company. In addition, the Company paid $18.9 million in organization and offening costs of Lhe up to $25.0 million
1n oiganization and offering costs it agreed to pay in connection with the Offering and concurrent private placement. The Company expensed the portion of
oifering costs that was atibulable (o other investors in "Other expense™ 1n the Company's consolidated statements of operations and capitalized the portion
of offering costs attiibutable to the Company's ownership interest tn "Other investments" on the Company's consolidated balance sheets. Subsequent to the
initiel public offering and through December 31, 2018, the Company purchased 2.4 million shares of SAFE's common stock for $45.7 million, representing
an average cost of' $18.69 per share, pursuant to 10b5-1 plans in accordance with Rules 10b5-1 and

84



lnbls of Contents
iStar Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contnued)

10b-18 under the Securities and Exchange Act ot 1934, as amended, under which the Company could buy shares ot SAFE's commion stock i the epen
market. The Company also purchased an additional 133,524 shares of SAFE's common stock 1n open maiket and negotiated tansactions tot $2.2 nulhon,
representing an average cost of $16.39 per share As of December 31, 2018, the Company owned approximately 41 8% of SAFE's Lomimon stock vutstanding

A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company ts the extemal manager of SAFE and 1s entitled to a management tec In connection with the Company's
$250.0 million cash investment in Investor Units of SAFE OP Giefer to Note 19), the management agreement was amended on January 2, 2019 Highlyhes ot
the managemcent agreement terms are included betow:

We recerved no management fee through Junc 30, 2018, which covered the first year of the management agieement;

We receive a fee equal to 1.0% ot total SAFE equity (as defined in the management agreement) up to $1 5 bithion: 1 25% ot total SAFE cquity (for
incremental equity of $1.5 billion - $3.0 bitlion); 1.375% of total SAFE cquity (for incremental equity of $3.0 bitlion - $5 0 bilhon). and 1.3% ot
‘total SAFE equity (for incremental equity over $5.0 billion);

s Famsn bawnicd ta ancbk awie o
rCC 10 G paih il Casid O1'id 5

The stock will be locked up for two years, subject to certain restiictions;

Theic 1s no additional performancc orincenuve fec;

From January 1, 2019 through June 30, 2022, the management agreement 1s non-termunable by SAFL except fou cause, and

Automatic annual renewals thereafter, subject to non-renewal upon certain findings by SAFE's independent directors'and payment ot termination fee
equal to three limes the prior ycar's management fee, subject to SAFE having raised $820 nmullion ofotal equrty since inception

The Company is also entitled to receive expense resmbursements, including for the allocable costs of its peisonnel that perform cerain legal,
accounting, due diligence tasks and other services that third-party professionals or outside consultants otherwise would perform. The Company waived both
the management fec and certain of the expensc reimbursements through June 30, 2018 For the six months ended June 30, 2018, the Company waived $1.8
million and $0.8 million, respectively, of management fees and expense reimbursements. For the six months ended December 31, 2018, the Company
rccorded $1.8 million and $0.7 million, respectively, ot management fees and expensc reimburscments In the fourth quarter 2018, the Company received
45,941 shares of SAFE's common stock for payment of the management fee for the three months ended September 30, 2018, Subsequent o December 31,
2018, the Company was issued 46,020 shares of SAFE's common stock for payment of the management tee for the three months ended December 31, 2018
The Company has an exclusivity agrecement with SAFE pursuant to which it agreed, subject to certain exceptions, that it will not acquire, originate, Invest n,
or provide financing for a third party’s acquisition of, a Ground Lease unless it has first offered that vpportunity to SAFE and a majonty of its independent
directors has declined the opportunity.

Following is a list of investments that the Company has transacted with SAFE:

In August 2017, the Company committed to provide a $24.0 million loan to the ground lessee of a Ground Lease originated at SAFL The loan had an
inital tenn of one year and was extended for an additional year and will be used for the renovation of 4 medical otfice building in Atlanta, GA $17.0 nullion
of the loan was funded as of December 31, 2018. Duning the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company recorded $1 4 mullion of interest tncome on the
loan. The transaction was approved by the Company's and SAFE's independent directors.

In October 2017, the Company closed on a 99-year Ground Lease and a $80.5 mullion constructton financing commitment w support the ground-up
development of Great Oaks Multifamily, a to-be-built 301-unit community within the Great Oaks Master Plan of San Jose, CA. The uansacuon includes o
combination of: (i) a newly created Ground Lease and up 1o a $7.2 million leasechold improvement allowance; and (1) a $80 5 millon leasehold fust
mortgage. The Company entered into a forward purchase contract with SAFE under which SAFE would acquire the Ground Lease in November 2020 tor
approximately $34.0 million. The forward purchasc contract was approved by the Company's and SAFE's independent dircetors.
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In May 2018, the Company provided a $19.9 nullion lcaschold mortgage loan to the ground lessee ot a Ground Lease originated at SAFE. The loan has
an tutual term of'once year and will be used for the acquisition of 100 and 200 Gienndge Point, two multi-tenant office buildings in Atlanta, GA. Dunng the
year ended December 31, 2018, the Company recorded $1.4 million of interest income on the toan. The transaction was approved by the Company's and
SAli's independent directors

In June 2018, the Company sold two mdustrial facilities located in Miami, FL to a third-party and simultaneously structured and entered into two
Giound Leases. The Company then sold the two Ground Leases Lo SAFE. Net proceeds from the transactions totaled $36.1 million and the Company
tecogntzed a $§24.5 million gain on sale. The transactions wete approved by the Company's and SAFE's independent dircctors,

Net Lease Venture—In February 2014, the Company partnered with a sovereign wealth fund to form the Net Lease Venture to acquire and develop net
lease assets and gave a right of fitst offer to the venture on all new net lease investments. The Company and 1ts pariner had joint decision making rights
pertuning to the acquisition of new investments. Upon the expiration of the investment penod on June 30, 2018, the Company obtained control of the
ventuee thtough its unilateral nghts of management and disposition of the asscts. As a result, the expimation of the investment perod resulted in a
reconsideranion event under GAAP and the Company detenmined that the Net Leasz Venture is a VIE for which the Company is the primery beneficiary.
Effective June 30, 2018, the Company consolidated the Net Lease Venture as an asset acquisition under ASC 810. The Company recorded a gain of $67.9
mithon in "Gaia on consohdation of equity method investment” in the Company's consolidated statement of operations as a result of the consolidation. The
Net Lease Venture had previously been accounted for as an equity method invesunent. The Company has an equity interest in the Net Lease Venture of
approximately 51.9% and tecorded a $188.3 million increase to “Noncontiolling interests” and $11.8 million increase to “Redeemablie noocontrolling
interest” on the Company's consolidated balance sheet as a result of the consolidation. The Company acquired the redeemable noncontrolling interest in the
{founh quarter 2018. The Company is responsible for sourcing new opportunities and managing the venture and its assets o exchange for a management fee
and incentive fee. Several of the Company's senior executives whose timie is substantially devoted to the Net Lease Venture own a total of 0.6% cquity

ownership in the venture via co-investment, These senior executives are also entitled to an amount equal to 50% of any incentive tee received based on the
47.5% partner’s intcrest.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Net Lease Venture acquired industrial properties for $59.0 million. During the year ended December 31,
2017, the Comnpany sold a net lease assei for proceeds of $6.2 million, which approximated its carying value net of financing, to the Net Lease Venture and
derecognized the associated $18.9 million financing. During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company made contributions of $49.2 million to the
Net Lease Venture and reccived distributions of $26.0 million from the Net Lease Venture.

Duting the year ended December 31,2016, the Net Lease Venture acquired two office properties and the Company made contributions to the Net Lease
Veniure of $37.7 million. ln November 2016, the Net Lease Venture placed five ycar non-recourse financing 0f$29.0 million on one of its net {ease assets.
Net proceeds from the financing were distributed to the members of which the Company received $13.2 million.

As of December 31, 2017, the venture's canying value of total assets was $658.3 mitlion. During the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016,
the Company recorded $1.3 million, $2.1 million and $1.6 million, respectively, of management fees from the Net Lease Venture, The management fees are
included 1n "Other tncome” in the Company's consolidated statements of operations. In addition, beginning after the Company's consolidation of the Net
Lease Venture on June 30, 2018 and after the effect of eliminations, the Company camed $0.7 million of management fees with respect to services provided
to other investors in the Net Lease Venture, which was recorded as a reduction to "Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests” in the Company's
consolidated statements of operations.

Net Lease Venture [T—In July 2018, the Company entered into a new venture ("Net Lease Venture 1Y) with an investment strategy similar to the Net
Leave Venture. The Net Lease Venture IT has a right of first offer on all new net lease investments (excluding Ground Leases) originated by the Company. The
Company has an cquity interest 1n the new venture of approximalely 51.9%, which will be accounted for as an equity method investment, and is responsible
for managing the venture in exchange for 2 management fee and incentive fee. During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company recorded $0.4
million of management fees from the Net Lease Venrure 11 .

In December 2018, Nel Lease Venture Il acquired four buildings comprising 168,636 square fect (the "Properties") located in Livermore, CA. Net Lease
Venture [facquired the Properties for $31.2 million which are 100% lcased with four scparate leases and which each have 10 years of term remaining.
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Other real estate equity investments—As ot December 31, 2018, the Company's other real estate equity mvestments include cquity interests in real
estate ventures ranging from 16% to 95%, comprised of 1ovestments of $65.6 mullion 1n operating properties and $65 3 muthion 1n fand assets As of
December 31,2017, the Company's otlier real estate equity investiments included $38 8 million in operauing properties and $63 8 mullion in land assets

In August 2018, the Company provided a $33.0 million mezzanine loan, of which $28 4 million was funded as of December 31, 2018, to un
unconsolidated entity in which the Company owns a 50% cquity interest As of December 31, 2018, the loan is included m "Loans teceivable and other
lending 1nvestments, act” on the Company's consolhidated balance sheet. Duning the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company 1ecoided STt milhion ot
interest income on the mezzanine loan.

In December 2016, the Company sold a land and development asset for $36.0 million to a newly formed unconsohidated entity in which the Compuany
owns a 50.0% equity interest. The Company tecognized a gan of $8.8 nuilion, reflecting the Company's shaie of the interest sold to a thnd party, which was
recorded as "Income from sales of real cstate" in the Company's consolidated statements of operations As a result of the adoption o ASU 2017-05, on Junuary
1,20138, the Company recorded an tncrease to retained camings of $8.8 million, bringing the Company's aggiegate gain to approxtmately $17 6 mullion The
Company and its partner both made $7.0 million coninbutions to the venture and the Company provided financing 10 the ennity in the farm afa S270
million senior loan, of which $27.0 nullion and $25.4 million was funded as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and 1s in¢cluded in "Louns
receivable and other lending investments, net” on the Company's consolidated balance sheets. The Company teceived $17 6 nullion of net proceeds fom the
sale of the asset. This entity is a VIE and the Company does not have a controlling intesest due 10 shared control of the entity with its pariner Dunng the
years ended December 31,2018,2017 and 2016, the Company tecorded $2.1 million, $1.9 million and $0.1 million, iespectively. of intetest income on the
senior loan.

Other strategic investments—As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company also had investments in real cstate related funds and other strategic
investments in real estate entitics.

Summarized investee financial information—The following tables present the investee level sutmmanzed tinancial infonnation of the Compuany's
cquity method investments ($ in thousands)

As of December 31, For the Years Ended December 31,
2018 2017 2018 2017 2016

Tolal assets
DY) Skt
gl"_qua\i_ _bth}‘fﬁ%’_ 3

$ 2118045 -8 2,493,798 D)

et

Net income attributablc to

13,258 parent cntities 75,056
o .
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8—Other Assets and Other Liabilides
Dcferred cxpenses and other asscts, net, consist of the following items (§ in thousands):

As of December 31,

2017

nedrexpenses and other assets, net 3 289,268 § 141,730

th)

)
(3)
(4)
%)

Jntanpible assets, et inchudes above market and in-plaze lease assets and lease mcentives related 1o the acqussition of real estate assets. On Sune 30, 2018, the Company
consolidated the Net Lease Venture (refer to Note 7) and 1ecorded $135.3 million of intangible assets 1o "Deferred expenses and other asscts, net” on the Company's consolidated
balance sheet Accumulated amorization on wngible assets, nct was $27.0 million and $34.9 million s of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The amortization of
above market feases and leasc incentive assets decreased aperating lease income in the Company's consolidated statements of operations by $2.2 mutliog, $2.5 mithen and $3.9
million tor the years cnded December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively. These intangible lease assets are amortized over the term of the lease. The amortization expense
for m-place leases was $7.2 mllion, $1.9 million and $1.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively. These amounts are included in
“Deprecistion and amoruzauon” in the Company's consolidated statements of operations. As of December 31, 2018, the weighted average amortizauon period for the Company's
wnangible assets was approximarely 22.3 years.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, wocludes $26.0 million of reimbursements receivable related to the construction and development of an operating property.

QOuha asscts primarily includes denvauve assets, prepaid expenses and deposits for certain real estate assets.

Accumulated amotuzation of leasing costs was $4.4 million and $4.7 mullion as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, vespectively.

Accumulated depreciation on corporate furnimre. fixtures and equipinent was $11.9 million and $10.5 million as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities consist of the following items ($ in thousands):

As of December 31,

Inlan,,xblc llablllm.s m,tl-U

F

e Wr‘mx
Sl gerde

(2)

(3)

As ol December 31, 2018 and 2017, "Other liabilities™ includes $18.5 mulhion and $29.2 mithion, respectively, refated w profit sharng arvangements with developers for certain
propeities sold. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, includes $0.5 million and $1.6 miltivn, respectivety, associated with "Reul estate available and held for sale” on the
Company’s consohduted bulance sheets As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, "Other liabilities” also includes $9.4 million and $6.2 milhon, respectively related 1o tax increment
financing bonds which were issucd by government catiucs to fund development within two of the Company's land piojccts. The amount represents tax asscssments associated
with cach project, which will decrease as the Company selts units,

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, accrued expenses includes $1.9 millton and 52 5 million, respectively, associated with "Real cstate available and held for sale” on the
Compuny's cansolidated bulance sheets

Tatangible Liabilities, uct includes below market lease habiliucs related to the acquisiuon of real estate assets. On Junc 30, 2018, the Company consoltdated the Mct Lease Venture
(refer Lo Note 7) and recorded $34.3 mulhion of intangible Liabilities to "Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other habalities” on the Company's conselidated balance sheet
Accumulated amotuzation on below market teases was $2 .8 narllion and $7 8 million as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, cespecuvely The amaruzation of below market leases
inereased operaung lease income tn the Compaoy's consolidated statementis of operauons by $3.9 million, $1.3 nullion and $1.1 nulhon for the years ended December 31, 2018,
2017 and 2016, respechively. As of December 31, 2018, the weighted average amortization period for the Company's intangible habilitics was approximatcly 22.8 ycars.
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Intangible assets—The estumated cxpense from the amortization ot intangible assets for cach ot the five succceding tiscal years 15 as tollows (S m
thousands)

TSI A gy
2020 8,702
2 ' 01

Noute 9—Lovan Participations Payable, net

The Company's loan participations payable, net were as follows (3 in thousands):

Carrying Value as of

Decemnber 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

H As af December 31, 2018, the Company had one loan participation payable with an interest rate of 7 0%. As of December 31 , 2017, the Company had two loan paiuapations
payable with 2 weighted average interest rate of 6.5%

Loan participations represent transfers of financial assets that did not meet the sales criteria established under ASC Topic 860 and are accounted for as
loan participations payable, net as of December 31, 2018 and 2017. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the corresponding loan reccivable balances were
$22.5 million and $102.3 million, respectively, and are included in "Loans receivable and other lending investments, net” on the Company's consohdated
balance sheets. The principal and interest due on these loan participations payable are paid from cash flows of the corresponding loans receivable, which
serve as collateral for the participations.



Fable af Conients
iStar Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Note 10—Debt Obligations, net

The Company's debt obligations were as follows (S 1n thousands):

Carrying Valuc as of December 31, Stated Scheduled

2018 2017 Intcrest Ra(cs Maturity Date

m Sepl(.mber 2020
Sanud) v

b x?m:'-we\

400,000

o ,wm CH e R I

375,000 375 ooo
ﬁu?u Mieee '
287,500

HrRohE

RORE IS

Totul debt obllgauons, net!'V) $ 3,609,086 § 3,476,400

(1) The loan bears interest at the Conipany's election of either: (i) a base rate, which 1s the greater of (a) prime, (b) lederal funds plus 0.5% or (¢) LIBOR plus 1.0% and subject to a
margin tanging from 1.25% to 1.75%. or (1) LIBOR subjcct to a margin ranging from 2.25% 1o 2.75%. At maturity, the Company may convert outstanding borrowtngs to a one
year term loan which matures in guarterly installments through September 2021

(2)  The loan bears interest at the Company's election of either: (i) a base 1ate, which is the greater of (a) prime, (b) federal funds plus 0.5% or (¢) LIBOR plus 1.0% and subject to'a
margin of 1.75%; ur (1i) LIBOR subject to a margin ot 2.75%.

(3)  On lunc 30, 201K, the Company consolidated the Net Lease Venture and recorded $464.7 million to "Dcbt obligations, nct" on the Company's consolidated batancc shect

(4)  As ol December 31, 2018, the wesghted average interest rate of these loans is 4.4% inclusive of the cffeet of interest vate swaps.

(5) The Company can prepay these seaior notes without penalty. Subsequent to December 31, 2018, the Company called for redemption the remaining principal smount of these
notes on March 7, 2019, X

(6)  The Company can prepay these senior notcs without penalty beginning Junc 15, 2020,

(7)  The Company can prepay these seruor notes without penalty beginng July |, 2020.

(8)  The Company can prepay these senior notes without penalty begianing April 1, 2021,

(9) The Cumpany can prepay these senior noles without penalty beginning Scpiember 15, 2021,

(10) Thc Company's 3.125% scnior converuble fixed ratc notes duc September 2022 ("3, l’S %e Converuble Notes™) arc convertible at the option of the holders at a conversion ratc of
65 47 shares per $1,000 principal amount of 3 125% Couvertible Notes. whiclt equals 4 conversion price of $15.27 per share, at any time prior to the close of business on the
business day immediately preceding September 15, 2022, Upon conversion, the Company will pay or dcliver, as the case may be, a combination of cash and shares of its
common stock As such, at 1ssuance tn Scptember 2017, the Company valued the liability component at $221.8 million, net of fees, and the equity component of the conversion
feature at $22 3 mullion, netof fees, and recorded the cquity componcnt in "Additional paid-in capital" on the Company s consolidated balance shect. Tn October 2017, the tnitial
purclm.cns of the 3 115% Converuble Notes exerciscd thewr oplion to purchase an additional $37.5 million aggregate prmclpal amouut of the 3.125% Converuble Notes. At
issuance, the Company valued the lability component at $34 0 million, net of fees, cud (he equity component of the conversion feature at S3.4 milhon, net of fees, and recorded
the cquity component 1 “Addiuonal paid-in capnal® on the Company's conselidated balance shect. As of December 31, 2018, the carrying valuc of the 3.125% Converuble
Notes was $262 6 mullion, net of fees, and the unamortized discount of the 3.125% Convertible Notes was §20.5 million, net of fees. As of December 31, 2017, the carrying
value of the 3 125% Converuble Notes was $256.7 million. net of fees, and the unamortized discount of the 3.125% Convertible Notes was $25.2 million, net of fees During the
yews ended December 31, 2018 aad 2017, the Company tecognized $9.0 mullion and S2.5 milliva. tespectively, of contractual interest and $4.7 willion and $1 3 ounlhon,
respectively, ot discount amoruzattan on the 3 125% Converuble Notes. The effecuve inteiest raw fot 2018 and 2017 was 5 2%.

(11) The Company capitahzed interest relating to development actvities of $11 3 milhon, $8 5 million and $5 8 million for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016,
respectively
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Future Scheduled Maturities—As of December 31, 2018, future scheduled maturities ot outstanding debt obligations are as tollows (8 in thousunds).

Unaceured Debt Sceured Debt Total
000 % TR
400,000
“Al0904 .
[IERRCTT
616750
691,051
661617
152,531)

s

33 S

(1)  Subsequent to December 31, 2018, the Company called for redemption $375 0 mithon principat amount of sentor notes on March 7, 2019

2017 Secured Financing—In March 2017, the predecessor of SAFE (which at the tme was compnsed of the Company's wholly-owned subsidianes
conducting its Ground Leasc business) entered into a $227 0 million secured financing transaction (the 2017 Sccured Financing™) that accrued interest at
3.795% and matures in April 2027. The 2017 Sccured Financing was collateralized by the 12 properties comprising SAFE's iniual poitfoho. In connecuon
with the 2017 Secured Financing, the Company incurred $7.3 miltion of lender and third-party fees, substantially all of which was capitalized 1n "Debt
obligations, net” on the Company's consolidated balance sheets. In April 2017, the Company detecognized the 2017 Secuied Financing when thud parties
acquired a controlling interest in SAFE's predecessor, prior to SAFE's initial public offering {1efer to Note 4).

The Company is providing a limited recourse guaranty and environmental indemnity under the 2017 Secured Financing that will remain i eflect until
SAFE has achieved cither an equity market capitalization of at least $500.0 million (inclusive of the initial porttolio that the Company contributed to SAFL)
or a net worth of at least $250.0 million (exclusive of the instial pornfolio that the Company contributed to SAFE). and SAFE or another replacement
guarantor provides similar guaranties and indemnities to the lenders. The management agrecment with SAFE provides that SAFE may not termunate the
management agreement unless a successor guarantor reasonably acceptable to the Company has agieed to replace the Company as guarantor and indemnitor
or has provided the Company with a reasonably acceptable indemnity for any losses suffered by the Company as guarantor and indemnitor SAFE has
generally agreed to indemnify the Company for any amounts the Company is required to pay, or other losses the Company may suffer. under the himited
recourse guaranty and environmenial indemnity.

2016 Senior Term Loan—In Junc 2016, the Company cntered into a senior term loan ot'$450.0 million (the "2016 Senior Tenm Loan™). In August
2016, the Company upsized the facility to $500.0 million. The initial $450.0 million of the 2016 Semor Term Loan was issued at 99.0% uf par and the upsize
was issued at par. In Scptember 2017, the Company reduced, repriced and extended the 2016 Senior Term Loan to $400.0 mullion priced at LIBOR plus
3.00% with a0.75% LIBOR floor and maturing 1n October 2021. In June 2018, the Company incrcased the 2016 Scaior Tenn Loan to $650.0 million,
reduced the interest rate to LTBOR plus 2.75% and extended its maturity to June 2023, The facility was also modified to permit substitution of collateral,
subjcct to ovcerall collateral pool coverage and concentration Limits, over the life of the facility. This modification climinates the mandatory amortization
upon payoff or sale of collateral which existed pror to the upsize and broadens the types of collateral permutted under the facility. The Company may make
optional prepayments, subject to prepayment fecs, and is required to repay 0.25% of the principal amount each quarter.

During the years ended December 31,2018 and 2017, 1epayments of the 2016 Scnior Term Loan prior to its modifications and expenses mcuned for the
modifications resulted in [osses on early extinguishment of debt of $2.5 mithon and $0.8 nullion, respectively.

2015 Revolving Credit Facility—In March 2015, the Company entered into a revolving credit facility with a maximum capacity 0f $250.0 milhon (the
"2015 Revolving Credit Facility"). Ia September 2017, the Company upsized the 2015 Revolving Credut Facility to $323.0 nullion, added udduional lenders
to the syndicate, extended the maturity date to Sepiember 2020 and made centain other changes This facihity 1s secured by a pledge of the equity mierestin g

pool of asscts which provide assct value coverage for borrowings under the facihry. Bomrowings under this ¢redit facibity bear interest at o floating rate
indexed to one of
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scveral base rates plus a margin which adjusts upward or downward based upon the Company's corporate credit rating An undrawn credit facility

commutment tee ranges from 0.30% to 0.50%, based on corporate credit 1atings. At matunty, the Company may convert outstanding borrowings to a one year

tenm loan which matures in qudrterly instaliments tirough September 2021, During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company repaid from cash on

hand the $325.0 mullion outstanding on the 2015 Revolving Credit Facility and as ot December 31. 201R, the Company had $325 0 million of borrowing
_ capacity available under the 2015 Revolving Credit Facility.

Unsccured Notes—In Seplember 2017, the Company 1ssued $400.0 million principal amount 0f4.625% senior unsecured notes due September 2020,
$400.0 milhon principal amount ot 5.25% senior unsecured notes due September 2022 and $250.0 million 0f3.125% Convertible Notes due September
202?. The Company incuired approximately $18.6 million doliars in fees related Lo these offerings. all of which was capitalized in "Debt obligations, net” on
the Company's consolidated balance sheets. Proceeds from these offerings, together with cash on hand, were used to repay in full the $550.0 million principal
amount outstanding of the 4.0% scnior unsecured notes due November 2017, the $300.0 million principal amount outstanding of the 7.125% senior
unsczured notes due February 2018 and the $300.0 million principal amount outstanding of the 4.875% senior unsecured notes due July 2018. In addition,

the mrtial purchasers of the 3.125% Convertible Notes exercised their option to purchase an additional $37.5 million aggregate principal amount of the
3.125% Convertible Noles

During the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, repayments of scnior unsecurcd notes prior to maturity resulted 1n losses on early
extinguishment of debt 0f$1.2 million, $13.6 million and $0.4 million, respectively. These amounts are included in "Loss on carly extinguishment of debt,
et" :n the Company's consolidated statements of operations.

In November 2016, in connection with the retirement of the Company's $200.0 million principal amount of 3.0% senior unsecured convertible notes
due November 2016, the Company converted $9.6 million principal amount into 0.8 million shares of our common stock.

Collaterul Assets—The cammying value of the Company's assets that are directly pledged or are held by subsidiaries whose equity is pledged as
collateral to secure the Company's obligations under its sccured debt facilities are as follows, by asset type (§ in thousands):

As of December 31,
2018 2017

Non-Collateral Nan-Collateral
As:cls Culhlcral As\:h‘" Anets
TR T

R

498,524
s W 24 g ‘, 8
B s

(1) The 2016 Seawor Term Loan and the 2015 Revolving Credit Facility are secured only by pledges of equity of certain of the Company's subsidiaries and not by pledges of the
asscts held by such subsidiaries Such subsidiarics are subject to contracrual restrictions under the terms of such credit facilines, including restcicnions on incurring new debt
(subject (o certan exceplions). As ol December 31, 2018, Collateral Assets includes $403.5 million carrying value of assets held by entities whose equity mierests are pledged as
collateral for the $325.0 million 2015 Revolving Credit Facitity that is undrawn as of December 31, 2018.

(2)  Asof December 31, 2018 and 2017, the amounts presented exclude general reserves for loan losses of $13.0 milhon and $17.5 aullion, respectively.

(3)  Asot December 31, 2018 and 2017, the amounts presented exclude toan participations of $22.5 million and $102.3 million, respectively.
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Debt Covenants

The Company's outstanding unsecured debt securities contain comporate fevel covenants that include 4 covendnt to maintatn 4 rativ of uneacumbered
asscts to unsecured indebtedness, as such terms are defined 1 the indenturcs governig the debr sccunities, ot at least 1 2% and a covenant not to mcur
additional 1ndebtedness (except for incurrences of pemmutted debt), 1f on a pro fonna basis, the Company’s consolidated fixed charge covernage rato,
dctermined in accordance with the indenturcs governing the Company's debt sccuritics, 15 1.5x or lower 1fany of the Company's covenants are breached and
not curcd within applicable cure periods, the breach could tesult in acceleration of 1ts debt securttics unless a waiver o1 modification s agieed upon with the
requisite percentage of the bondholders 1f the Company's ability to incur additional indebledness under the fixed charge coversge ratio s lunited, the
Company is permutted to incur indebtedness for the purpose of retinancing existing indcbtedness and for other permitted purposes under the indentures

The Company's 2016 Scnior Tenn Loan and the 2015 Revolving Credst Facility contain certam covenants, including covenants relaung to collaterai
coverage, restrictions on fundamental changes, transactions with affiliates, macters relating to the liens granted to the lenders and the dehiyery ot informaton
to the lenders. In particular, the 2016 Senior Tenn Loan requires the Company to maintain collateral coverage of at least | 25x oulbundnm, bunuwmg; on the
tacility The 2015 Revolving Credit Facility 1¢ secured by a borowing basc of assets

aend remviiome ody
ang requissae

of at least 1.5x outstanding borroMnga on the facility dnd a L()nbullddlcd rallo ofcash flow o fixed charges of at least 1 5x. The 2015 Revolving Credit
Facility docs not requirc that procccds trom the borrowing basc be used to pay down outstanding borrowings provided the borrowing basc asset value
remains at least 1.5x outstanding borrowings on the facility. To satisfy this covenant, the Company has the option to pay down outstanding bonuwings ot
substitute assets in the borrowing base. The Company may not pay common dividends it it ceases (o quality as 2 REIT. In June 20138, the Company amended
the terms of the 2016 Senior Term Loan and the 2015 Revolving Credit Facility to mclude the ability to pay conunon disidends with no restictions so long
as the Company 1s not in default on any ofits debt obligations. .

Lok
i1 Ouid uuuuwlub Sas¢ asici value

The Company's 2016 Senior Term Loan and the 2015 Revolving Credit Facility contain cross default provistons that would allow the lenders to
declare an event of default and accelerate the Company’s indebtedness to them it the Company tails to pay amounts due 1n respect of 1ts otlier recourse
indebtedness in excess ofspeciﬁcd thresholds or if the lenders under such other indebtedness ate otherwise pennitted to accelerate such indebtedness for any
reason. The indentures goveming the Company's unsecured public debt secunties permit the bondholders to declare an event of default and acceterate the
Company's indebtedness to them if the Company's other recourse indebtedness 1n excess of specificd thresholds is not pad at final maturity or if such
indebtedness is accelerated.

Note 11—Commitments and Contingencies

Unfunded Commitments—The Company generally funds construction and dcvelopmenl loans and build-outs of space in real estate asscls over a
rod of

pen it'and when the bormowers and tenanis meet established milestones and other ermrmdnu, criteria. The Company refers Lo these amangements
as Performance-Based Commitments. In addition, the Company has committed to invest capital in several real estate funds and other venwres. These
amangcements are refeired to as Strategic Investments,

As of December 31, 2018, the maximum amount of fundings the Company may be obligated to make under each category, assunung all performance
hurdles and milestones are met under the Perfonmance-Based Commitments and assuming100% of s capital commiltted to Strategte Investments 1s drawn
down, are as follows ($ in thousands):

Loans 2nd Other Lending Othu
Investmentst) Real Estate Investments Total

S SR
ncc-i el Cuimmlmcé‘h

49,520
39,754
459274 -

39,754

9754

(1)  Excludes $27.4 muillion of commitments on loan parucpatons sold that are nol the ubligation of the Cumpany
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Other Commitments—Total operating lease expense for the years ended December 31, 2018,2017 and 2016 was $5.0 million, $5 2 million and $5.9
million, respectively. Future muinimum lease oblipations under non-cancelable operating leases are as follows (8 in thousands):

Thereafter

Legal Proceedings—The Company and/or one or mote of its subsidiaries is party to various pending llugatlon matters that are considered ordmary
idubiic Lubauuu incidential io the Lumpuu_y 'S LUSWIESS as a fwauce and 1avesiment coltipany focused on the couuuerciai real esiaie luuUbuy, lnuuumb
toreclosure-1clated proceedings. The Company believes it is not a party to, nor are any of its properties the subject of, any pending legal proceeding that
would have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated tinancial statements.

Note 12—Risk Management and Derivatives

Risk management

In the normal course of its on-going business operations, the Company encounters economic risk. There are three main components of economic risk:
interest rate risk, credit risk and market risk. The Company is subject to interest rate risk to the degree that its interest-bearing liabilities mature or reprice at
different points in time and potentially at diffcient bases, than its interest-caming assets. Credit risk is the risk of default on the Company's lending
investments or leases that result from a borrower’s ot tenant's inability or unwillingness to make contractually required payments. Market risk reflects changes
in the valuc of loans and other lending investments duc to changes in interest rates or other market factors, including the rate of prepayments of principal and
the value of the collateral underlying loans, the valuation of real estate assets by the Company as well as changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

Risk concentrations—Concentrations of credit risks arise when a number of borrowers or tenants related to the Company's investments are engaged in
similar business activitics, or activitics in the same geographic region, or have similar cconormic features that would cause their ability to mect contractual
obliations, including those to the Company, to be similarly affected by changes in economic conditions.

Substantially all of the Company's real estate as well as assets collateralizing its loans receivable are located in the United States. As of December 31,
201%, the only states with a concentration greater than 10.0% were New York with 16.5% and Califomia with 11.0%. As of December 31, 2018, the
Company's poftfolio contains concentrations in the following assct types: otfice/industrial 32.7%, land 18.4%, cntertainment/lcisurc 17.4%, hotcl 7.1% and
muxed use/mixed collateral 7 0%

The Company underwrites the credit of prospective borrowers and tenants and often requires them to provide some form of credit support such as
corporale guarantees, letters of credst and/or cash security deposits. Although the Company's loans and real cstate asscts are geographically diverse and the
bortowers and tenants operate in a varicty of industiies, to the extent the Company has a significant concentration of intciest or operating leasc revenues from
any single borrower or tenant, the inability of that borrower or tenant to make its payment could have a material adverse effect on the Cornpany. As of
December 31, 2018, the Company's five largest borrowers or tenants colleclively accounted for approximately 14.4% of the Company's 2018 revenues, of
which no single customer accounts for more than 6.7%. '

Derivatives

The Company's usc of derivative financial instuments has historically been limited Lo the utilization of interest rate swaps, interest rate caps and
fore:gn exchange contracts. The principal objective of such financial instruments is to minimize the risks and/or costs associated with the Company's
operating and financial structure and (o manage iLs exposure to tnterest rates and foreign exchange rates. The Company may have derivatives that are not
designated as hedges because they do not meet the strict hedge accounting requirements. Although not designated as hedges, such denvatives are cnlcred
into to managc the Company's exposure to interest rate movements, forcign exchange rate movements and other identified risks.

N
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The table below presents the fair value of the Company's derivatve tinancial instruments as well as their classification on the consolidated kalance
sheets as of December 31, 2018 (S in thousands).

Derivative Assets Derivative Liabilities
Balance Sheet Fair Balance Shect Fair
Location Value Location Value

Signn

H -
it RIS 0 B

lnteu:s( mc swaps

OLhel asscts

g SR

(4] Over the next lZ mouths, the Company expects that $1.0 mullion related to cash Mow bedges will be tecldssified ltom "Accumuldted other comprelivnsive income (loss)” 4s an

The tables below present the cffect of the Company's derivative financial instruments, inctuding the Company's share of denvauve financial
instruments at cerlain of its equity method investments, in the consolidated statements of operations and the consohidated statements of comprehensive
income (loss) ($ in thousands):

Amount of Galn (Loss)

Amount of Gain (Loss) Reclassified from
Recognized in Accumulated Accumulated Other
Location of Gain (Loss) Other Comprehensive Compreheusive Income into
Derivatives Designated in Hedging Rclnlunshlps Ruognized ln lncurne Income Eurntags

TR

tFonlh?Wnr;End‘ea ‘December.d

301

Interest rate swaps

g
i }g{

Eamings from equity method
m\'c;(mcnls

Eamings fiom equity method
investments

95




Tabl of Conients

iStar Inc.

Noutes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Amount of Gain or (Loss) Recognized in Income

Locativn of Gain or . For the Years Ended December 31,
{Luss) Recugnized in
Detlvatves not Dcslgndlcd in Hedging Relationships! Income 2017 2016

pEnsCinE

}-orcxbn exchange contracts Olhcx expensce

) The Company did not have any denivauves not designated in hedging relationships duning the year ended December 31, 2018,

Foreign Exchange Contracts—The Company 1s cxposcd to fluctuations in torcign cxchange rates on investments it holds in forcign cntitics. The
Company used foreign exchange contracts to hedge its exposure to changes in foreign exchange rates on its foreign investments. Foreign exchange contracts
mvolvr ﬁxmu lhc U. S dotlar ("UbD") to the rcspwu\'c furu;,n Lurrcm.y Lxclldngc rate for dLllvcry ofa spcuﬁcd amount offurugn currency on a specified

For derivatives designated as net investment hcdgcs. the changes in the fair value of the derivatives are reported in Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Income as part of the cumutauve transtation adjustment. Amounts are reclassified out of Accumutated Other Comprehensive Income into eamings when the
hedged foreign enuty is cither sold or substantially liquidated. For derivatives not designated as net investment hedges, the changes in the fair value of the
denvauves are reported in the Company's consolidated statements of operations within "Other Expense.”

The Company marks its foreign investments cach quarter bascd on cunent exchange rates and records the gain or loss through "Other expense” in its
consolidated statements of operations The Company recorded net gains (losses) related to foreign investments of $0.2 million and $0.1 million during the
years ended December 31,2017 and 2016, respectively, in its consolidated statements of operations. The Company did not have any outstanding derivatives
designated as net investments during the year end December 31, 2018.

- Interest Rate Hedges—For derivatives designated and quahifying as cash flow hedges, the changes in the fair value of the derivatives are reported in
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss). For derivatives not designated as cash flow hedges, the changes in the fair value of the derivatives are
reported in the Company's consolidated statements of operations within "Other Expense.”

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company entered into and settled a rate lock swap in connection with the 2017 Secured Financing and a
simultancous rate tock swap with SAFE. Aq aresult of the scttlements, the Company initially recorded a $0.4 million unrealized gain in “‘Accumulated other

.an.wh- $i lidated 15 aemd

olidated balance sheets and subsequently derecognized the gain when third partics acquired a contvolling
interest in the Company’s Ground Leasc business (refer to Note 4).

TP, S e i vt s hid
ve tneome” on the Company’s co

Credit Risk-Related Contingent Features—The Company has agreements with each of its derivative counterparties that contain a provision where if

the Company either defaulls or is capable of being declared in default on any of its indebtedness, then the Company could also be declared in default on its
derivative obligations.

The Company repotts derivative instruments on a gross basis 1n its consolidated financial statements. In connection with its derivatives which were ina
liability position as of December 31, 2018, the Company posted collateral of $6.4 million and is inciuded in "Deferred expenses and other assets, net” on the
Cowmpany's consolidated balaace sheers. The Company's net exposure under these contracts was zero as of December 31, 2018.
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Note 13—FEquity

Preferred Stock—On October 20, 2017, the Company redeemed all of its 1ssued and outstanding Series E and Series F prefermed stock. Fach huolder ot
Senies E and Series I preferred stock recetved cash in the amount of the liquidation prefercnce of $235 00 per share, ot $240 0 midlion m the aggregate [he
total carrying value of the Series E and Senes F preferred stock was $223 7 million, net of discounts and fees, and was'recorded in "Addittonal paid-in-
capital" and “Preterred Stock Series D, E. F, G and I, hiquidation pieference $25 00 per share" on the Company's consolidated balance sheet as ot
December 31, 2016. The remaining liquidation premium of $16.3 million represents a tetum simslar to a dividend to the holders ot the Seties E and Seues F
preferred stock and, as such, bas been recorded as an adjustment to "Retamed camings (deficit)” on the Company's consulidated balance sheet

The Company had the following series of Cumulative Redeemable and Conyertible Perpetual Preferred Stock outstending as of December 31,2048 and

2017:
Cumulative Prcfcrential Cash
Davidendst»
Fqulvaleat to
Shares Issued and Fixed Annual Carrying
Qutstanding Liquidution Rate Value

Prelerence®x) Rate per Annum {per share) (1n thousands)

(1) Holders of shares of the Series D, G, | and J preferred stuck are entitled to receive dividends, when and ds declared by the Company's Board of Directoss, vut of funds legalty
available for the payment of dividends. Divideads are cumulative from the dute of onigmal issuc and are payable quarterly m arreurs on ur betore the 15th day of cach Murch,
Junc, Scptember and December or, if not a busincss day, the next succeeding business day. Any dividend payable on the prefencd stock for any parual dividend period will be
computed on the basis of a 360-day year conssting of twelve 30-day moaths. Dividends wilt be payable to holders af record as of the clost of bustiness on tie {irst day of the
calendar month in which the applicable dividend payment date falls or on another date designated by the Company's Board of Directors tor the payment of dividends that 13 not
morc than 30 nor less than 10 days prior to the dividend payment date.

() The Company declared and paid dividends of $8 0 mithon, $6.1 million and $9.4 nullion on 1ts Serics D. G and 1 Cumnutauve Redeemable Preferred Stock during the ycar ended
December 31, 2018, The Company declared and paid dividends of $8.0 million, $8.3 million, $5 9 mulion, $6.1 mulion dand $9 4 mullion on its Seriea U, k, F, G and |
Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock during the year ended December 31, 2017 1n addition, in October 2017, the Company redeemed 115 Scries E and Series b Preferred
Stock and paid dividends through the redempuion date of $1.1 million and S0.8 milhion, respectively, on its Sertes E and Scries F Preferced Stock and paid o liquidonion premium
of $16 3 million representing a return sinntlar to a dividend 10 the holders of the Series E and Series F Predetred Swock The Company declared and pard dividends of $9 0
million on its Series § Converuble Perpetual Preferred Stock during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, The characier of the 2018 devidends was 100% capial gan
disribution, of which 26.02% represented unrecaptured section 1250 gain and 73.98% loog term capual gam The character of the 2017 dividends was 100% capial gamn
distribution, of which 27.90% rcpresented unrecaptured section 1250 gain and 72 10% long term capual gain. There arc no dividend aircarages on uny of the preferied shares
currently vutstandmyg,

(3) The Company may. at its option, redeem the Series G and [ Preferred Stock, in whole or m part, at any tune and {rom time to ume, for cash at a redempuion price equal to 100%
of the liguidation preference of $25.00 per share, plus accrued and unpaid dividends, 1f any, 10 the redemption date

(4)  Each sharc of the Series § Preferred Stock 1s convertible a1 the holder's opoon at any unre, 1nto 3.9762 sharces ot the Company's common stoek {egual 1o o convession price of
approximately $12.37 per share), subject to specificd adjustments The Company may, at its option, tedeems the Series J Prefencd Stock, v whole o1 in part, at any ume and
from tune to ume, for cash at a redemption price equal 10 100% of the liquidaton preference of $50 00 per sbare, plus accrued and unpaid divideuds. of any, to the redempuon
date,

Dividends—To maintain its qualification as a REIT, the Company must annually distribute, at a minimum, an amount cqual to 90% ot 1ts taxable
income, excluding net capital gains, and must distnbute 100% of'1ts taxable income (including net capital gawns) to ehimunate corporate tederal 1ncome taxcs
payablc by the REIT. The Company has rccorded NOLs and may tecord NOLs in the future, whitch may tcducc its taxable income i tutuic periods and lower
or eliminate entirely the Company's obligation to pay dividends for such periods in order to mamtain its REIT qualification As ot December 31, 2057, the
Company had $582.4 million of NOL canrytorwards at the corporate RETT level that can gencerally be uaed o ottset both ordinary tuxable income and capital
gain nct income in future years. The NOL carryforwards will expire beginning in 2031 and through 2036 1 unused The amount of NOL canyforwards as ot
December 31, 2018 will be determuned upon finalization of the Company's 2018 tax 1ctum Because taxable mcome ditfers trom cash tlow fiom operations
duc to non-cash rcvenucs and expenscs (such as depreciation and cortain assct impaimments), in ccrtain cucumstances, the Company may genctate operating
cash flow in cxccss of its dividends,
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oraltematively, may need to make dividend payments in cxcess of operating cash flows. The 2016 Scnior Term Loan and the 2015 Revolving Credit Facility
permit the Company to distribute 100% of 1ts REIT taxable income on an annual basis (prior to deducting certain cumulative NOL carryforwards), as long as
the Company maintains its REIT qualification. The 2016 Senior Term Loan and the 2015 Revolving Credit Facility restrict the Company from paying any
comraon dividends 1f 1t ccases to qualify as a REIT. The Company declared and paid common stock dividends of $12.3 million, or $0.18 per share, for the
year ended December 31, 2018. The character of the 2018 dividends was 100% capital gain distribution, of ' which 26.02% represented unrecaptured section
1250 gain and 73.98% long tcrm capital gain. The Company did not declarc or pay any common stock dividends for the year cnded December 31,2017,

Stock Repurchase Program—The Company may repurchase shares in negotiated transactions or open market transactions, including through one or
morc trading plans. During the three months ended March 31, 2018, the Company repurchased 0.8 million shares of its outstanding common stock for $8.3
millign, representing an average cost of $10.22 per shure, No common stock was repurchased during the nine months ended December 31, 2018. The
Company did not tcpurchasc sharcs of its common stock during the ycar ended December 31, 2017 under stock repurchasc programs. During the ycar ended
December 31, 2016, the Company repurchased 10.2 million shares of its outstanding common stock for $98.4 million, representing an average cost of $9.67
per share. As of December 31, 2018, the Company had authorization to repurchase up to $41.7 million of common stock.

In addition, in conncction with the sale of the 3.125% Convertible Notes in September 2017 (refer to Note 10), the Company repurchased 4.0 million
shares of its common stock for $45.9 million, representing an average cost of $11.51 per share, in privately ncgotiated transactions with purchascrs of the
3.12%% Convertible Notes.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)}—"Accunlated other comprehensive income (loss)" reflected in the Company's sharcholders'
equity is comprised of the following ($ in thousands):

As of December 31,

s T e
Ori 0¥ iﬁgle-lumal

Unrcallzcd gains (losscs) on cash ﬂow hcdgcs
ez oses an caraia *,mm.\l.u;bm.ulj_ﬁ‘sfimcn : et ; S24Y
Accumulated other comprehensive loss $ (17 270) $ (2,482)

Note 14—Stock-Based Compensation Plans and Employce Benefits

Stock-Bascd Compensation—The Company recorded stock-based compensation expense, including the expense related to perfonnance incentive
plans (sce below), of$17 6 million, $18.8 million and $10.9 miltion, respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 in "General and
adm:nistrative" 1n the Company's consolidated statements of operations. As of December 31, 2018, therc was $2.0 million of total unrecognized
compensation cost related to all unvested restricted stock units that is expected to be recognized over a weighted average remaining vesting/scrvice period of
1.98 years.

Pertormance Incentive Plans—The Company's Performance Incentive Plan (“iPTP") is designed to provide, primanly to senior executives and select
prolcssionals engaged in the Company's investment activitics, long-term compensation which has a direct relationship to the realized retums on investments
included in the plan. The fair valuc of points is determined using a modcl that forccasts the Company's projected investinent performance. iPIP is a liability-
classified award, which wall be remeasured cach reponing perod at fair value until the awards are settled. The following is a summary of the status of the
Company’s iPIP points and changes during the year ended December 31,2018,

Year Ended December 31,2018

iPIP Investment Pool
2013-2014 2015-2016 2017-2018

Granted 0.50 — 4933

Poiats at end of period 85.77 79.41 8243
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In 2018, the Company made initial disttibutions to participants in the 2013-2014 invesunent paol {ollowing a detenmination that, as of December 31.
2017, the Company had realized a retum of all invested capital 10 the asseis included 1n the 2013-2014 investment pool, together with 4 1etuin based on
leverage and a preterred tetum hurdle of'9 0%. The amount distnbutable to participants was reduced by 4.3% based on the Company's total sharcholder
return in accotdance with the pravisions of the 1P[P and, as a result, (PTP participants received total disuibutions in the amount o1 $15 6 nuthon as
compensation, comprised of $7.8 muliion 1n cash and 685,624 shares of the Company's conunen stock, with a tair value of $7 8 nullion or $11 37 per share.
which are fully-vested and issued under the 2009 LTIP (see below) After deducting statutory miniinuin tax withholdings, a total of 374,058 shates ol the
Company's common stock were issued. As of December 31,2018 and 2017, the Company had accrued compensauon costs relating to 1P’ ot $37 5 uulhon
and $38.]1 million, respectively, which are included in "Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabihues” on the Company's consohidated balance
sheets.

Long-Term Incentive Plan—The Company's sharcholders approved the Company's 2009 Long-Term Incentive Plan (the 2009 LTIP") which s
designed to provide incentive compensation for officers, key employees, directors and advisors of the Company Sharcholders approved amendments w the
2009 LTIP and the perfotmance-based provisions of the 2009 LTIP 1n 2014. The 2009 LTIP provides for awards of stock options, shares of restricred stock,
phantom shares, restricted stock units, dividend equivalent nights and other share-based performance awards. A maximum of 8.0 million shares of common
stock may be awarded under the 2009 LTIP, All awards under the 2009 LTIP arc madc at the discretion of the Company's Bourd ot Dircctors or 2 committee of
the Board of Directors.

As ot December 31, 2018, an aggregate of 2.6 mullion shares remain available lor issuance pursuant to future awards under the Company's 2009 LTIP

Restricted Share Issuances—During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company granted 213,609 shares of common stock to certan employecs

under the 2009 LTIP as part of annua!l incentive awards that included a mix of cash and equity awards. The weighted average grant date fair value per share of’

these share awards was $10.10 and the total fair value was $2.2 million The shares are fulty-vested and 135,503 shares were issued net of statutory minimum
required tax withholdings. The employecs are restricted from selling these shares for up to 18 months trom the date of grant.

Restricted Stock Units—Changes in non-vested restricted stock units ("Units") during the year ended December 31, 2018 were as follows (number of
shares and 3 in thousands, except per share amounts):

Weighted Average

Grant Date Aggregate
Number Fair Vzlue Intrinsic
of Shares Per Shace Value

iﬁ\ e
Forfeited
o9 »

The total fair value of Units vested during the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 was $1.4 million, $0 9 million and $2.9 milhon,
respectively. The weighted-average grant date tair valuc per share of Units granted during the ycars cuded December 31,2018, 2017 and 2016 was $10 16,
$12.09 and $10.11, respectively.

Directors' Awards—Non-employee directors ate awarded CSEs or restricted share awards at the time of the annual shatcholdets’ meeting n
consideration for their services on the Company's Board of Directors. Duning the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company awarded to non-employce
Directors 67,631 restricted shares of comumon stock at a fair value per share o1'$10.65 at the time of grant These restncted shates have a vesting term of vne
year. The Company also issued a total ot 2,805 CSEs at a fair value of $10 91 in respect of dividend equivatents on outstanding CSEs during the year ended
December 31, 2018. Dividends will accrue as and when dividends are declared by the Company on shares of 1ts common stock, but will not be paid unless
and until the CSEs and restricted shaies of common stock vest and are settled As of December 31, 2018, a combined total 0£239,801 €Sks and resuicted
shares of conunon stock granted to menibers of the Company's Board of Directors remained outstanding under the Company's Noa-Employee Ducctocs
Deterral Plan, with an aggregate inttnsic value 0f'$2.2 nullion.

401(k) Plan—The Company bas a savings and retirement plaa (the "401(k) Plan"), which 15 a voluntary, defined contnbution plan All empluyees are
cligible to parieipate in the 401(k) Plan following completon of three months of continuous service with-the Company Each participant niay contnibute on

a pretax basis up to the maximuim percentage of compensation and dollar amount
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pemusstble under Section 402(g) of the Internal Revenue Cude not to exceed the limits of Code Scctions 401(k), 404 and 415 At the discrction of the
Company's Board ot Directors, the Company may make matching contributions on the participant’s behalf of up to 50% of the participant's contributions, up
10 a maximum of 10% of the participants' compensation The Company made gross contributions of ST.1 million, $1 1 million and $1.0 million, respectively,
tor the years ended December 31,2018, 2017 and 2016

Note 15—FEarnings Per Share

Eamings per share ("EPS") is calculated using the two-class method, which altocates eamings among common stock and participating sceurities to
calcutate EPS when an entity's capital structure includes cither two or more classcs of common stock or common stock and participating sccurities.
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The tfollowing table presents a reconctliation ot income (loss) from continuing operations used 1 the basic and diluted EPS calculations (8§
thousands, except for per share dara).

For the Years ¥nded December 31,

2018 2017 ul6

CUURB6)S SUSIASL 8 LD KT

(13,936) (4,526) 4,876)
$edd e is1320);

ArtitipaLing Secuitty

) For the year ended December 31, 2016, includes income from continumng operations allocable 1o Participating Security Holders vt $8 and S¥ on a basi and diluuve basis,
respectively.
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For the Years Ended December 31,
2018 2017 2016

tiiadd opé

ERR W e St e

Wc)ghled average common sharcs outs

olderan

SACEARE A Sl L4

[momc from dnscominued Opcralions

IR
)

continuig
1r.mhnldcn\ y

K3
FUETRT A e A
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For the ycars ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, the following shares were not included in the dituted EPS calculation because they were anti-
dilutive (in thousands)t ! 2X3K4):

For the Years Ended December 3,

2008 017 2016

— 14,764

i _ Casas T se3s,
1.50% converuible senior unsecured notes — — 9308
(1) For the year ended December 31, 2016, the effeci of 16 and 125 unvesicd ime and market-based Units, respecuvely, were ann-dilulive
(2)  For the year ended December 31, 2017, the cffcet of 6 and 17 unvested tine and maikct-based Units, respeein cly, were anu- dllum c
(3)  For the year ended December 31, 2018, the effect of the Company's unvested Unils, CSEg and vestrotzd stoch awards 3 having 4 oui s
for the period
(4)  The Company will sctle conversions of the 3.125% Converable Notes by paying the conversion value in cash up 1o the orginal principal amount ot the notes being canverted

and shares of common stock to the extent of any converston premium, The amount of cash and shares of commaon stock, tf any, due epon converson will be based on @ dully
conversion value calculated for each trading day in a 40 consceutive day observation period Based upon the conversion price ol the 3 125% Convertble Notes, nu shares ol
comnon stock would have been issuable upon conversion ol the 3.125% Convertible Notes tor the year coded December 31, 2017 and lh:n.lur: the 3 125% Convertible Notes
had no ¢ffcet on diluted EPS for such periods.

Note 16—Fair Values

Fair value represents the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between warket partictpants

at the measureinent date. The following farr value hierarchy prioritizes the inputs to be used in valuation techniques to measure furr value:

Level 11 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical, unrestricted assets or habilities,

Level 2: Quoted prices in markets that arc not actve, or inputs which are obscrvablc, cither dircctly or indirectly, for substanually the full tenm ot
the assct or liability; and

Level 3:  Prices or valuation techniques that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement and unobservable (1 ¢, supported
by little or no market activity).

Certain ot the Company's assets and liabilities are recorded at fair value enther on a recurning or non-recuming basis. Assets required to be marked-o-

market and reported at fair value every reporting period are classified as being valued on a recurning basis. Assets not required.to be recorded at fair value
every period may be recorded ar fair value if'a specific provision or other impairment is recorded within the penod to mark the carrying value ot the asset to
market as of the reporting date. Such assets are classified as being valued on a non-recurring basis.
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The following fait value hicrarchy table summanzes the Company's assets and liabilitics recorded at fair value on a recurring and non-recurming basis by
the aboy e categories (5 1n thousands).

Fair Value Using

Quated market Sigmticant other Significant
prices in abservable unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
Total (Level 1) {(Level 2) (Level 3)

&,

Derivauye labilitiest
x %

Impaired laad and development?

(1)  The fair value of the Company's derivatives are based upon widely accepted valuation techniques utilized by a third-party specialist using observable inputs such as interest rates
and contractual cash flow and are classified as Level 2. The fair value of the Company's available-for-sale securities are based upon unadjusted thivd-party broker quates and ure
clussified as Level 3

(2) The Company recorded aggregate ympairments of $76.3 million on threc real estate assess with an estimated aggrepate fair value of $29.4 miltion The impairments were as
follows.

i A $23.2 million imparmcent on a commercial cperating property based on a decline in cxpected operating performance The fair value is bascd on the Company's
estimaie of the recoverability of its investiment an the project |

ii. A $6.0 million impairment on a property based on a stiategic decision to scll the assct, The fair valuc is based on purchase offers received trom third parties, which is
consistenl with the Company's estimate of lair value ’

ui A $47.1 milhon unpairment on a commercial operauny property based on a stratcgic decision to scll the assct. The fair valuc is bused on purchasc offers reccived from
third parues, which 15 consistent with the Company's estimate ot tair value

(3) The Company rccorded aggregate impairments of $3.7 million on two real estate assets held for sale. The faic valucs are based on inarket comparable sales.

(4) The Company recorded aggregate impairments of $55 4 million on four land and development assets with an estimated aggregate fair valuc ot $78.4 million. The impairments
were as follows:

1 A 5250 mullion impairment on a wateifront land and development assct based on a strategic decision to sell the assee The fair value is based on purchase ofters
recwived trom thad pariies, which ts consistent with the Company's ¢stimate of tair value, .

n A $21.6 mitlton impairment on a master planacd community based on a sirategic decision 10 scll the asset. The fair valuc is based on purchasc offers reecived from
thud parties, which 1s consistent with the Company's esumate of fan value

ii. A $6 9 million impairment vz an wfill land and development asset based on the deteioration of the asset. The fair value is bascd vn purchase offers received from
third parties, which is consistent with the Company’s estimale of far value,

tv A $1 9 millian )mpairment on a waterfiont land and development assct based on the sale of the asset in 2049,

(5)  The Company recorded an impanment on 4 1cal estate asset with a fair value of $12.4 million based on market comparable sales.

(6)  The Cumpany recorded an impaitment on & 1esidential 1eal estdle dsset dvailable and held for sale based on market comparable sales.

(7)  The Company recorded un impatrment on a land and devclopment asset with g tair value of $21 4 million based on a discount rate of 6% and a 10 year holding period
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The following table summarizes changes in Level 3 available-for-sale securities reported at fair value on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets for
the years ended December 31,2018 und 2017 ($ 1n thousands):

Fair values of financial instruments—The Company's estimated fair values of its loans receivable and other lending investments and outstanding debt
was $1.0 billion and $3.5 billion, respectively, as of December 31, 2018 and $1.3 billion and $3 7 billion, respectively, as of December 31, 2017 The
Company determined that the significant inputs used to valuc its loans 1ecennable 2nd sther lending nivesiiients and debi obhiganons faii witivn Levei 3 of
the farr value hievarchy. The canying value of other financial instruments including cash and cash equivalents, icsincted cash, accrued interest recervable and
accounts payable, approximate the fair values of the instruments. Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash values are considered Level 1 on the fair
value hicrarchy. The fair value of other financial instruments, including derivative assets and liabilitics, are included wa the faur value hiclarchy table above

Given the nature of certain assets and liabilities, clearly determinable market based valuation 1nputs arc ofien not available, therefore, these assets and
liabilities are valued using internal valuation techniques. Subjectivity exists with respect to these intemal valuation techmques, theretore, the tair values
disclosed may not ultimately be realized by the Company if the assets were sold or the habilities were settled with third parties. The methods the Company
used to estimate the fair values presented in the table above are described more fully below tor each type ot asset and liabthty.

Derivatives—The Company uses interest rate swaps, interest rate caps and forcign exchange contracts to manage its interest rate and foreign cumency
risk. The valuation of these instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis on the expected cash flows of each denvative This analysis
reflects the contractual terms of the denvatives, including the period to maturity, and uses observable market-based inputs, including interest rate curves,
foreign exchange rates, and implicd volatilities. The Company incorporates credit valuation adjusiments to appropriately retlect both its own non-
performance risk and the respective counterparty's non-performance risk in the fair value measurements. In adjusting the fare value of s derivative contracts
for the ctfect ot non-performancec risk, the Company has considered the impact of netting and any applicablc credit enbancements, such as collateral postings.
thresholds, mutual puts and guarantees. The Company has determined that the significant inputs used to value its dervattves fall within Level 2 of the fair
value hicrarchy.

Impaired loans—The Company's loans identified as being impaired are nearly all collateral dependent loans and are evatuated for impainment by
companng the estimated fair value of the underlying collateral, less costs to scll, to the camrying value of cach loan. Duc to the nature of the individual
properties collatetalizing the Company's loans, the Company generally uses 2 discounted cash flow methodology thiough intemally developed vatuauon
models to estimate the fair value of the collateral. This approach requires the Company to make judgments in respect to significant unobservable wnputs.
which-may include discount rates, capitalization rates and the timing and amounts of estimated futwie cash flows. For income producing properucs, cash
flows generally include property revenues, operating costs and capital expenditures that are based on cunent observable matket rates and csimates fot market
rate growth and occupancy levels. For other real cstate, cash flows may include lot and unit sales that arc based on current observable market rates and
estimates for annual revenue growth, operating costs, costs of completion and the inventory scll out pricing and uming The Company will also consider
market comparables if available. In some cases, the Company obtains extemal "as is" appraisals for loan collateral, geneially when thud pany participations
exist, and appraised values may be discounted when real estate markets rapidly deteriorate. The Company has determuned that signtficant inputs used tn its
intemnal valuation models and appraisals fall within Level 3 ofthe fair value hietaichy.

Impaired real estate—If the Company determines a real estate asset available and held for sale 1s tmpanted, it records an impainnent charge to adjust
the assct to its estimated fair market vatue less costs to scll. Due to the nature of individual rcal estate properties, the Company pencrally uses a discounted
cash llow methodology through internally developed valuation models to estimate the fair vatue ol the asscts. Thts appioach requires the Company to make
Judgments with respect to significant unobservable inputs, which may include discount rates, capiwalization rates and the tnung and amounts of estimated
future cash flows. For income producing properties, cash flows generally include property revenues, opeiating costs and capttal expenditures that are based
on current observable market rates and estimates for market rate growth and occupancy levels. For other real estate, cash
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flow:. may include lot and unit sales that are based on cunent obscrvable market rates and estimatces for aunual market rate growth, operating costs, costs ot
completion and the inventory sell out pricing and timing The Company will also consider maiket comparables (f available In some cases, the Company
obta:ns extemnal "as is" appraisals for real estate assets and appraised values may be discounted when redl estate markets rapidly deteriorate. The Company
has determined that signiticant tnputs used in sts intemal valuation models and appraisals fall within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Additionally, in
certain cases, If the Company is under contract to sell an asset, it will mark the asset to the contracted sales pnce less costs to seil. The Company considers
this to be a Level 3 input under the fair value hieraichy.

Loans receivable and other lending investments—The Company estimates the fair value of its performing loans and other lending investments using a
discounted cash flow methodology. This method discounts estimated future cash flows using rates management determines best reflect current market interest
tates that would be offered for loans with similar characteristics and credit quality. The Company determined that the significant inputs used to value its
loans and other lending investments fall within Level 3 of the fair valuc hierarchy. For certain lending investments, the Company uses market quotes, to the
extent they are available, that fall wathin Level 2 of the fair value hierarchiy or broker quotes that fall within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Debt vbiigadons, net—For debl obitgations waded in secondary markets, the Company uses market quotes, to the extent they are avaiiabie, 1o
determine fair value and are considered Level 2 on the fair value hierarchy. For debt obligations not traded in secondary markets, the Company determines
fair value using a discounted cash flow methodology, wiereby contractual cash flows are discounted at rates that management determines best reflect current
mark et 1nterest rates that would be charged tor debt with similar characteristics and credit quality. The Company has determined that the inputs used to value
1ts debt obligations under the discounted cash flow methodology fall within Level 3 of the fair value hicrarchy.

Note 17—Scegment Reporting

The Company has determined that 1t has four reportable scgments based on how management reviews and manages 1ts business. These reportable
scgnients include: Real Estate Finance, Net Lease, Operating Propertics and Land and Development. The Real Estate Finance scgment includes all of the
Company's activities related to senior and mezzanine real estate loans and real estate related sccurities. The Net Lease segment includes the Company's
activities and operations related to the ownership of properties generally leased to single corporate tenants. The Operating Properties segment includes the
Company's activities and operations related to its commercial and residential propentics. The Land and Development segment includes the Company's
activitics related to its developable land porttolio.

The Company evaluates performance based on the following financial measures for each segment. The Company's segment information is as follows ($
in thousands):

Operating Lund and

Ncl Lease Properties Developinent Corparate/Other Company Toul
7 v T ?

8479

e oy

(139,289)
SESEDY

bR X

WAt
A e

(20, 713)

AT
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Real Estate Uperating Land and

Finance Net Lease Properties Develupment Corparate/Otheri"

Company Total!

79,991
AT

Income from disconunucd operations
2 SO

.G.un*(mm'dw\"cnnm‘i‘;i i {

Income from salcs of rcal estate

s o
w«Tqml 1‘&'\ 1

Real estate expense
Landgf!c\chgmm‘nuist. fsleis
Othcr prcnu.

M RS

‘&l ?Ciilcd inferest cxpaus

b ﬁcgmtnb;%vwﬁv(l U'*ﬁaﬁg\;

Otber \lgnlﬁ(.d.lll non—w.sh iteans:

PR sn‘inr’fés 5‘@;

SR R

Allocated genceral and admunistrative!®

6937
147,108

(19.541)

B sl _
(15,223) (19,563) (8,075) (16,483) (20,726)

(147.617)
120.954)

(80,070)

166,336

125,744

107




fable of Contents

iStar Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Real Estate Opcerating Laad and
Finance Properties Development

Corporate/Other"

Company Total

vy

(36,963) (137,522)
R Y Y

Allocated gencral and administrativa? (13,693)

0

(19,975)

TR

SeLINIT e e T R D% S GR0S)

Other significant non-cash items:

S

Sl

TR

. & i Slawiianad
1,536,494 S 234,525
AT o : e WAL LT

Rl AR eI Tt S ey osse i

Total 1cal estate

5 SRR

AR i Rt i hh

e and other lending investmients,

R

466,248

EYREREES
e o

s

55

Total asscts
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Corporate/Other represents all corporate level and unallocated items including any intercompany ¢hminauons necessary w recondie W coasohdated Company s Thes

Gencral and admintstieative excludes stock-based compensativn expense of $17 6 mutlion, S18.8 milhon and $10.9 rullwn for the years ended December 31, 201K, 2047 and

(1)

caption also 1ncludes the Company's Joint veature i vestnents and sorategic investments that are not included m the othar reportable segments abeve
2)

2016, respectively.
(3) The tollowing 15 a reconethation of segment profit W net meome (loss) (§ 1 thousands):

For the Years Ended December 31,

2017 016

8% - 5 156154

S.828 12,514

Dam T nadRey

(49.033) (51.660)

S Empiharion SR & 7 Eo 1) ‘ T 0,889y
Income tax {expense) benefit .

o

948 10.166
41v347): AL R LR L)
(18,326) $ 180,208 § 100,182
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Note 18—~Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

The following table scts forth the selected quarterdy financiat data for the Company (3 in thousands, except per sharc amounts).

For the Quarters Ended

December 31, September 30, June 30, March 31,

Ay
(10,860)

e 10 common sharcholders
AT e e R %

e

R e M S S e
R

RS

IR

83,694

BEE

T
SR
(4.766)

nunued operations

e o

o
$ (14,212)
Solaer s

SRR

b

SCREEISE A e (R
179.722  §

72,065

Diluted

1) Busic and diluted EDPS are computed mdependently based on the weighted-average shates of common stock and siock equivalents ouistanding tor cach period. Accordingly, the
sum ol the yuarterly EPS amounts may not agree 1o the wial Tor the year
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Note 19-—~Subsequent Events

On January 2, 2019, the Company invested $250.0 million 1n 12,500,000 {nvestor Umits of SAFE OP, at a purchase price of $20 00 per umit Thus
transaction was approved by a special commuttee of the Company's board of directors, with the advice of independent legal and financial advisors Each
Investor Unit will receive distributions equivalent to disuibutions declared and paid on one share of SAFE common stock The Investor Units have no veting
rights. They have limited protective conseat rights over certain matters such as amendments to the terms of the Investor Units that would adveesely atfeet the

Investor Units.

In conjunction with this invesumcnt, the Company and SAFE have entered into an amended and restated management agreement. The revised
agreement reflects the Company's increased conunitment to SAFE and aligns with SAFE's ambitious future giowth targets The matenal revised terms of the

amended management agreement are summarized in the following table

Terms Privr Agre

A ded Aprecment

L S
S e e HOR
Payment will be mad

e exclusively in
Consideration SAFE's common stock (valued at the greater of: (1)
the volume weighted average market price during the

&

shares of the

quarter for which the fee is being paid; or (ii) the
initial public olfering price ot $20.00 per share)

[asa e Rt S
Tennination Fee

e
s

At the discretio

a of the SAFE's independent
directors, payment will be made 1n cash or in shares
of SAFE's common stock (valued at the greater of (1)
the volume weighted average market price dunng the
quarter for which the fee is being paid: or (11) the

Three times prior year's management fee. subject to
the SAFE having raised $820 million of tlotal cquity
since Inception
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(8 in thousands)

Balance at Charged to Adjustments Balance at
Beginning Costs and tu Valuation End
of Period Expenses Accounts Deductions of Permd

wﬁ

ST
(93l8) $

e ni et

«m» ”,_gsg

Reserve for loan losscs(‘)(‘l
FRAs Loy PO st s R N &WM
I&s\unc*ttmr( ‘ublful’ncuﬁunh‘-l“m,; an

S el

(1) Refer 10 Now 6 o the Company's consolidated financial stawements.
(2} Refer to Note 3 to the Company's consolidated financial statements

12



iStar Inc,
Schedule ITI—Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation
As ot December 31,2018

($ in thousands)

Gross Amount Carried

Initia! Cast to Company Cost at Ctose of Period
Capstalized Depreciable
Bullding and  Subscquent to Bullding and Accumulated Bate Tife
Location Encumbrances Land Improvements  Acquisinon® Land Improvements Total Depreciation Acquired {Ycars)

OFFICE FACILITIES:

Tempe,
1999

Tempe,

. 19,529

Az

RAde 1 annd
i, Laure.,

New Jersey OFF010 48,968 7,726 74,429 10 7.724 74,441 82,165 29,894 2002 agn

Riverview,
New Jersey

Harrisburg,
Pennsylvapia

Ruichardsun,

* Texas 1999

OFFO16

Avondale,
Auzona

INDOOL 2009

lacksonville,
Flonda INDOU3 30,397 3,510 20,840
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As of December 31,2018
(S in thousands)

Gross Amount Carried

Initia) Cost to Compuny Cost al Close of Period
Capltalized Depreciable
Building and  Subseq to Building and Accumulated Date Life
L.ocution Encumbrances Land Improvements  Acquisition® Land Impravements Total Depreciation  Acquired (Years)

Bristol,
Indiana

INDOOS

9,224

3,733 2007 400
s 25

; _
W
Eil S

A s

36,517

44 8RS

El Reno,
Oklahoma

i

\La Poruw,

TNDOt1

Texas INDOI3 . 27,426 27,838 (416} 1,631 27,442 29,073 7,614 2007 40.0

Chipnewa
Fulls

Wisconsin

ey

N

Whrunana,
Arizona LANOG2 — 96,700 — — 96,700 —

Manunoth,
Cultfornia LANUU4 —_ _ —_ 2,382 _—

Santa Clarita

Valley,

Cabitornia LANUO6 — 59,100 — (21,600) 37,500 ' — 37,500 — 2010
4.

Fort Myers,
Flor:da LANOOR — 5.883 — 1,789 7,494 178 7,672 —_ 2014 0
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As of December 31,2018

($ in thousands)

Gross Amount Carried

Initial Cost to Compuuay Cost ut Cluse ol Period
Capitalized Deprediable
Building and  Subsequent to Building and Accuinulated Date Life
Location Encumbrances Land Improvements  Acquisition®) Land improvements Total Depreciation Acyquired (Years)
: . Py - .

Florida LANDID — 40,138
BN §i

Asbury Park,
New Jerscy

Brooklyn,
New Yok  LANOI6 — 38,900 — (19,874) 39,026 — 29,026 — 2011 0
o 2 * : i o 105 5 x i 5

County,
Virgimia LANO20 — 72,138 —_ 41,173 113,911 — 113911 - 4318 ¢y 2009 0

Virginia
Sublot

(1,2560) 7.827 7.827 2010

ENTERTAINMENT:

Decatur,
Alabama ENT002

Ainille
AT .

Mobile, ,
Alabama ENTO04

Chandler,
Arlzona ENTO06 —_ 793 1,027 (62) 793 EIN 1,758 337 2004 40U

CLdn0a . lion
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As of December 31,2018

(3 in thousands)

Gruss Amount Carried

Initial Cost to Company Cost at Close of Period
Capitalized Depreciable
Building and Subsequent to Building and Accumulated Date Life
Locatian Encumbrances Land Impravements Acquisition® Land Improvements Tatal Depreciation Acquired (Years)
Glendale,
Arizona 2,393 1,750 2,118 — 1,750 2,1t8 3,868 63 2018 400
. ) X : B AN

Mesa,
Airzond ENTOI0 1.520 970 1,710 — 970 1.710 2,680 3R 2018 40.0
; o ; : 0ot S
. i iy
Peona.
Artzonu ENT012 — 590 764 (46) 590 718 1,308
i e : : : ;

Aviran

Phaocaix,
Anzona

Scullﬂdalc;
Arizona 1,778 1.933 3,138

ENTO18

Bakcisticld,
Caltorag

4.869 6,901
o

Milpatas,
California  ENTO024 - W 676 876 . (53) 676 823 1,499 287

Murtiew,

Caltlornia  ENTO026 2,890 1.649 3,803 -— 1.649 3,803 5452 86 2018 400

Palmdale,

Caliurnta 1157 777 1,963 — 777 1.963 2,740 53 2018

.. . " y - e e

Rockhin,

Calforala ENTO030 — 574 743 (12) v 574 731 1.305 265 2004 40.0



ible of Conten(s
iStar Ine.
Schedule 11I—Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation (Continued)

As of December 31,2018

($ in thousands)

Gross Amoeunt Carried

Initia! Cost to Compuny Cost at Close of Period
Capitalized Depreddable
Building and Subsequent to Building and Accnmulated Date Lite
Location Encumbrances Land Improvements Acquisition® Land Impravements Tatal Depreciation Acquired (Years)

San

Bernardino,
California ENTO032 — 358

B R A s

San Marcos,
California  ENTO034 — m 852 1,101 (138) 852 1,083 1,935 393 2004 400

s

Brampton,
ONT.
Canada

ARRIE

ENT040

Colorado ENTO042 1,675 1,057 1.719 - 1,057 1719 2,776 44 2018 400

o AR

e

’si:“‘.?}'.?‘
Deaver,
ENT044

b e

Lakewood,
Colorado ENTO046 1.587 712 2,206 — 713 2.206 2919 37 2018 400

Lone Tree,
Coforado

Wit

Rudge,
Colorado ENTOS0 1,090 669 1.671 —_ 6069 1,671 2340 4u 0% 400
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iStar Inc.

Schedule III—Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation (Continued)

As of December 31,2018

(S in thousands)

Gross Amount Carried

Initial Cost to Company Cost at Close of Period
Capitalized 5 Depreciable
BuiMiog and Subsequent to Building and Accumulated Date Life
Location Encumbrances Land Impravements Acquisition®? Land Tmprovements Total Depreciation Acquired (Years)

Wilmington,
Delawars ENTO052

45 2004 40.0

Boynwon
Beach,

Flonda ENTO056 i 17.135

23,668

urg,
Florda . —

Mclhoutne,
Florida ENT062

Pembroke
Pues,
Flonda ENTO066 — N 497 643 (10} 497 633 1,130 229 2004 40.0

iy TR

st

| et 1 Lk : <004 05
St

Pctensburg,

Klonida

Augusia,
Gevrgia

Consers,
Georgla LNTO074 Y 474 613 37 474 576 1,050




bl

iStar Iﬁc.
Schedule I{I—Real Fstate and Accumulated Depreciation (Continued)

As of December 31,2018

(8 in thousands) R

Gross Amount Cariled

Initial Cost co Company Cost at Close uf Period
Capitalized Depteciable

Building and Subseq to Building and Accumulated Date Life
Lacation Encumbrances Land Improvements Acquisitiont®) Land Impravements Tatal Depreciation Acquired (Yeuars)
Lawrcenceville,
Georgia 2,196 32 2018 400

FTH X < ) .

Ticoi
Marietia,
Georgia ENTO78 2,144 1180 1,436 — 11RO 1.436 34 201% 400

Norcross,
Gceorgia ENTNR0

S

G ¥
[ ;@xm&ﬁ&ﬁ?@ ,
351 e

Y

Georgia ENTOD82

(.'M"z. ¥
Licoraix

Algonquin,
Hlinois ENTOR4 3,137 1,312 4,041 — 4.041

Chicago,

Mount
Pruspect, .
1llinois ENTO090 1,247 704 936 {11 704 953 1,639

Romeoville,
thnois

ENT092

N

River Grove,

linos 2018

_f;:l\g\l\:_x s _2h(_|,_-' :

Vernon Hills.

1llinois ENT096 995 600 666 600 666 1,266 21 2018 Wy

018
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iStar Inc.
Schedule ITI—Rcal Estate and Accumulated Depreciadon (Continucd)

s As of December 31,2018

(3 in thousands)

Gross Amount Carrled

Initizl Cost to Company Cost at Cluse of Period R
Capitalized Depreciable
Building and Subsequent to Building and Accumulated Date Life
{.ocation Encumbrances Land Impravements Acquisition® Land Improvements Total Depreciation Acquired (Years)
Woudndge,
Hunols ENTO098 1,19t 829 1,597 M 829 1,596 2,425 40 2018 400

__l_«ﬁﬁ.x A
Baltuaore.
Muayland

ENTI100 — 428 554 (34)

WA

Ty
M"’»}?%%

s.
SR SR s

Mary land ENT108 — wm
Bk i X :

Timontusn,
Mary land

ENTII0 1,370

2,496

ERED S

sachusetts ENTI112 — 523 678

Somurset,
chuseus ENTUI4 — 319 672 519 661 1,180 240 2004 40.0
° e

Rapida
Mickigan ENTHLO - m 360 543 670 860 1.213 2,073 397 2017 40.0

120
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iStar Inc.
Schedule III—Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation (Continued)

As of December 31,2018

(3 in theusands)

Gross Amount Carrled

Initial Cost to Cumpany Cost at Close of Period
Capitalized Deprecfable
Buitding and Subseq to Building and Accumulated Date Lite
Location Encumbrances Land Improvements Acquisitiont?) Land Improvements Total Depreciation Acquired {Veary)

N}
Blainc,
Minncsola ENTII8

Tt

LI

Columbia,

Missouri ~ ENTI24
anizey
LM

St. Peters,
Missouri ENTI26 2,958 1,936

e

1,936 3381 5,317 76 2048 4s0

Wallington,
New Jersey

Centescach,
New York ENTI134 —

e

) 442 571 134) 442 537 979




iStar Inc. '
Schedule HI—Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation (Continued)

As of December 31,2018

(3 in thousands)

. Gross Amount Carried
Inital Cost to Cosmpany Cost at Close of Period
Capitalized Depreciable
Building and Subseq w Building and Accunulated Date Life
Location Encumbrances Land Improvements Acquisitiontt) Land Improvements Total Depreciation Acquired (Years)
Dewpew,

New Yook ENTI36 2004 40.0

ENT 140
PR

Syossel,
New York ENTI144

Wantagh,
New York ENTU4 —
g ;

o 747 967 (58)

ot

%

Rabyion,

o 1.492

hdd] it ; A5 SR X pRba AR i b i L

Asheville,

North

Carolna ENT150 - W 397 313 31) 397 82 879 168 2004 40.0
4 g y 58 3 "

Churlotte.,
Nerh

Durhum,
Nouh
" Carohna ENTI154 .

. 948 1,227 (75) 943 1,152 2,100 402 2004 400




iStar Inc.
Schedule ITI—Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation {(Continucd)

As of December 31,2018

(8 in thousands)

Gross Amount Carried

Initial Cost to Company | Cost at Close ol Period
Capitalized Depreciable
Building and Subsequent to Building and Accumulated Date Lufe

Improvements Acquisitinnt®

Land Improvements Tatal Dep eciation Acquired (Years)

Greensboro,

North
Carolina ENT1356 ) 34y 452 (28) 349 424 773 148 2004 400

Hickory,
Nosth

Carolina ENTI58 —_ (32) 409 499 908 174 2004 400

3,

Raleigh,
North
Carolina — 475 61§ a3n 475 578 1,053 201 2004 00

Tulsa,
Oklahoma ENTI168

5

=

Vernon,
Pennsylvania

G

uu

w17,

Piasburgh,
Pennsylvania ENT174 — 409 52 (3 409 520 929 2004 4u
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iStar Inc.
Schedule IIl—Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation (Continued) s

As of December 31,2018

($ in thousands)

Gross Amount Carried

Initial Cost to Company Cost at Close of Period
Capitalized Depreciable
Building 2nd Subsequent to Building and Accumulated Date Life
Location Encumbrances Land Irmprovements Acquisition® Land Improvements Total Depreciation Acquired (Years)
San luan,
Pucrio Rico 3 5 1,230 1,156 2,106
s, 5 i 3 s =" 2

Greenwille,
South
2004

40.0

Houston,
Texas [INT188 — 423 549 (89) 460 885 169 2004 400

Texas ENT190 — 758 981 (39) 758 922 1,680 322 2004 40.0

Texas ENT196 —_ §21 675 41) 521 634 1,158 22t 2004 40.0

Texas

766 (46) 592 720 1,312 251 004 400
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iStar Inc.
Schedule III—Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation (Continued)

As of December 31,2018

(8 in thousands)

Gross Amouat Carried

Initial Cost to Company Cost at Close of Period
Capitalized Depreciable
Building and  Subsequent to Buildiog and Accumulated Date Life
Locacion Encumbrances Land Impruvements  Acquisition® Land Impravements Total Depreciation  Acquired (Years)

Centreville,
Virginia ENT202
.. s

481 2004 40.0

Chesapeake,
Virginia 1.126 2,010

M -
Mcchant
Virginia

\
ot

Lyanwood,

shanglon

ENT214

o »
o]

8T

Milwaukee,
Wiscon

A b 5
110,854 $195834 8
Scousdale,

gz

Arizona RET00! — 2,025 4,875 2,825 2,625 7,700 10,325 2,141 2009 40.0




iStar Inc.
Schedule 111--Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation (Continued)

As of December 31,2018

(8 in thousands)

Gross Amount Carried

Initial Cost to Company Cost al Close of Period
Capitalized Depreciable
Building and  Subsequent to Building aod Accumulated 7 Date Life
Location Encumbrances Land Improvements  Acquisition'? Land Imm ovements Total Depreciation Acquired (Years)
Colorade
Springs, i
Colorado RETO03 — 279 2,607 5,498 2006

Honoluly,
Hawaii

gth‘ii‘a)_fg:% iy
o

(8,671)

R g

3.393 12,484 15877

sl wg

Chicago,
llinois

Hamburg,
New York

2

6,792 7,503 2474 2005 400

o —0“; "

Asbury Park,
New Jersey HOT002 — 3,818

petm
) Esital o

47,468 4,594 2016

Y
Philadelphia,
fvama APA0O4 — 13,890 29,510 (39,100)

23,649 41,878

0578 48,07y
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iStar Inc.
Schedule III—Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation (Continucd)

As of December 31,2018
(8 in thousands)

Gross Amount Carried
at Cluse of Period

Initial Cost to Company Cost
Capltalized - Depreciable
. Building and  Subseq to Building and . Accumulated Date Life

Lacacion Encumbrances Land lmpravcreents  Acquisition®) Land Impravements Totat Depreciation Acquired (Years)
Toua: S 802,367 $1,039,661 S 1,611,811 8 59,040  §1,093,068 § 1,617,444 82,710,512 (4 $ 318,724 g
(1) Consists of propetues pledged as collateral under the Company's secured credut facilities with a carrying valuc of $§472.0 million.
(2)  Includes impairments and unit sales.
(3} These properties have land improvements which have depreciable lives ot 15 to 20 years.
(4)  The aggregate cusi tor Federal mcome tax purposes was approximately $3.16 billion at Deceraber 31, 2018.
(5)  Includes $8.6 milhon and $4.8 mithon relaung 1o accumulated depreciation for land and development assets and real estate assets held for ;zllc respectively, as of December 31,

2018

The following table reconciles real estate from January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2018:

S

A

w-:z»i j

i
'e«m&,-. .ra..,..,w. .ra..xv

’ 2,710,512 5 2,997,351

2,577 195 $

Balancc at Dcccmbcr 31

The following table reconciles accumulated depreciation from January 1, 2016 to December 31,2018:

Addmons

(426,982)

(3!8 724) 8

Balance at December 31 (366 265) § -
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iStar Inc.

Schedule IV—Mortgage Loans on Real Estate

As of December 31,2018

($ in thousands)

Contractual Contrsctual Face Carrying
Interest Interest Etfective Periodic Amount Amount
Accrual Puyment Maturity Payment Puor of o1

Rates Termst! Licns Mortgapes  Mortgagest

4 et R

LTBOR + 5.15% LIBOR +5 15% July 2019 107,196 8 IO7;4'.’7

idential

13,161
10,161
304450

(1) 10 = Interest only
{2)  Amounts are presented net of asset-specific reserves ot $40.4 milion on nnpaired Yoans Iinpanment 1s measured using the estunated {ai vaiuc of collaterel, fess costs to sell
(3) The carrying amount of mortgages approximated the fedeial mcome lax busts.
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iStar Inc.
Schedule IV—Mortgage Loans on Real Estate (Continued)
As of December 31,2018
(8 in thousands)

Recanciliation of Mortgage L.oans on Real Estate:

The following table reconciles Mortgage Loans on Real Estate from January 1, 2016 to December 31, 20180

132 703
SEUT

Ny

18 Hu.lm

t:Deceinihe i : e N 4
= .

P eb v bk

(1)  Balanccs represent the carrying valuc of loans, which are net of asset specific reserves.

(2)  Amountincludes amoituzauon of discount, deferred interest capilahized and mack-10-market adjustments resulung from changes in foreign exchange rates.

(3)  Amounts are presented net of charge-otfs of $1.2 million and $10.1 outhon for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
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item 9. Changes and Disagreements with Registered Public Accounting Firm on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Ttem 9a. Controls and Proccdures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures—The Company has established and maintains discloswie controls and procedures that are
designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the Company's Exchange Act reports 1s recorded, processed. summanzed and reported within
the ume periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms, and that such information 1s accumulated and communicated to the Company's manapement,
including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow nmely dectsions 1egarding required disclosure The Company has
formed a disclosure committec that is responsible for considering the materiality of information and determining the disclosute obhigations of the Company
on a timely basis. Both the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Finaneial Officer are members of the disclosure commuttee

Based upon their evaluation as of December 31, 2018, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Conmpany’s disclosure
controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a2-15(¢) under the Secunties and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act")) ate
cffective.

Management's Report on Tnternal Control Over Financial Reporting—Muanagement 1s responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate
intemal control over financial reporting, as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Under the supervision and with the participation ot the disclosure
committee and other members of management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, management carried out its evaluation of
the effectiveness of the Company's intemal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Jnternal Control—Integrated Framework 1ssued (n
2013 by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Comuussion

Based on management's assessment under the {ramework in futernal Control—Integrated Framework, management has concluded that 1ty intemal
control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2018.

The Company's intemal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2018 has been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent
registered public accounting firm.

Changes in Tnternal Controls Over Financial Reporting—There have been no changes dunng the last fiscal quarter in the Company's temal
controls identified in connection with the evaluation required by paragraph (d) of Exchange Act Rules 13a-15 o1 15d-15 that have matenially affected, or ate
reasonably likely 10 matcnally affect, the Company's intemal control over financial reporting.

Item 9b. Other Information
None
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PART 111
Iten: 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance of the Registrant

Portions of the Company's definitive proxy statement for the 2019 annual meeting of sharcholders 1o be filed within 120 days after the close of the
Company’s fiscal ycar arc incorporated heiein by reference.

ltens 11. Executive Compensation

Portons of the Company's definitive proxy statement for the 2019 annual meeting of sharcholders to be filed within 120 days after the close of the
Company's fiscal year arc incorporated herein by reference.

[tem 12. Security Ownership of Certain Bencficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

P()mons of the (,ompany s definitive proxy statzment for the 2019 annual mecting of sharcholders to be filed within 120 days after the close of the
T

fCai’ &t uu.\npumu.u heicia Uy reference.

o

<
E

!
El
[=¢
o
O
B

Item 13. Certain Relationships, Related Transactions and Director Independence

s Pontions of the Company's definitive proxy statzsment for the 2019 annual meeting of shareholders to be filed within 120 days afier the close of the
Company's fiscal year are incorporated hetcin by reference. i

Iten: 14. Principal Registered Public Accounting Firm Fees and Services

Portions of the Company’s definitive proxy statement for the 2019 annual meeting of sharcholders 1o be filed within 120 days afler the close of the
Company's fiscal ycar are incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV

Item: 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K

{a) and {¢) Financial siatements and scheduics---see index to Financial Statemenis and Scheduies inciuded in jtem 8.
{b) Exhibits—sec index on following page.
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(1) incorporated by reference fiom the Company's Cutrent Report on Form 8-K filed on December 15, 2076

(2) Tncoipotated by reference trom the Company's Cutrent Report on Form 8-K ftled on October 25, 2013

(3) lIncorporated by reference fiom the Company's Cuisent Report on Foirm R-A filed on July §, 2003.

(4) incorporated by refcience from the Company's Curient Report on Form 8-A filed on December 10, 2003.

(3) Incorpotated by relmence trom the Company’s Cusient Report on Foim 8-A tiled on Febiuary 27, 2004.

(6} Incorporated by reference from the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 18, 2013

(7) Incorporated by reference from the Company's Current Report on Form 8-A tiled on Murch 18, 2013

{8) Tncorporated by referencee fiom the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014 filed on March 2, 2015,
(9) Incorpoiated by reference from the Company's Curient Report on Form 8-K filed on June 13, 2014

{10) Incotporated by reference fiomn the Company's Form S-3 Registration Staiement filed on February 12, 2004,

{11} lncorparated by reference to the Company's Certent Report on Form 8-K filed on March 29,2016

(12) Incorporated by reterence trom the Company's Current Report on Form §-K filed on March 13, 2017,

(13) Incorporated by reference from the CLompany's Cuirent Report en Form 8-K filed on September 20, 2017

{14) Incorporawd by 1eference from the Company's Definiuve Proxy Statement filed oa April 11, 2014,

(15)  Incorporated by reference fiom the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 25, 2007

(16) Incorporated by reterence from the Company's Quatterly Report on Form 10-Q tor the quarter ended March 31, 2008 filed on May 9, 2008,
(17) Incorporated by refeience from the Company's Cutrent Report on Form 8-K filed on Junc 29, 2016.

(18) [Incotpordted by reference from the Company'’s Quarterly Report on Foun 10-0 tor the quaster caded September 30, 2017 filed on November 2, 2017.
(1Y)  lncorporated by rcterence from the Company's Curreat Report on Form 8-K tiled on July 5, 2018.

{20) Incorporaied by reterence tfrom the Company's Anoual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 tiled on March 16, 2005

* Filed herewith

“*In sccordance with Rule 406T of Regulution S-T, the XBRL related nfotmation 3o Exbibit 101 is deemed not filed or part of a registeation statement or prospectus for purposcs of
scctons 1] or 12 ot the Securinies Act ot 1933, 15 deemed not fi.ed for purposes ot scction 18 of the Cxchange Act ot 1934 and otherwise is not subject to hahility under these sections.
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Item 16. Form 106-K Summary

None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undeisigned, thercunto duly authonzed.

iStar Inc.
Registrant
Date: February 25,2019 /s/ JAY SUGARMAN
Jay Sugarman
Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief
Executive Officer (principal executive officer)
iStar Inc.
Registrant
Date: February 25,2019 /s/ ANDREW C. RICHARDSON

Andrew C. Richardson
Chief Financial Officer (principal financial and
accounting officer)

Pursuant Lo the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this report has been signed below by the following persons on bebalf
ofthe registrant and in the capacities and oo the dates indicated.

Date: February 25, 2019 . /s/ JAY SUGARMAN

Jay Sugamman
Chairman of the Bourd of Directors
Chief Executive Officer

Date: Febn

~

2

wd
)
o

019 : /s! CLIFFORD DE SOUZA

N & O T

Clifford De Souza

Director

Date: February 25,2019 /s/ ROBERT W. HOLMAN, JR.

Robert W. Holman, Jr.
Director

biate: February 25,2019 /s/ ROBIN JOSEPHS

Robin Joseph?
Director

Date: February 25,2019 /s/ DALE. ANNE REISS

Dale Annc Reiss
Durector

Date February 25,2019 /s! BARRY W._RIDINGS

Bamry W. Ridings
Director
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List of Subsidiaries

Subsidiary State of Formation
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Exhibic 2.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERéD PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement No 333-220353 on Form S-3 and Registration Statement No 333-183465
on Form S-8 of our reports dated February 25,2019, relating to the financial statements and financial statement schedules of 18tar [nc. (which repoit expresses
an unqualified opinion and includes an explanatory paragraph relating to the adoption of a new accounting standard), and the etfectuveness of 1Star Inc s
internal conuol over financial reporting, appearing 11 this Anaual Report on Form 108-K of 1Star Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2018

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

New York, NY
Fcbruary 25,2019



Exhibit 23.2

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We liereby consent to the incorperation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-3 (No. 333-220353) and Form S-8 (No. 333-183465) of iStar
Inc. (“the Company™) of our report dated February 26, 2018, except for the change in manner in which the Company classifies certain cash receipts and cash
payients and the change in manner in which it presents restricted cash on the consolidated statements ot cash flows discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements, as to which the date 1s February 25, 2019 relating to the financial statements and financial statement schedules, which appears in this
Form 10-K.

/st PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
New York, New York
February 25,2019



Exhibit31.0
CERTIFICATION
I, Jay Suganman, centify that
1. Thave reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of18tar Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a matenal fact or omul 1o state a matenal fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statcments were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by thisieport,

3. Based on my knowledge, the finaacial statements, and other financial intonnation included 1n this report, fairly present 1n all matenal respects the
tinancial condition, results of opcrations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods prescented 1n this repont;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and 1 are responsible for cstablishing and maintaining disclosure controls and proceduics (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(c)) and 1ntemal control over financial reporting (as defined 1n Exchange Act Rules 13a-15() and 15d-15(0) for the
registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosuie controls and procedures to be designed under vur supervision. tu
ensure that marenal iniormanon reiating to the registrant, inciuding its consoitdated subsidranes, 15 made known to us by others witinn tigse entiues.
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such intemal control over financial reporting, or caused such intcmal conuol over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable asswance 1egarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for extemal
purposes in accordance with generally aceepted accounung principles;

(c) Evaluated the effecuveness of the 1egistant's disclosure conurols and procedures and presented in this teport our conciusions about the
eftectiveness of'the disclosure controls and procedures, as ot the end of the perod covered by this ieport based on such evaluation, and

{d) Disclosed 1n thus report any change in the registrant's intemal control over financial reporting that occumed duninyg the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has matenally affected, or 1s reasonably likely to matenally affect,
the registrant's intemal control over financial reporting; and

5. The rcgistrant's other centifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluanon of intemal contiol over tinancial reporung, o the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions)

(a) All signiticant deficiencics and matenal weaknesses in the design or operation of mtcmal control over financial jeporting which are icasonably
likely to adverscly affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial informauion; and

(b) Any fraud, whetber or not material, that invelves management ot other cmployces who have a significant role in the tegistiant's intemal conuol

over financial reporting.

Date:  February 25,2019 By:  /s/ JAY SUGARMAN /
Namgc: Jay Sugamuan
Tutle Cluef Executtve Officer




CERTIFICATION
I, Andrew C. Richardson, certify that:
1. Fhave reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of iStarInc.;

2. Bused on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a matcrial tact or omit to state a matetial fact ncecessary to make the
statements made, 1 light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not mislecading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information 1ncluded 1n this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition. 1esults ol operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4 The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchaunge Act Rules [3a-15(¢) and 15d-15(c)) and intemal control over financial reporting {as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
wepistrant and have. ’

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosuie controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material infonnation relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period 1 which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over finzncial reporting, or caused such intemal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide rcasonable assurance regarding the rchability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for extemal
purposcs tn accordance with generally accepted accouatiag prnciples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
cffectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as ot the end of the perod covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's intemal contro! over financial reporting that occuned during the registrant's most recent
tiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has matenally aflected, or 1s reasonably ltkely to matenally aflect,
the 1egistrant's internal control over financial reporting; and -

S. The registranl's other centifying oflicer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of intemal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of dircctors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

{aj Al significant deficicncics and materiai weaknesses in the design or operation of inteinai controt over financial reporting which are reasonably
hikely to adversely affect the registrant's ability 1o 1ecord, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any tiaud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees wha have a significant role'in the registrant's intemal control
aver financial reporting.

Date:  February 25,2019 By:  /s/f ANDREW C, RICHARDSON

Name: Andrew C. Richardson
Chief Financial Officer (principal
Sinuncial and accounting officer)

Title:



Exhibi1 32.0
Certification of Chief Fxecutive Officer
Pursuant to Section 906 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act ot 2002

The undersigned, the Chief Execunve Officer of iStar Tne. (the "Company™), heieby certtfies on the date hereof, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, a» adopted
pursuant to Scction 906 of The Sarbancs-Oxlcy Act of 2002, that the Annual Report on Fonn 10-K for the year ended Decemnber 31,2018 (dhe "Form 10-K"),
filed concurrently herewith by the Company. fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securntuies Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, and that the information contained n the Form 10-K fairly presents, in all matcnial respects, the tinancial condition and results of operatsons of the
Company.

Date: February 25,2019 By /s/ JAY SUGARMAN
Name. Jay Sugarman
Tule: Chief Executive Officer




Certification ol'C}liel'Financial Ofticer
Pursuant to Section 906 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act 02002
The undersigned, the Chief Financial Officer of iStar Inc. (the "Company"), hereby certifies on the date hereof, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act af 2002, that the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,2018 (the *Form 10-K™),

fited concurrently herewith by the Company. fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, and that the information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date  February 25,2019 By. s/ ANDREW C. RICHARDSON
Name: Andrew C. Richardson

. Chief Financial Officer (principal
Titlc: : .
Sinancial and accounting officer)




